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PREFACE 

This manuscript i s  the product of tape recorded intendews conducted ' 
by Patrick B m i s  fo r  the Oral History Office d h g  the Fal l  Sems- 
t e r  of 1976. M r .  Burris transcribed the tape and edited the tran- 
script .  

Jams Price was born in Bridgeport, I l lhds ,  on June 26, 1911. A s  a 
child of seven he began helping h i s  father and grandfather with the family 
dairy business. He attended Franklin School, a one room country school 
near h i s  ham. As a rnember of an agi3cultural family, he learned early, 
the art of plowing with horses, butchering h o p ,  and threshing with steam 
engines. 

. In  1932, a f t e r  graduation from high school, he went t o  work f o r  the o 
( l a t e r  Marathon) O i l  Company as a roustabout, and payltlcipated in  t h  p oil 
"boom" of southeastern I l l inois .  His career i n  the o i l f ie lds  spans 'the 
developmnt of the industry i n  t h i s  area, f r o m  the early days of home 
and manpower t o  the evolution of the advanced d r i l l ing  techniques and 
methods of the present. 

Nr. Price experienced the severity of pre-union working conditions and 
w a s  involved i n  the organization and developrent of the Bridgepmt local. 
In addition, he has remained a life-long farmer. 

Readers of the o ra l  history mmir should bear in mind that it i s  a 'man- 
scr ip t  of the spoken word, and that  the interviewer, narrator and editor  
s o w t  t o  preserve the informal conversational s ty le  that  is inherent i n  
such his tor ica l  sources. Sanganan State University is not responsible fo r  
the factual accuracy of the mmir, nor fo r  the vLews e x p ~ s s e d  t h e ~ i n ;  
these are for the reader t o  judge. 

The m u s c A p t  may be read, quoted and ci ted freely.  It may not be re- 
produced in whole o r  i n  part by any mans, electronic o r  mchanical, with- 
out permjssion i n  vwiting f m t h e  Oral History Office, Sangamon State 
University, Sprinmeld, I l l ino i s ,  6270 8: 



J n s  N. Price, October 17, 1976, Bridgeport, I l l inois .  
Patrick Bur r i s ,  Interviewer. 

A. I Uved on the farm where ny grandmother had always lived a l l  of 
her life. 

Q. Where was tha t  a t?  

A. That's the old home place. Their farm was there where CharTey Hobbs 
l ives,  and we lived there--that s when they run the dairy. In 1917, 1918 
is when they had that awful big snow. The snow got four o r  f ive  feet 
deep. That's when we was apeddling milk, ahauling mllk in to  Bridgeport 
and peddlhg it at the stores and the houses. I went along with Dad and 
would help deliver the milk when I w a s  seven years old. 1918 is when 
they had that  a w k i l  big snow. Tnatrs when it w a s  piled up clear  over 
the fences. Had that  snow, then it sleeted on top of it, and a l o t  of 
places you could ice skate for four miles, right across the fields, right 
over the fences and a l l .  

Q. How old would you have been about then? 

A. I was born In  1911, that  would have made me seven years old. 

Q. And yowl dad owned the dairy? 

A. Yes, Dad owned the dairy then. And then I had Harry and Chuck, they 
was-like I would be where Jordy is now, then Raymond and C a r l ,  see? There 
would have been that  much difference, and that's the way the same thing 
was then. 

Q. So you would have been f ive o r  s i x  yeaxs . . . 
A. Seven years. Born i n  1911, t h i s  was 1918. 

Q. Right, but I mean you were-how mamy years younger than your brothers 
were you? 

A. Well, Chuck was seven years older than me and Harry was two years 
older than Chuck, and then k l o e  was two years older than Harry. There 
was f ive children, and Lenabelle was the youngest. But i n  1918 when that 
big snow was, it was so deep, and they had no way t o  clear the mads, only 
just  a l l  the people that  lived along the mad just get together. It took 
them two days t o  get the mad cleared before we could get t o  Bridgeport, 
fowl miles and a half. 

Q. So you couldn't take any milk? 
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A. That first day Dad took off that  mrning with the milk, he didnf t  
get halfmy. He was gone s i x  hours and didn't get two mile, he got back 
home. The &lk at tha t  time w a s  i n  quart glass bott les  and just a l i t t l e  
pasteboard cap went on top. The milk had fmze, and as it f'roze it ex- 
panded, and it corn up, r i@t  up through the top of the--pushed the cap 
off and it was that  high abow the bott le ,  see? !Ihe rdlk w a s  al l  froze 
and had pushed up there. 

Q. About three o r  four inches? 

A. Yes. But myway, the mn w a s  two days getting the road cleared t o  
Bridgeport and then t h i n g  got back t o  normal. 

But where we went out i n  the country t o  school, we  had two miles t o  walk 
t o  school. And the corntry school where w e  went was just a one-room school, 
one teacher, and they didn't teach every pya& every yem, see. If you 
star ted i n  on an odd year--like they'd iteach the first grade and th i rd  
maybe fifth and seventh and eighth along that-a-way, see. If you got 
s tar ted  Zn the wrong year, you e i ther  had t o  be back a year o r  go ahead a 
yeax. 

A. Lenabelle would have s tar ted  the next year, see. I went a l i t t l e  i n  
1918 and then when they had t h i s  awful bad weather, course I didn't go. 
But then me and knabe l l e  s tar ted  the same year then, the next year, see. 
Then w e  went through grade school and high school together i n  the same 
year. 

Q. You stayed together all thm@ school? 

A. Yes. There was Dean Simm and Beulah Vandament d m  there and Lena- 
belle  and m. We a11 four went t o  the first grade together and then from 
there c l e m  through the last day of hi@ school, together, graduated the 
same time. 

Q. And you weren't necessarily the same age? It was because you . . . 
A. Yes, w e l l ,  &an and me and Beulah was-our b i r t h d a ~ s  w a s  i n  the sam 
year, see, but then Lenabelle ' s w a s  about, would have been, oh, a l i t t l e  
over a year behind, see. But she star ted then because i f  she hadn't pf, 
she'd of waited anather year, which would of put her by herself.  And/ i n  
the school, there was just, lfke I say, one teacher, and maybe there )uould 
be one o r  two, well, usually two grades they didn't teach that  year. See, 
theyfd alternate f'rom one yew  t o  the next. You'd ei ther  have to--if1 som- 
body moved i n  the d i s t r i c t  and had a child i n  the f i f t h  pade or  s ixth 
p a d e  or so forth [which] they didn' t teach, they had t o  go ahead or back 
t o  f inish that  year, and then s t a r t  over again. 

Q. How did the teacher operate in class? Were .you sepm&ed or . . . 
A. Well, no, just  one big room and you a l l  se t  there, and then up i n  
front of the man, they had just long seats  l ike  they would have i n  church, 
see, and that  one class would go up i n  front and that  would be your class 
at that tim arld you would rec i te  o r  have your lesson, see. Then you 
would go back t o  your seat and another class would go up. But fo r  one 
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teacher t o  teach ybm reading and wrLting and arithmetic and history and 
biology a l l  in the same day t o  all grades, see, you couldn't get through 
it. 

Q. It would take a long tim wouldn ' t~ i t?  

A. Yes, so they just had so many grades each year and tha t ' s  the way the 
school w a s  run, and we went t o  school seven months. That's all the grade 
we had, was seven mnths out of the year. By that  t k  when you were 
seven o r  eight yeam old, why, you--we'd have t o  get up at four o'clock i n  
the rnornLng i n  order t o  get the work done. We diked a l l  them cows by 
hand, see. 

Q. I wanted t o  ask you, what was a typical day l ike? 

A. We'd start a t  four otclock i n  the mrming. You had t o  get a l l  your 
feeding done, and you milked those cows by hand. We kept from twelve t o  
f i f teen  because you see, you had t o  have one hundred quarts of m i l k  t o  
take t o  town and your cows, would be dried up a l i t t l e  while som of 
them, different tirnes, before they had a ca l f .  

Q. So you had t o  have extra ones? 

A. Then you had t o  have extra cows in order t o  maintain your level of 
one hundred quarts of milk a day. You'd milk them and then like I said 
yesterday, you'd have to, i n  the summertime especially-ave3.l iLn the win- 
tertlrne even too, you'd have t o  pour that m i l k  i n  that  cooler and l e t  the 
animal heat get out of it, cool it some before you could put it i n  your 
bot t le  and cap it, see. But i n  the swwnertime that  took a l i t t l e  t h ~  
because you had t o  put that; milk i n  there and then pour your water mund 
there. You had t o  go pwnp y o u  water and camy it, and pour it i n  there, 
and l e t  that  cool a while, see. Then i n  the sml?tW we had t o  make 
two t r i p s  a day t o  tm. 

&. Could you explain again how the cooler worked? 

A. Well, it w a s  just  l ike  th i s  would be one part  of your cooler, see. 
Yout d pow your milk i n  here. Then this out here, i f  t h i s  had another 
jacket up here t h i s  hi& see, the same hei&th as your mlllk, then you1 
poured your water around here, see? I 

Q. So it 's kind of like a double boiler? 

A. Just like a double boiler,  yes. You'd go t o  the w e l l  and pump buc- 
kets of water and camy and pow it i n  here and then that  took the animal 
heat out of your milk enough that you could bot t le  it and then have t o  
hurry t o  town w i t h  it, see. 

But i n  1919 Ihd bought his Erst Model T Towing car, a brand new one. It 
cost $385. But before tha t ,  and then afterwards too, there would just be 
a short t im of the year you could drive that  t o  town and back. You bad 
t o  drive that  horse and buggy, what they called a buckboard. Now this 
thing didn't even have a top on it o r  anything, it was just like a buggy 



only i n  the back it had a place bu i l t  simila~ t o  a pick-up truck. Just 
a bed bu i l t  on there, where you hauled your milk. You hooked two horses 
t o  it. But you had t o  go regardless of haw cold o r  what was a-going on 
see. You had t o  go just the same. 

Q. So when did you start working at the dairy? 

A. Well, l ike  I say,  when I was seven years old, why, I ' d  go with Dad. 
In the wintert im, I M e  one t r i p ,  and helped when he got i n  town. He 
would put so much in  each store, then you just  drove up and down the 
s t ree t  where your customrs w a s ,  see, and one of w would take each side 
of the s t ree t  and take the milk bot t le  out of the b u @ ~  and take it t o  the 
house and s e t  it d m .  You'd set down a fill one, pick up an empty. And 
then i n  the sumnertime, why, of course, you had t o  make two t r ips .  

But then of course, as you got older, why you had a l o t  more work t o  do. 
You'd bum three stoves. It took two heating stoves t o  heat the house, 
and your cook stove, you burnt wood in a l l  the tlm. I was the youngest, 
that  was rr~y job every evening, soon as I got how from school, was t o  
camy in  enough t o  run you through the &&t. You'd burn a l o t  of wood 
mil bedtlm, which, eight or eight-thlrt;y, everybody would be i n  bed. 
Tnen you had t o  bank yowl stove so you'd have fire i n  the mmdng. Then 
your cookstove, you had t o  build a fire every mming because the f i re-  
boxes was made different,  see. There wasn't enougt? firebox i n  them t o  
hold f i r e .  Every morning you'd have t o  kindle a fire i n  it. m a t ' s  the 
first thing, probably, Dad would do when he got up, would be start a fire 
i n  the cook stove and get a fire b u i l t  and get it hot enough t o  cook on. 

We'd have twelve t o  fif'teen head of horses, and the cows and a bunch of 
hogs t o  take care of and you'd get up at four o'clock and you'd get a l l  
that done before you ever a te  breadfast. You'd get your milk in that 
cooler concern see, and it set i n  there un t i l  after you a te  breakfast and 
then you'd get out there and bot t le  your mLZk and p t  ready t o  go t o  tm. 
But that went on till, w e l l ,  I don't know. I don't rernerrber exactly how 
long, you know, I can remerrber 1917 and 1918 real well on account of 
helping depver  m L l k  and the big snow and that  s lee t  and skating acrms 
the fields, but I don't remerrber how long before that  they'd been sewing. 
milk. Probably *om around 1906 and 1907 when the o i l  boom star%ed 
A l o t  of people moved i n  and that  I s  when a l o t  of people l ike  the fo %=. 
star ted hauling milk t o  town and, in  the surnnertim, a l o t  of vegetables 
and whatever you raised, you could haul t o  town and s e l l  part  of it, you 
how. 

Q A lo t  of new people cane t o  town? 

A. A l o t  of people corn t o  town , . . 
Q. Because of the oi lf ields? 

A. On account of the o i l f ie ld .  There w a s  a l l  kind of shacks and tents  
and, the way they explained it, people l iving i n  everything, all  over town 
see, anything they could stay in. 

Well, it was the same thing in--of course t h i s  is going way on up then, 



In  1937 and 1938, when they had that  big boom i n  Salem. I w a s  over 
there working i n  it. Leonard Gray and me was a-workin@; together and we 
s lept  for two weeks, every night, i n  a man's brooder house! That's the 
only place we could get a bed t o  sleep i n  see, there was so many people 
coming i n  there and they wasn't prepared t o ~ t a k e  care of them. It would 
just be l ike  i f ,  well, a couple thousand people come in to  Bridgeport in ,  
say, th t r ty  days t k .  There wouldn't be enough restawlants fo r  them t o  
eat  out of o r  e n o m  room or anything see. Course now, you could go each 
way for th i r ty  or  forty f i l e s  and still  drive t o  work, but then you couldn't. 

Q. Even thou@ you had the car then, was the horse s t i l l  the & form 
of transportation? 

A. Well, in  1919? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Oh yes, because you didn't have any roads, see. Maybe three o r  four 
mnths through the smrtirne you could drive your car, and then the rest 
of the t h ,  the most of the time, it s e t  i n  the shed, jacked-up, because 
you didn't have any anti-freeze and you had t o  have water i n  T t  . 
We went ahead up tha t  way [living at the home place and operating the 
dairy] up till 1921 when my mthe r  died. Af'ter my mother died, Chloe 
and H a r r y ,  the oldest boy and oldest girl, they was both planning on get- 
t ing  married at tha t  time, see, so they went ahead and got m i e d  and 
tha t ' s  when Dad overhauled the old homestead where Grandma and Grandpa 
lived. A t  that  t im that  was s t i l l  just two room and mostly just the old 
log two moms, and sti l l  had a f l ~ p l a c e  in it. He had the carpentem go 
i n  there and they built two room on downstairs, and two room upstairs, 
and bui l t  a kitchen and backporch. Tnen, Dad and Chuck and Lenabelle 
and me, moved fn with Grandpa and G r a n d m a .  And that  made s ix  of us. That 
made s i x  of us. Well, then a f t e r  tha t ,  Dad sold, o r  they did, Dad and 
Granddad, sold the dairy route t o  a man lived south of us by the nam? of 
Slemnjns , only we kept the cows and we s t i l l  done all that  miUdng and we 
sold that  man just  whole milk see, i n  cans, un t i l  he got t o  where he got 
enough cows t o  bot t le  everything he needed t o  deliver. And then they got 
what you call a cream separator. 

Q. S1emi.m did? 

A. No, we did, got a cream separator. That was an ou t f i t  where you had 
a bunch of machinery here, with a crank on it, and then in the top you 
had a great big  bowl where you poured your m i l k ,  and your milk went down 
through that  and you cranked t h i s  crank at a c e r t d n  speed and your skim 
milk would corn out one spout and your cream out the other. What they 
called a cream separator o r  milk separator, rather. Well then, we went 
ahead and milked a l l  those cows and kept them for  a long th~,  and done 
that  along with the famning, but a t  the same t i r r ~ ,  why, Dad went t o  work 
fo r  the B i g  4 O i l  Company. H e  went t o  work i n  the o i l  f ie ld .  

Q. What year would that have been? 

A. Well, 1921. 
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Q. S t i l l  in 1921. 

A. Yes. For m the r  died i n  February and then not long a f t e r  that  he 
went t o  work and we mved then, that  sam year, and . . . 
Q* Your dads I-mE was? 

A. Leavitt. And he was the only child. He  didnlt  have any brcrthers o r  
s i s ters .  

Q. Was he the f i r s t  one i n  your family t o  work i n  the o i l  business? 

A. Yes, yes, yes. He went t o  work then and he worked, I think %t w 
thirty-three years, before he . re t f  red. But then Chuck and me was there, 
and Granddad, and we farmed. 

O f  c o m e  Chuck was seven years older than I was, and he was wanting a job 
and getting ready t o  go t o  work, see, which he a d .  Held go norkh and 
shuck corm and when harvest stax-ted, he'd go out in Kansas, then through 
the harvest t o  North and South Dakota. Usually he d leave home, oh, i n  
the spring and then he'd go t o  Kansas, l ike  I say,  in the harvest and then 
North and South Dakota where, on account of the weather was different, 
hamest w a s  different t h s ,  see. Then maybe even in to  Canada and Mm- 
tana. ?hen he wouldn't get horn until fa l l ,  see, and Granddad and m went 
ahead and f w d .  

I sta&ed working everyday with a team and a plow when I w a s  ten years 
old. ?heretd be a team and a fourteen inch walking plow and yould plaw 
two acres a day. W e l l  now, i n  this old Bible E k e  we w a s  a looking at 
l a s t  night, its got so m.ny tables and weights and measures, there1 s 
everything i n  there you can thfvlk af ,  and i n  there, i t l l l t e l l  you that-- 
a plowhg with a fourteen inch plow that  every t h e  you plow an acre, 
you w a l k  e i a t  miles. 

Q. You can find that  out from the charts in  the Bible? 

A. Yes. In th i s  dictionary th-, i n  that  old Bible, it'll show you 
where it 's been worked out. You go thmu& a field, a f i e l d  a c e r t a  
length and so wide, of course, would be an acre, and you'd plow fourteen 
inches a throw and fourteen back would be twenty-ei@t inches i n  a round. 
And then in  so  rrany rounds, whatever it takes t o  plow that  acre, you would 
walk eight rdles, see. -So by plowing two acres a day, tha t  's a l l  you could 
plow, you would w a l k  sixteen miles, see, a doing that .  O f  course we s t i l l  
always got up at four o'clock i n  the mrning because you had t o  take care 
of your horses. You had t o  get them fed, and they always wanted them t o  
eat and then stand a while and water them before you went out and went t o  
work, see. We alwws went t o  the f ie ld  ats s ix  o' clock, but you had t o  
have a11 your other work done. You milked these cows, and always had 3 l o t  
of chickens. Grandma always kept--she had chickens and ducks and geeqe 
and gu3nea.s and turkeys. You had t o  have all that  stuff t o  eat  because 
you couldn't go buy it. And we' d work k.om s i x  till eleven-thi&y. 
bring your team of horses i n  at 11: 30 and water them and put them in 
barn and give them som hay, and let them eat  hay for an hour, o r  a h 
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an hour. ?hen you'd go back out t o  the barn and give them the i r  grain. 
The old-timers, l ike  Granddad, they figured i f  you put your horses i n  
the b a m  and give them the grain first, they'd eat it up so fast that  it 
didn't do them so much good. You feed them hay for  th i r ty  minutes and 
they'd eat  it, it would quiet down the i r  appetite, see. Then you'd feed 
them the grain, and then at one o'clock we'd go back, take them out of 
the barn and water them and go back t o  work, and work till six.  Then 
you'd core in ,  and go out i n  the pasture and bring i n  your cows and get 
them in--water them and get them i n  the barn, get them i n  t he i r  s t a l l  
and you had t o  unharness your horses and take care of them and feed ?hem 
and water them, hang up your harness and then start in and get your hogs 
fed and y o u  chickens fed, and your cows milked, and you got a l l  that  done 
before you ever went In t o  eat supper which would be, usually run around 
seven-thirty, see. 

Q. Made for  qulte a long day! 

A. Yes. That's the way you worked t h r o w  the suwanertim and then in 
the fall, of c o m e ,  by keeping a l l  those cows we had to  put up so much 
hay. You had t o  work a l l  the time, there w a s  never no period of tjm, 
the year around back at that  t i n e ,  but what you had l o t s  of wo~k t o  do 
because when you was a putting out your crop, it took a good while, and 
you had so much hay you put up, too, and you cut your wheat, your oats 
with the binder, and then i n  the f a l l ,  of course, after you got your corn 
l a id  by, which would be around the fourth of July the way they figured it 
then, then you'd start i n  on your hay crop. Then by the time you got 
your hay al l  up it would be t im fo r  your threshing t o  start. 

They'd have w h a t  they called a threshing ring then and everybody helped 
everybody else. You'd start--like we'd start a threshing a t  your house 
and everybodyt d go help and you'd just  take i n  the whole neighborhood, 
see. And by the tim you got around t o  everybody and got a l l  that  done, 
it w a s  t im t o  start a plowing and getting ready t o  sow your wheat ag& 
i n  the fall ,  see, in Septenber. 

9. A t  tha t  ti= you used those b ig  steam threshing machines, didnf t 
you? 

A. Yes, yes. A t  that  time they used the steam threshers. Course, bq- 
fore the thresh- machine got there, why, you had t o  hitch youp team up 
t o  the wagon and go t o  town and get your wagon bed f u l l  of coal. mern 
old threshing machines, t h e m  fe l las ,  they used coal on account of they have 
t o  haul--you had t o  have enough coal t o  do your threshing and theyL1d load 
coal on t he i r  steam engine then, so they could hold f i r e  t o  .go from one 
fanrhouse t o  another see, they had t o  have coal. along the road. And 
the reason they used coal instead of wood, w a s  because wood made sparks, 
and you couldn't have them spmks flying mund where you was a threshing, 
see. 

Q. Be a l o t  mre dangerous wouldnl t it? 

A. Yes. Now these old trains, I guess, the way the p i c t m s  is and the 
history, they used a l o t  of wood, and they clairred it s e t  a l o t  of fires 
along the track-that's what done it see, was the spark out of that  wood. 
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But, by the tire you got y w  threshing done, and got around the thmsh- 
ing ring, w i l l  then, l*e I say, it was t2rre t o  st& sowing wheat and 
course then you-we had t o  start school, the kids did i n  Septerrlxr, but 
when it was tlm t o  work your ground down and sow wheat, why, if you was 
big e n o m  t o  work, it w a s  all ri&t, the school didn't care, your teacher- 
so forth, i f  you stayed t o  home and helped till that  was done, see. 

Q. They understood you had t o  do- that .  

A. Yes. Then you went back t o  school. Well then, around Noverrber, 
rdddle of November o r  the last, why you1 d start your butchering then. 
And then you had al l  your corn t o  shuck by hand. You had t o  get that  
shucked, and scoop it out. Then you had your butchering. 

And the sam way,  you done your butchering--or we did in that  neighborhood, 
l ike  you done your threshing. Everybow just  helped each other, see. We1 d 
k i l l  seven, s i x  and seven big  h o p  i n  one day. 

Usually on butchering day you'd get up around three o'clock o r  three-thirty 
and you'd have your three o r  four of them 50 gallon ket t les ,  old imn 
lmttles, you know what they look like, there's two of them out there. 
And you ' d have them s e t  and your ldndling under there, see, and your wood 
cut the day before and you'd start tha t  MR. Then you had t o  p q  and 
carry water and fill them ket t les  up with water t o  start with, see, for 
you had t o  have water t o  put i n  your-what they called the scalding barrel ,  
which w a s  just  a . . . a f i f t y  gallon wooden b m l .  You had a platform 
made and then that  barrel  s e t  at the end l ike  t h i s  see, and you'd get 
your hot water i n  there. You'd shoot a hog, s t i ck  it, and let  it bleed, 
drag it up there and lift it up on tha t  platform, then you'd get up on 
tha t  platform and move tha t  hog l ike  this, up and d m  i n  that water, see, 
till you got it where you could peel that  ha i r  off.  That's what you called 
scalding them. You'd take tha t  hair off ,  and then when you got him cleaned 
good, you d hang him up, cut h i s  head off and gut him and then clean hh. 
Then wh21e two of three was doing that ,  ther&!d be another two shoot another 
one and s t ick  him and let him bleed and then get him up here and scald 
him. While they was doing tha t  you'd go get another one, and then these 
would get that  one scalded, hang hjm up, scrape him down, clean him gpod, 
gut him, wash out the inslde and usually you1 d try t o  have all s i x  or1 seven, 
whatever you were butchering, a l l  of them hung up by noon, see. Or before. 
Then you had t o  l e t  that  rneat cool a while ti11 it got firm e n o m  so 1 you 
could s l i c e  it, cut it up, see. Well then youtd st& taking them d m ,  
you'd sp l i t  them i n  two and then start cuttfng them up and carrying your 
joints and mat in your rreathouse and l o t ' s  of t b s  I've seen oh, when 
we got done there of an evening, then you had a l l  your sausage t o  grind 
and you ground it by hand, and you'd have a tub f 'ul l  of sausage. You'd 
have a tub  f u l l  of sausage. 

Q. It took a l l  six or  seven t o  make a tub f'ull? 

A. - Yes. Yould have a tub full of sausage, tha t ' s  about what they usually 
figured on having. And theyld have s i x  o r  seven lard cans fUl of lard. 
Which, them lard cans hold seven gallon, I believe it was. 
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Q. So each family ~tsually butchered about that  much? 

A. Yes. Oh, the oldtimrs--well ncw Eke grandpa and grandma--why, 
c o m e  there t l r ~  went back away before th i s ,  see, when you absolutely 
couldn't @ t o  town,and buy no kind of meat, you had t o  have it. And 
they always said, well you figured one hog fo r  each &er of the family 
and one for  company, see. ( la@ter)  That 's the way they f i ~ r e d  what 
they had t o  butcher i n  order t o  mu? you t h m m  see. 

Q. I never heard that  before. 

A. Yes , well, that ' s the way that  Grandpa and Grandma always--that l s the 
way they fattened t he i r  h o p .  

m OF SIDE ONE 

A. That would take your whole day, then l a t e  of an evening you'd start 
@;rindin@; the sausage. You1 d have t o  s t r i p  yow hogs, cut your joints out 
and trim them and cut up all the sausage so you could m it throw a 
hand--just like these food choppers you have today. . . . 
Q. A hand grinder? 

A. Yes, only they was quite a b i t  bigger. But it would usually take, 
oh, two and a half t o  three hours t o  grind a l l  your sausage when you got 
done. 

And you had your meat house and you took all the rest of yow meat, and 
scattered i t out i n  there, placed it ammd so one joint didn't touch the 
other one because you had t o  be sure a l l  your animal heat was out before 
you starbed curing it. And then they would pack som of it down in salt 
and barrels and some of it they' d use a--mst everyone had a different kind 
of a c u e  they &xed up w i t h  salt and pepper and a sugar and different kind 
of . . . peppers and stuff they1 d put i n  it, Then l a t e r  on, when we begin 
t o  get the b f i o n  Sugw Cure, it made it a l o t  easier t o  cure. You'd 
just  put tha t  on, rub it on good on both sides and then l e t  it M n  for  
two or  three days and rmb it on agaAn, ahd go t h m u  the sam thing 
again and drain till your meat was good and dry. Then Grandma would frake 
muslin sacks and put a joint,  a shoulder o r  a side o r  a ham, i n  a sack, 
and then they'd hang it up i n  the mathouse. 

O r ,  i n  the back of the mathouse, they had a l i t t l e  separate room i n  
there fixed, where you could smke of your mat, see, and they had a 
metal plate i n  the bottom for  wood. They'd get green hickory or,  mstly 
green hickory, that  would--youlve seen it, oh, just  had a--the errbers 
would smke , see, you couldn' t have no flam, dry wood would just f lpne 
and burn, see. Your m e n  wood, the eubers would dust lay the= mdi 
smlder and smke, that  l s what they1 d use. 

Q. So it was just literally full of smoke? 

A. Yes. Then you shut that  mom up ti@t. ?hen al l  t h i s  sausage, oh, 



Jams N. Price 10 

of course we didn't have any way t o  keep it only, they would make all  
that  up in pat t ies  and then they had t o  about two-thirds cook it ,  see. 
And Grandma had, oh, pans that  was that  big. ( p s t u r e s )  I expect they'd 
hold, well, pmbably th i r ty  o r  forty sausage pat t ies  at one t i m e ,  see. 
Your old cookstove, the top of it would be that  big, see? 

Q. About the s i ze  of a kitchen table? 

A. Yes, and tha t  would all  be hot. She would se t  that  on there i n  mybe 
a couple of big iron skillets and, l ike  I say,  they'd cook that  about two- 
thirds of the way and then they'd take ten gallon stone jars and you'd lay 
down a bunch of sausapp and then you ' d cover that with lard and then you1 d 
lay down another bunch of sausage and cover that  till you got clear t o  
the top, see. 

Q. So you used the lard t o  kind of protect i t ?  

A. Yes. Sealed it. And then when they used the sausage, why ,! of cause ,  
they'd take that  lard out and use it ,  see? But that  sealed it, and then 
Grandma would also make muslin sacks . . . oh, about as big around as tha t ,  
o r  a l i t t l e  b i m r .  see. And she 'd s tuff  tha t  f'ull of fmsh sausage. 
Then she Id mlt  paraffin o r  wax and put on the outside of that  sack and 
seal  it, and hang it up. And it would keep fo r  two or  three months, just  
real good. O r ,  you could put tha t  i n  them sacks and then smke it i f  you 
Uke that smoke, see. You could smke that  just l ike  you would any other 
m a t ,  and it just  give it a different flavor because you didn't go t o  
town and buy beef and pork and different cuts and you didn ' t have any lunch 
mat and s tuff  of tha t  nature. You a t e  that  sam mat a l l  the time be- 
cause there was no way t o  keep beef. 

People rrdght be two or  three families o r  row: would k i l l  one beef i n  
the wlntertim. Theyv d butcher a beef and then each family probably take 
a quarter. And you could pretty w e l l  keep that  and then they would cold- 
pack beef. In a pressure cooker you would take a bunch of beef and cut 
it up i n  smll pieces, l ike  you could get i n  a quar t  can, see, and then 
they would cook that  about two-thirds of the way done and put It in these 
cans and seal  it, just l ike  you wa;; canning vegetables or  anything, 
keep it, and then you'd open it up and M s h  cooking it, and it was 
good, it took so mmy cans and w a s  such a big job, that  you couldn't 
handle too much beef, you how, at one t h .  Like you nowdays, ju s t  ake 
one t o  the sla@terhouse and they s l a w t e r  it and cut it up, and wr p 

and every so of'ten Grandma would dress one, sonething l ike  that.  

P' 
it, and f'reeze it, why, LtSs all  over i n  a l i t t l e  b i t .  But tha t ' s  the 
reason people a t e  so much pork; because you could cure i t ,  and keep it, 
and of course, we  had chickens and guineas and turkeys and ducks and geese 

Of course, we ate a l o t  of old hen and noodles cause you had a l o t  of 
them, and through the s m r  months, why, you a t e  quite a bit of Fried 
chicken because you had a l o t  of roosters t o  eat. Instead of eating %hat 
pork, it made a pretty good change when you started getting that  new 
f r ied  chicken. 

And the wood cutting, you had t o  cut wood &l1 swnmer. You had t o  have 
enough wood for  your cookstove cut a11 the tinre, see, and then. in  the 
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winter tbz ,  the wood cutting deal was-I'll t e l l  you it was a big deal, 
because, Uke I say, you burmed two heat- stoves and your cookstove-- 
you b m d  a l l  three of them heavy, a l l  day, and your heating stoves all 
ni@t, you know. And it was a b ig  job. Tnen, people cut up a l o t  of 
corn and made fodder s h o w ,  you how. 

Q. What's that  exactly? 
I 

A. Well, you go t h r o w  your corn field and cut corn and just s e t  i d  
i n  shocks every so of'ten. You'd start through the f i e l d  cutting cow 
with your right hand and l e t  it f a l l  in your l e f i  and carry it as far as 
you could. Then you'd set tha t  down and make it a shock, see, and then 
you'd go ahead and do that  again. They made it in shocks, what they called 
'!helve h i l l  You would go t h r o w  two rows l ike  that ,  see, carry 
those as far as you could, and set it down. Thak s tar ted  your shock. Go 
back, cut up another row, s e t  that  there and go on through that  away clear 
through your f ie ld .  Then you cut a wsw and keep se t t ing  it up on that  
sam skaok each time, till you cut a s t r i p  twelve rows wide. Set that  up 
and then t i e  a s t r ing  around it. Then i n  the wintertime when you got the 
rest of yow corn a l l  shucked, you s tar ted  hauling that  fodder in, usual ly  
on a sled--hauling yowl shocks i n  and stacking it up around the barn o r  
in  the shed. men on bad days when you couldn't get out and do nothing 
else, you get in that shed and shuck--it ' s called "shucking shock fodders . " 
Q. That's hard t o  say! (la@s) 

A. You'd get your corn out and then you'd feed your fodder t o  the cows 
and horses in the barn, i n  the daytime when it was so bad they couldn't 
get out and eat .  Course, when everybody thrashed and you had a mat big 
straw pi le ,  why, decent days, when ca t t l e  could get out and bothered too 
bad, they d a l l  stand around that  straw p i l e  and eat .  But, you always 
had t o  get that shock fodder i n  and have your fodder t o  feed t h r o w  the 
clays when it was so  bad the stock didn't get out. You put in your dif- 
ferent kinds of hay for  your cows and horses $n the barn, i n  the l o f t  t o  
feed, but you fed that at night and then, fo r  yow horses, you had t o  
figure you had e n o m  left in the s p a  t o  feed them while you was put- 
t ing out your crop, see. 1 

And that  !s the way farming was  back then, it was just a continous 
of work which averaged about the same thing al l  the tim, the same 
of hours every day. mere w a s  hardly any tirrYe but what you had to ,  y@u 
had work t o  do. 'She year around you got up at four o'clock. 

The f m m  had t o  depnd on t he i r  animals fo r  the i r  l iving and that ' s  
the reason they took such good care of them. Because the animals had t o  
produce o r  the man couldn't l ive. Because i f  you didn't have some cream 
and e@ and butter, and that stuff t o  take t o  the poultry house and sell, 
you didn't have no h c o m  whatever, see. It took a l o t  of ardmls, so 
you had t o  raise a l o t  of feed--it took the feed t o  feed the anirnals~-and 
then about all the income you had was, what e w  and c ~ a m  a d  poultry 
and stuff you would have t o  sell, see. , 

Now, through the s m r  months, you'd have t o  go t o  town twice a week, 
tha t ' s  the way they'd do. You'd have a dug w e l l  fo r  water, and that  well 
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would have a platform bu i l t  around it, probably a foot hi@, somthing 
l ike  tha t ,  see. About four foot square, on top of the well, and your 
pwnp set on top of that .  In th i s  platform there would be a l i t t l e  trap- 
door on hhges ,  and you'd have, what they called a regular cream can. It 
was maybe a gallon o r  two-@ion can. You'd have three o r  four of them, 
with a real t i @ t  l i d  that  f i t  on it, see, and a handle. And you'd t i e  
a rope on that  and l e t  it dawn right t o  the top of the water, and t i e  your 
rope on that  and l e t  it d m  right t o  the top of the water, and t i e  your 
rope up t o  your platform or  around the pmp, and that  well would keep that  
cool eno- that  it would keep tha t  cream sweet we'll  say from Sunday tfll 
Wednesday and f'rom Wednesday till Saturday. That's about what you could 
figure. In the wintertime then, when it w a s  cold you could save that  
cream fo r  a week at a tim, see. And then just  take it t o  town once a 
week. A l l  poultry houses bought cream and eggs and a l l  kind of poultry-- 
hides, and through the winter you'd kill rabbits and what you didn't eat  
you could s e l l  in [the] poultry house. Lot of times you'd get a nickel a 
piece f o r  them. (laughs ) 

Q. Was that  i n  Bridgeport, the poultry house? 

A. Yes, at one t im there w a s ,  oh, a t  tha t  t h e ,  there was always two 
poultry houses in Bridgeport and most of the time three and there would 
be two in S m r .  And, land,--all the people that  hunted at ni@t, 
foxes, coons and possum and mink and all  that  stuff--they [the poultry 
house] bought the hides, and i f  you butchered a cow or  anything, o r  had 
a dead cow or  a dead horse, which happened, why, before people buried it, 
why, they'd skin it and s e l l  that  hide, see. For they just had t o  do about 
anything they could do t o  get a l i t t l e  money, for  it [was] kind of hard 
t h s ,  mst of the t*. 

Q. What was the rest of Blyldgeport l ike  at the t i m ?  What were some of 
the other businesses? 

A. Well, about the only businesses that  was here-course they had three 
blacksrrdth shops, and them w a s  a man had a harness shop, but at tha t  
t im--come a l i t t l e  before tha t ,  why, there was a livery stable,  horses 
for  rent ,  and somthing of that kind. Now you know where Baldwins of,fice 
is, r i@t  down hem across h m t h e  h i& school? Well, ri@t there, 
on the south side of it is a big old hnuse thats got the brick sidi I$? 
it, it 's red. Well, there 's where a man lived, his  name was Gillat, 
Russau Gillat,  and there where t he i r  office is, he had a great big b m ,  
and he had a harness shop in there, and he made hamess, o r  would mahe 
you anything you wanted, you how, and had a few things t o  s e l l ,  and he 
would board horses--people, a lo t  of people at that  tine that  l ived in 
town, had a horse and buggy, see, and they'd have t o  have a place for 
the i r  horse, and a l o t  of people kept a cow. 

Q. And they could rent space there f r o m  him? 

A. Yes. Now of c o m e ,  l a t e r  on, why, people didn't have horse 
in tm, they had cars of course, everybody, but he still  had that  b 
there and had some harness business. But he had a l o t  of stalls he 
have no harses in.  When I would be a teaming, oh, later, say 
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i f  I was a working north of town I'd corn i n  from the farm the first 
day and work and then of an evening, I'd stop there at h i s  barn and un- 
hitch the horses and put them In there and leave them overnight, see, 
and go horne. Then the next mrming, I ' d  conre back. I t ' d  save me about 
a nine mile trLp d m  there and back with the team. For when I was team- 
ing, I ' d  have t o  be up and have team ready and hitched up t o  the wagon 
and ream t o  leave down there a t  f ive o'clock i n  order t o  get t o  where I 
was going by seven, see. Because about three miles an hour w a s  as fast as 
the average team-that's about what they walked, so if you was a going 
very many miles, you had t o  have at leas t  a couple hours s ta r t  t o  get t o  
where you was going, see. 

O f  c o m e  the people, most everybody, had a few calves and a few h o e  t o  
s e l l ,  but,we only sold them once a year. People didn't feed ho@ l ike  
they do now, they just ,  more o r  less ,  well, turned them loose out i n  the 
woods. The sows had pigs, they wasn' t shut up and pushed, see, and it 
usually took about a year, see, t o  get them fed out. But you didn't have 
no way t o  haul them, only I n  a wagon bed with some sides on it, but I 
have helped, oh, several tims, now the market . . . the livestock market 
was i n  S m e r  . They didn' t have much  market i n  Bridgepo'fi, the b ig  m k e t  
was  i n  Sumner, because it was just an old fm town and Bridgeport had 
kind of turned in to  a o i l  town, a boom town, you know. But it was f ive 
and a half  miles fYom where we lived in to  S m e r  and we have drove hog3 a 
couple o r  three different times, just  walked them in, you know, and we 
drove ca t t l e  a l o t  of tires, a l o t  of tims. Because you had nothing t o  
load them in--didn't have no trucks and sides and stock racks and all that  
s tuf f .  You just--we'd just w a l k  and drive them. 

But i n  the spring, when you1 d start farming then, l ike  I said before, you 
always star ted i n  sowing your oats i n  February o r  W c h ,  and you was ex- 
cused fmrn school a few days, whatever it took t o  help sow oats. 

P'& dad was working i n  the o i l f i e l d  at t h i s  tim. He was a punper f o r  the 
Big Four M1 and Gas  go^^, and they worked twelve h o m e  a day, seven 
days a week. 'Ihey had no time, no day off .  ?hey worked twelve and off 
twelve howls. That's the way they worked. Lenabelle, s i s t e r ,  and me, 
we was both a going t o  grade school, fo r  which we walked two miles t o  
school and two miles back. But another reason it took so much reat and 
so much stuff t o  eat--there was three dinner pai ls  t o  f i x  every day, see. 
Every mming, well, f ive days a week, when a l l  three of us was gofng, 
it was three dinner p a i l s  t o  f ix,  and then Eaads' was seven days a week, 
and it just took a l o t  of groceries--you had t o  have a l o t  of animals i n  
order t o  have qtuff t o  eat a l l  the t h .  

People put out a lot of garden and. they had t o  take care of it. A lot 
of it you would do with m e  horse. We had a one-horse cultivator and 
what they called a double-shovel that you pulled with one horse, and 
you could do a l o t  of your garden work thataway. 

Q. What w a s  a double-shove-I? 

A. Well, it w a s  a tool  that  was alnmst as wide-you planted your s tuff  
in r o w s ,  see, and say you had a t h i r t y  inch row here of vegetables, what- 
ever you had. Tnis thing had two big shovels on .it and one s e t  here and 
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one over here. (on each side of a row) 

Q. It was kind of l ike  a cultivator? 

A. Yes, and it had a handle on it. You could spread that  out o r  close 
it i n  a l i t t l e ,  see. You hitch one horse t o  it and go up and down your 
rows, help work your garden, but, you still  had a l o t  of work t o  do be- 
sides that .  

Then in the fall, the only way you had t o  save anything--we made murids 
and buried it, see. You'd dig a hole about a foot deep, around pret'cy 
good s ize ,  and you'd f ' i l l  that  fill of straw. We always buried potatoes 
and apples and cabbage, t&ps and, oh, anything that  would keep thataway. 
You start m m d ,  and l q y  that  around in  circles ,  then just build it up 
l ike  an ice-cream cone turned upside down, see. You'd bring t h i s  up t o  a 
point, then you covered tha t  with s t r a w ,  then you s tar ted  around that  with 
your shovel and you'd dig dirt and cover that  up till you got clew over 
the top of it. Then around the outside of that ,  you'd dig a l i t t l e  ditch 
and drain it, so the water would not soak i n  it so much, m off,  see. 
Then when you got ready t o  start using out of that-like th is  was your 
mound here, you go out there and up like t h i s  a l i t t l e  piece you'd dig 
you a hole where you could get your arm i n  there. 

Q. Out of the bottmi? 

A. Yes, and pul l  that s tuf f  out. Yes. 

It wasn't till, oh, probably, 1925 and 1926, along i n  that  period w k n  
they s tar ted  building mst of their gravel mads in Bridgeport township, 
and after the fanners got thew crop out in the spring, why then, different 
ones would go and help work on the road. You'd get a mile o r  two @;ravelled 
each surrmer, you know. 

Q. You had t o  keep up your own roads did you? 

A. No, you, oh, you got paid a L i t t l e  fo r  it, but there was nobody t o  
do that--you done it a l l  with horses, see. And the people then, i n  that  
township done it, but they couldn't do the road work until they would get 
crops t o  the place where, well, l ike  Granddad and me, worHng there tk 
gether, one of us miat go work on the road and the other one would stay 
t o  home and plow corn o r  whatever they was t o  do. It made a l i t t l e  extra 
money and that  's the way they got the mads bui l t  up un t i l  a l i t t l e  later 
then that ,  and then they f%ally--a township would get a hold of a Ca$ 
[caterpl l ler  t ractor]  t o  pu l l  the old raad grader witth, and the trucks 
finally be- t o  get t o  hauling some gravel in, but back before t ha t  they 
hauled that  gravel with wagons. Team and wagons. You couldn't haul1 a 
very b ig  load and you could only make, mybe two t r i p s  a day. You dip't 
get very far, see. You didn't get very far. I 

Q. Did you do any drying of M t s ?  

A. M t s .  C&, Grandma dried a l o t  of M t s .  Apples and peaches, a d  
apricots, m the chicken house. It was a pretty long bullding and on 



the south side of it, it had a porch concern with a tin roof. It wasn't 
too high, you could reach up there, see, and she Id lay down--well, like, 
old sheets that  wasn't any good any more, lay tha t  down there and spread 
her apples and peaches and apricots and a l l  that stuff she wanted t o  dry. 
She'd take It out there a certain time of a morning, you know, a f t e r  the 
dew was a l l  gone and the frost, and leave it out there till afternoon 
s a ~ t h ,  then go gather it all in. Then take it back out there the next 
day, till it was dried @no@, l ike  she wanted it. 

Q. How long did it usually take? 

A. Well, I don't r e m r & e ~ - i t  was quite a job, I don't ~ m e n b e r  the exact 
day, but then, it run in to  several days, it run in to  several days. It was 
kind of a slaw process, but they got her done. Like a l o t  of the other 
work; canning, cold packing that beef, frying down a l l  that sausage, and 
canning your stuff--they canned blackbemies and peaches, and a l l  that  
s tuf f ,  it took an awful l o t  of it. 

You had t o  figure on enough t o  m -you the year, you know, when you was 
canning it. Why, we always canned one hundred quarts of blackbemies . 
You'd get up early i n  the morning, as soon as you got your work d m  and 
we'd hitch up a horse t o  an old bug@;y and take o w  buckets and drive down 
across the f ie ld ,  back i n  the woods, t o  a blackberry patch and you picked 
till you got a l l  tha t  s tuff  fill and b m m t  it t o  the house. It just took 
a l o t  of s tuf f  t o  eat ,  and it took a l o t  of work t o  get it because you 
didn't e;o t o  town and buy it. 

Now once,in a while, on Saturday evening, oh, I ' d  get t o  go t o  town with 
Granddad, usually went Fn an Saturday evedng, and you'd get oh, some 
coffee and sugar and stuf'f , and his tobacco, he had t o  have tha t .  (laughter) 
But I t d  go along once in a while and smetimes when we got ready t o  start 
horn, be i n  the wagon or  the buggy, of course, why he would get ten or  
f i f teen  cents worth of bologna o r  cheese, and some crackers, course they 
had crackers se t t ing  around in barrels.  You bou@t crackers i n  the bulk. 
You'd just get a s a c k m ,  you how. Whatever you wanted. And going home, 
weld eat some of that, and boy, It 11 t e l l  you, that  w a s  a big t r ea t  t o  
get some of that  lunch mat instead of eating that  old f'ried down pork. 
( laws S 

But I 've know& G r a n d m a  t o  go for, well, I know that  there was yeass that 
she only went t o  town about twice a year. She didn't care t o  go t o  town, 
it didnt t  W e  her any difference. She'd go, oh, probrtbly around Christmas- 
the, she'd go t o  tam, and once through the s m r  maybe. 

Q. Her nam was? 

A. Bmm, Earma. It was her pmpert;y, her place, her folk's place. They 
hornsteaded it, and had a deed fo r  it made out on goatskin and signed by 
the President of the M t e d  StaCes. Her parents had it, she w a s  born and 
raised there, and lived there 95 y e w .  The s m  place. And then after 
Grandpa was @me, and then Dad was retired--he had h i s  heart attack--then 
of course, she was a getting--she was 95 years old, tha t ' s  when we mved 
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them in to  tm, up there i n  tha t  l i t t le  place. And then she lived alrnost 
another f ive years, see. For she was born in 1860 and lived till 1960. 
She was past;,99, but wasn't quite 100 yet, 100 years old. She had seen 
quite a b i t  of change i n  that len@ of the, I'll t e l l  you. ( l a m s )  

Yes. But there was an awful l o t  of hard work, and tha t ' s  the way you went 
along and done it, and it took an awf'ul l o t  of tim. Everything you had 
t o  do was by hand. You cut the t rees  down with a crosscut saw, and sawed 
them up, and then hauled them t o  the house too. Had a wood l o t ,  and s p l i t  
them. And you had t o  have e n o a  wood every Saturday. While I was out 
of school, we'd have t o  be sure and get up e n o m  wood t o  run you al l  
week, see, because, during the week, why, we w a s  going t o  school and Grand- 
dad was there by h ime l f ,  and Dad would e i ther  go t o  work a t  noon o r  get 
home a t  noon. And it didn't leave much tlm. (tape runs out) 

END OF TAPE 

A. Ply dad wo~ked fo r  the B ig  Four Of1 and G a s  Company. They worked 
twelve hours a day, seven days a week, and they had t o  wo~k e i ther  f r o m  
twelve noon till twelve midni&t o r  twelve midni@t t o  twelve noon. And 
the only way they changed towers is, once a mnth . . . 
Q. What does that  mean exactly? 

A. Well, you worked f'rom twelve till twelve, and they called it mrrl-ing 
o r  evening sh i r t ,  o r  tower. If you work at twelve noon till twelve rdd- 
fiight, tha t  was the evening sh i f t ,  o r  evening tower, from twelve fidnight 
t o  twelve noon the next day was the morning tower, see? Well, i f  you 
worked from twelve noon t o  twelve midnight, there was never a tim i n  there 
you could do anything of an evening; see. You couldnlt even go t o  ohurch 
on Sunday ni&t o r  you couldn't go anyplace. Because you worked every 
night, see. So, once a mnth, they would change towers, and t o  do tmt 
they had t o  work an ei&teen hour tower, where you would go out at twelve 
o'clock--you'd go out at twelve o'clock nmn, and work till s i x  o'clock the 
next morning, see. And the next man would corn out a t  six o'clock, i n  
the morning and work till midnigfit . Work a l l  day un t i l  mldni@t that  
night, and then you catre back, and tha t  way you went *om evening t m e r  t o  
the morming tower, see. 

And Dad worked-one tw he run ei&t  years, twelve hours a day, seven 
days a we&, and never W s e d  a tower in  that period of time. And that  
is a whole l o t  of the reason that  we have some pretty strong labor unions 
today. It took sonu; strong leadership and laws i n  order t o  stop that  kind 
of working. 

I was talking a while ago about the mads, building the roads i n  Bridge- 
port Township, tha t  's where we lived. We helped build just about a l l  the 
gravel mads. W e  walked two mile t o  school, my s i s t e r  and me, and when 
we was i n  the ei@th grade, why, Dad decided we could drive a horse and 
bu@y part  of the tim. In the f a l l ,  when we started, in Septenber and 
October, we @rove a horse and b w  tha t  year a while, and the roads was 
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good e n o m  we could @;et t o  school and back, So, we went over t o  the 
school house and bu i l t  a-just a s d l  f'rm l i t t l e  bui1dl.q--put some 
t i n  on it, fo r  the horse t o  stand In, i n  the day t h e .  But a f t e r  the 
pound begin t o  freeze, why, then the mads was so mu.@ that  you couldn't 
hardly drive, and then after it b e e  t o  thaw out, it got so muddy that  
it wauld get t o  where one horse couldn't even pul l  a buggy. I know the 
l a s t  the that  I can remTIJ3er that  we &bve a horse and buggy t o  school, 
w a s  when it was so muddy, it was so hard t o  walk that  you couldn't hardly 
make it, and we decided we'd drive a horse that day. And we got t o  school 
a l l  right, and then the evening, coming home-course it had thawed and got 
muddier yet and we got about half  way horn and the tugs broke on the har- 
ness and the horse l e f t ,  and went on horn and l e f t  us  se t t ing  there i n  
the bu@;gy! (laughter) We had t o  get out and w a l k  home anyway, and then 
I had t o  take another horse and a different set of hamess, and go back. 
I took a bigger horse, a work horse, and a heavier s e t  of hamess and 
went back and hitched on the buggy and pulled it out and got on the rest 
of the way home with it. 

But it was up i n  the, oh, up i n  the-t i l l  1926, along in  there, when most 
everybody begin t o  have a Model T Ford or  a car of some Hnd, and could 
begin t o  get around mst of the year. I don't remn-ber just w h a t  year we 
begin t o  get a l i t t l e  alcohol, and you'd learn t o  use alcohol in the radia- 
to r ,  but mst people would just dmin t he i r  radiator a t  n w t  i n  the 
wintertime. men, of a mrning, i f  you got your car st&ed you put a 
cardboard up i n  fmnt  of radiator, and a f t e r  it got warmed up, pour som 
water In it and go where you was a going and p a i n  your water out, then, 
and do the sam t h h g  over when you cane home. 

I know I s tar ted  t o  hi@ school i n  1925, had a mdel  T Coupe, and I' d 
have t o  f i l l  it up wlth water every morning and drive in to  town. Then 
when I got t o  high school, drain it, and then of an evening, when I got 
it started, and got rqy cardboard fixed I ' d  have t o  hunt up some water and 
fill up enough t o  get horn on because a t  that  ti=, there was very few 
filling stations. Probably only about two filling staklons i n  Bridgpport , 
where I went t o  high school. Tney didn't have water se t t ing  out t o  put 
i n  it, anytime. They didn't have much se f ice ,  you had t o  do 2t yourself. 
It was pretty tough getting in to  town and back and the tires that  you 
got for  your car  then was-only last you about flve or s i x  months. About 
that length of the, why, you'd have t o  have a new s e t  of tires, bemuse 
mst of the roads w a s  so bad. ?hem old rock roads we had then w a s  pretty 
hard on them old ti-, and your tires wasn't i n  too good a shape, then, 
anyway 

Q. WexmAhosetinflated tires or solid.. t ires? 

A. No, they was inflated tires, they had air i n  them, but a t  tha t  W, 
them r/lodel T Fords that we had then, you didn't have a spare tire or  
s p m  wheel, you had your t i r e  pwnp and your patching and if you had a 
flat ti=, you jacked it up and took it off and patched your h e r  we, 
put her back on, pmped your ti= up w i t h  you tire pwnp, and went on. 
Didn't have a spare wheel o r  spare tire. You had t o  change them ri&t 
there where you w a s  at. You had to patch it and go on. And I have had, 
oh, casings that  would get so bad by the end of the school yew, th& I 
put one casing inside of another one (laughter) t o  cover up the holes. 



Q. I w a s  hoping you'd te l l  rre a l i t t le  mre about the working conditions, 
l ike  when your father  w a s  working fo r  the Big  Four. 

A. Well, all the--working conditions were about the same for  the dif- 
ferent o i l  conpanies. %re was three companies here; the B i g  Four, and 
the C&io and the Snowden at McSweeny. But the working conditions were 
about the s m  and the wages was about the s m .  A t  that  time rqy father 
was working seven days a week, twelve hours a day. He was getting about 
seventy-seven dollars a month, for all those hours. 

I n  1926 a f t e r  I was going t o  hi& school and had got IIE a Model T Come 
t o  drive, I had t o  get some extra work along every once in a while t o  help 
pay expenses. We had a l o t  of horses, good horses and wagons, and at that  
time they wm using rrachlnes t o  work on wells with, and of course every- 
thing was done with horses and manpower. When they mved one of those 
mchines, they mved it with horses and wagons, and it took twenty-seven 
wagon loads t o  move the lnachine from one location t o  another, o r  one 
well t o  another one. Which, when they mved, nri@t involve, oh, w e r e  
f'mm one t o  four o r  f ive miles. But anyway, when they'd do tha t ,  theprtd 
h i re  extra team t o  help and I got t o  do som of tha t ,  and a t  that tipe 
we got f ive dollars fo r  a ten how day, fo r  a im.n and h i s  team. You 
w a s  supposed t o  work ten hours--youq d put in usu@lly, twelve or fifteen 
hours getting f r o m  your house t o  the job , and back home at ni&t. And then 
when you got how, you still  had t o  take care of your horses and hogs and 
do a l o t  of your other work. You w a s  lucm i f  you got done by e i a t  or 
nine olclock at night, and then get up a t  three the next mrming and start 
i n  again. 

But it made an extra--oh, maybe, most of the tim three o r  four days a 
month, I1 d s t ay  out of school and maybe get tha t  much work. It helped out 
a whole l o t .  And then it got, oh, a l i t t l e  l a t e r  on it got t o  where we got 
s i x  dollars fo r  ten hours work. A11 that  was for  the Ohio O i l  Company, 
but the other companies a l l  paid about the same thing. And your day was 
supposed t o  be h m  seven till five, but then if--whatever t k r ~  it took 
you t o  get done-I have, oh, l e f t  the job, when we was a moving tools, 
maybe you1 d leave the job at seven o r  eight o l clock at night. You had t o  
stay till you got your wagon unloaded before you could go horn, see. But 
then it didn't make any difference t o  the conpany, you just got paid for 
so many hours anyway. 

W e l l  then, they finally--the independent companies, finally got some 
small--Klee-tmc tractors  they called them at that  time, put on t he i r  pull- 
ing unfts t o  pul l  wlth and that ' s  when they first begin t o  do away with 
the horses, but the horses worked i n  the o i l f i e l d  up un t i l  1944 before 
they w a s  fYnally a l l  done away with, before the companies had got tmks  
and pulling units and--especially trucks big e n o m  t o  move these rnacRines 
with, and then they had to  get tractors-Cat Tractors in order t o  helplpull 
the trucks, t o  et throm the wintertime. It was up in 1944, around j tha t  
t b ,  b e f o ~  the team were a l l  done may with. But they had went t b u @  
t h i s  o i l f i e ld  all that  t h e .  

I went t o  work for  the Ohio Oil Conrpany then, i n  1932, as a roustabout and 
we worked nine h o w  a day fo r  fifty-two cents an how. We was supposed 



t o  work nine hours and then, agaln, thab was the sam thing, depending 
on what you w a s  doing. If your work was up, you got t o  go home. If 
something was tore up, had t o  be fixed, you had t o  stay. I f  there was a 
big leak o r  sorething, why, you just  stayed and worked until it was done. 

But Dad worked for the B i g  Four thrity-three years, until he had a h& 
attack and was forced t o  retire. They had no pension plan, no old 
benefits, of .my kind. He just wo~ked till he was too old and had a heart 
attack. He couldnlt work -re. He finally got t o  draw a little Social 
Security, but tha t ' s  the difference between the working man then and the 
way it l s done now. 

Q You to ld  me a story while the tape was turned off about, w a s  it the 
president, of the B i g  Four? Connrents he had about . . . 
A. Yes, the--at that  t i m e  main-man of the Big Four O i l  Company--I1ve 
heard him make the remark several t h s ,  that  he thought a dollar  a day 
was e n o m  for  any working man, and he [the working man] d i a l  t need any 
time off,  he was just supposed t o  come out and work. He [the president] 
had a good job, and he didnft ca,re about nobody else.  

Well, then during the Depression tire, or  af'ter the Depression, when 
Roosevelt w a s  elected, we s tar ted  i n  on the first of sorne different work- 
ing conditions. The Erst thing we had was a forty-four hour week and 
then we had a period of what they called the N.R.A. You worked four days 
one week and f ive the next, in order t o  rrake extra days fo r  extra rnen t o  
work, see. And they had t o  make it a l a w ,  they really had t o  go around 
and have people t o  enforce it, because the foremans of these corrrpanies, 
they Just absalutely was wrist it, and the superintendents and so fox-th, 
they wouldn't put up with it. They had t o  absolutely threaten them t o  put 
them i n  jail o r  something, see, i n  order t o  make them enforce t h i s  law, 
t o  let a man have a f e w  days off in order t o  take up some of the slack i n  
the unerrrploynmt, became there w a s  so many people that was off  and had 
no work and no chance t o  work. In the o i l  f i e ld  where I was a working 
at that  tim, you would wmk m d a y ,  Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday 
and then have Friday and Saturday and Sunday off .  Then there would be 
another crew, work-would get i n  five days, see. Where otherwise, why 
there would be just  s o  m.ny mn a working and they would just what- 
ever h o r n  they decided they wanted to.  

And the wintertime mkes so  much more work Fn the o i l  f ields,  with l ines 
a freezfng up, and they have t o  steam o i l ,  and i t ' s  a hard job t o  take 
care of it and get it shipped, so they'd work you a l l  kind of hours dur- 
ing the wintertime, i n  order t o  keep the whole o i l  business running, see. 
When the englnes and powers and stuff  went down during the ni@t, why, a 
l o t  of your lines would be froze up the next morning and theyld have--come 
out at fYve o'clock i n  the evening, and then have them s tay  out all night 
i n  order t o  watch so m n y  a f f e r e n t  jobs, t o  keep them a running, see, 
i f  they could. If they couldnlt, i f  they went down and they couldnl t 
keep them running, w e l l ,  then they was supposed t o  get al l  these water 
lines and stuff drained before they would freeze up. 

It wan1 t up mtil  about 1945 tha t  we had any labor contracts around in 
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t h i s  vicinity, where we begin t o  get days off,  and some vacation, and 
eight-hour day and a forty hour week, and such stuff as that  and maybe a 
l i t t le  ra ise.  In  1945 when the . . . contract with the o i l  workers d o n  
w a s  s i a e d  here a t  Bridgeport, the roustabouts and pumpers was drawing 
ei@ty cents an hour. And when I started fn 1932 we got flf'ty-two cents 
an hour. That's a l l  the increase we had got i n  that  period of time. But 
then now, since 1945 when they had t he i r  first O i l  Workers Intermatiaxil 
Union and we got our f i r s t  contract signed here i n  Bridgeport, now the 
m n  get $6.85 an haw, f o r  the same work that  we w a s  doing i n  1945 fo r  
eighty cents an hour. 'Iha,tls the difference there. (laughs) 

Tne old Ohio machine shop was-when I first went t o  work it was the Chio 
Oil Company instead of the m t h o n ,  then, but they had a complete shop 
there, they made everything that  was used t o  produce o i l .  Whole e w e s  
and powers and jacks and rod l ines and rod l ine  clamps, the whole thing 
was made riat here a t  Bridgeport. A t  one t2me they had the most complete 
o i l  Meld machine shop i n  the whole United States.  There w a s  s tuff  mde 
here and shipped everywhe~,  where there was an o i l  corrpany. Those old 
gas engines and o i l  engines and powers, they had about three different 
kind of powers they made. They had a power that  rwl with a worn gear and 
then they had a power tha t  run off of a big  belt-that run off of a big 
wheel. And then they had what they called a push and pul l  power. 

They s tar ted  out with their pattern man. He  made a pattern fo r  every 
piece of equipment that  it took tc--produce o i l  fn the o i l  f ie ld .  Then 
they put tha t  i n  t he i r  m l ds  and t he i r  foundry and they melted the i r  own 
kmn and poured it i n  the rough. Then, a f t e r  it cooled off and the p t t e m s  
w a s  took off and the sand took away, these pieces was all  moved from there 
t o  different buildings where they went t o  a different process. E x h  t im, 
cleaning it and blasting it and smoothing it, un t i l  it got up t o  whem the 
machine shop was, and that  was t o  the final job before it went out in to  
the o i l  f ie ld .  

But even t he i r  d r i l l ing  tools,  and what they called the fishing tools, 
which was-they had a l l  kinds and a l l  types f o ~ & e r e  you'd loose a s t r ing  
of tools i n  the hole and your w i r e  line would break, see, or  yould loose 
a baler,  o r  a sand pump. O r  you1 d run in to  different kind of formations 
that  took different kinds of b i t s .  Maybe you had iron t o  d r i l l  up ar@ 
somthing l ike  that ,  it to& a different kind of b i t ,  and they mde every- 
thing right there. Anything you broke w a s  took back i n  there. They done 
a l l  t he i r  own repair work, and they had a great big machine shop and a 
great big blacksn-dth shop where they done a l l  the i r  sharpening and welding, 
straightening and s tuff  of that  nature. 'Ihey had a mat big . . . three 
thousand pound steam hamraer and it too one rmn-that's all one mn done 
was-well,  was help1 the two blacksmiths, and he w a s  just am expert that  
run that  steam hamru3r. That w a s  jus t  his j cb . He looked a f t e r  the boilers 
and operated t h i s  steam h-r al l  the time. Then these older wells, a l l  
the old w e l l ,  i n  t h i s  part of the country, was star ted with a 24 inch hole. 
They'd go d m  a short distance and then as they went on down, they14 keep 
reducing the hole till they'd be finished up with a s i x  inch o r  seven 
inch hole. But they don't use any of tha t  anymore, they f inish up the i r  
holes i n  about four inch, five inch, and they run a complete string of 
four Inch pipe is about as big as they use. 
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But back then they had t o  start t he i r  holes so big at the top because 
they had t o  reduce it as they went down and I t  we- got less  than-than 
we had b i t s  that they called a 5-3/16 and 6-5/8 and 8-1/4 and 10 and 1 2  
and so forth. But fo r  each one they'd start out with a big hole and they'd 
just go so  many fee t  and then they'd reduce tha t ,  but every time they did, 
you had t o  run a different s t r ing  of pipe, see, where you was using the 
old s tyle.  So t h i s  machine shop also had great big machines that  would 
cut this pipe off and they had big machines that  would rethread it o r  
they'd make new collars for  it. 

As the wells got older and a l o t  of them was abandoned, well then you'd go 
fn there and mve in  a different kind of a machine and you'd start pulling 
th i s  pipe out, see. And yould get t o  the bottom of the hole and there 'd 
be a l o t  of these old wells would have f lve strin@;s of pipe i n  them, but 
they a l l  corn t o  the top of the hole. 

Q. And they all tapered--got s m l l e r  as they went down? 

A. No, it was the s m - w e l l ,  the hole got smaller, but your pipe w a s  
the same size. We '11 say we finished up a w e l l  with a 6-5/8 hole. There 
would be a complete s t r ing  of 6-5/8 would run fiom the top of your well t o  
the bottom, see, inside t h i s  other pipe. Tlen it w a s  hung on what they 
called a s e t  of casing slamps. It se t  right on top of your first string, 
see. And that  a l l  hung there. Well, when you abandoned that  well, or when 
the company Would abandon it they had what they called pipe-pulling mchines, 
and then you'd go in there and start pulling that  pipe all aback out again, 
see. And it was pulled and unscrewed by hand. 

They had what they called a l h e v e ~ s l i p l l  and a casing pole. A "never- 
s l ip"  was a piece of' iron--heavy iron--and made with ridges on the inside, 
sorething l ike  a file, see. And then it had a piece of w i r e  l ine  on it 
with a loop in the end. You'd put that  "never-slip" up against your pipe, 
wrap your w i r e  lfne around your pipe, and then there was a pole-had 
what they called a casing pole, and it was probably eight feet  long, and 
you'd s t ick  it thro- tha t  loop and then you'd have three men on each 
side of your pipe, see, and you'd blleak that  pipe. They all stood at 
different lengths apart, and you just handed that  pole--kept it going 
around and around, see, just from one man t o  the other. But you stood 
where there was two E n  had a hold of the pole at the same tire, see. Here 
and here and here and here and there and there. (gestures) And that ' s  the 
way you unscrewed your pipe. 

Q. Sounds l ike  it works like a post-hole dfgger. 

A. Yes, same thing/ your handle was just like the top of a post hole 
digger only the E n  stood around here whe~e two men would have a hold of 
each end of the pole at the sarne t b ,  see. 

Q. How rrmy guys did it take t o  do that? 

A. Well, it took s ix .  Oh, you could do it with four. You just had t o  
s tretch farther, Bee what I man, t o  make a complete revolution. But 
back then they had what they called casing crews which was s ix  men. They 
was used t o  working together, see. When you was pulling th is ,  your casing 
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crew would corn out and just  stay out there at the machine, see, and lay 
a l l  that  down, out in the f ie ld .  Then after you got done, got it done and 
the hole plugged--wl@ch a t  that  tine they didn't take too much in teres t  
i n  plugging the hole. They' d just  put about anything they could find i n  
them. B i g  old logs and posts and wood and chunks of iron and then, ah, 
the top-possibly forty oP f i f t y  feet--why you'd mix cement and pour i n  
there t o  the top hf the p w n d .  

Q. Was that  just a safety measure? 

A. Well, yes. 

END OF SIDE Om 

A. Over a period of time-you s t i l l  had som fluid i n  these wells, see, 
and i f  you wasnft a pwnping it out all the time like you was when it w a s  
i n  operation, why, it just gradually, through the years, would f i l l  up 
t o  where a l o t  of them-and a l o t  of them did run out on top of the ground, 
see. 

Q. Got o i l  on the f m  land? 

A.  Yes. They'd have t o  move a machine i n  and take out a l o t  of that  
stuff and then start th&r plug a way down deeper, see. Which, actually, 
according t o  the law-even t o  the l a w  at that  t h e - t h 8 y  was supposed t o  
have done, but there was nobody out there t o  knforce it see, and they just  
plugged them the cheapest ww-they could. 

But a l l  this pipe, they pulled out of there, and would lay it out i n  the 
f ie ld ,  around the wells. They'd lay down a str ing,  see, each different 
s ize  pipe, is called a s tr ing,  a s t r ing  of pipe, you'd l ay  it down and 
then youfd put some pieces on top of that  and then just  roll another 
s t r ing  on top of it, see, just kept a building it up. And a f t e r  you'd 
get a l l  that  done and get the pipe-pulling machine down and moved out, 
then they'd hire teams and wagons, mn,  t o  come i n  there and they'd load 
a l l  that  pipe up and they'd haul it i n  t o  t h i s  machine shop and they'd un- 
load it. And then theyfd put it thm@ the machine shop and they would-- 
i f  the collars was bad on it, pitted, you how, and maybe sorne of the 
threads would get a l i t t l e  bad, they would rrake new collars t o  put on it. 
If  the thread end was bad, they1 d cut if;' off and just cut new threads on 
it. 

What they c a l e d  the yard E n ,  working around outsitde, you how, they had 
it piled a l l  over that  place over there, oh, I don't know, I suppose there 
was possibly ten acres of it. 

Q. Is that  l ike  it is down around the new Marathon building? Is it any- 
thing l ike  that? 

A. Pipeyards, see. Yes. It was just piled up-each different s ize  was 
pfled up in a separate p i l e ,  see. And they would be pretty parCcicula~ 
about p i l ing  it up, because you had t o  protect them threads, see. If you 
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b q e d  them, got them bunged up, well, then you couldn't screw them back 
together. 'Iheytd keep them piled up out there and then they'd take some 
kind of o i l  and keep it painted and then as they needed it again, they'd 
haul A t  out and use it. And a lot of them independent companies got pipe 
off of them and used it. 

But as t h e  went on, they began t o  get r o t d e s .  That's wkm they done 
away with a l l  that pipe. Your rotary wells was dr i l led  with water and mud 
pressure, see. You s tar ted  your hole with the same s ize  as you finished 
up with, because it was a l l  done with water and mud pressure and as the 
drill went down through the earth, see, tha t  mud, well, d r i l l ing  mud they 
called it, It had s m  kind of f ib& rdxed with tha t  mud . . . 
Q. Did that  keep it f b m  caving in?  

A. It's mixed i n  a p a t  big p i t  and then p q e d  i n  there with a great 
big pmp. %he hole's drilled, and it plasters that  hole un t i l  they can 
&ill a complete well. Tnen when they get done, they just  run one s t r ing  
of pipe. They r u n  one string of pipe and then these companies l&e H a l l i -  
burton and Dow Well, do what they call, ttcemnting a stringt1 of Ijipe, w h i c h  
way back in the old days, when they run al l  t h i s  pipe they didn't have 
nothing like that, tha t ' s  the mason they had t o  run so much. But t h e y ' l l  
come out there now when you run your pipe and they hang it on the top of 
the hole. They still  use t he i r  old casing clamps. They h a g  that  s t r ing  
of pipe there. Then they ' l l  hook up t o  tha t  top joint and they ' l l  pwnp 
water i n  there un t i l  it goes clear  to the bottom of the hole and returns 
on the outside of the pipe. When that water does tha t ,  then they ' l l  start 
t he i r  cemnt. And they ' l l  pwnp that  cemnt i n  that  well un t i l  they force 
that  water out of the inside of the pipe. It goes t o  the bottom and then 
coms up the outside and this cement w i l l  follow it, see. And when they 
get tha t  down t o  where yow cement c m s  up--the waters a l l  gone and the 
cement coms up on the outsides of your pipe, then you how you've got a 
complete cement job f r o m  the bottom t o  the top on the outside of yaw pipe, .  
see. And then they shut t he i r  machine d m  and l e t  it s e t  a while. You 
l e t  tha t  se t  there then, f o r  72 hours, and that  cement se t s  and it holds 
that  s t r ing  of pipe. Then you can even take your casing clamps off see, 
where they was hung t o  start with. It 's just  two pieces of iron, gre t 
big long pieces, but i n  the center, see, i t t s  mde like this. See, t ! ere 
would be a half fit on th i s  side and a half f i t  on this side. These end 
pieces come together and you just  put a couple b ig  bolts  on each side and 
clamped them up t i @ t  underneath the co l lw.  

Q. Just kind of suspends it I n  the rriLddle of the hole. 

A. Yes. Just holds it there, as your water goes down inside and comes 
clear back up outside. Well then when you &--well, they just  c a l l  it 
the retum, when it does that ,  then they start the cement and when they 
get the re tum on $he cement, they know it!s from the bottom clear t o  the 
top, see. And then a f t e r  that  se t s  72 hours, well, they can go ahead and 
t e a r  the rotary down and it moves out and then i s  when you mim.your 
spudders in. Zhey usually leave around one hundred t o  one hundred-fifty 
feet  of cement inside the pipe, see. 

Q. When they move now, they just  leave the pipe and everything i n  there? 



A. They just leave it i n  there. And then when you mve your spudder 
in, you've got t o  drill tha t  cemnt out that 's left inside. W h i c h  .iS not 
a big job. You cm d r i l l  80 o r  90 feet of it in eight hours time. It 
don' t m u n t  t o  nothing, but then it ellminates all tha t  . . . different 
strhgs of pipe, which amounted t o  a l o t  of hard work Iq1 te l l  you. 

And now, they've got very s t r i c t  laws about plugging a well. These old 
wells, tha t ' s  been a s i t t i n g  that  hasn't produced for  a nmher of years, 
i f  they decided t o  plug it, you've got t o  move in  there and clean that 
well out, just  E k e  you w a s  a going t o  produce it r ight  down t o  the bottom. 
They have a s tuff  called "aqua-gel , " which is oh, it ' s a ldnd of a hmvy 
mud, is what it is, but i t 's  not quite like cenrent. You've got t o  clean 
that  well out clear t o  the bottom, then you pu l l  yom first s t r ing  of pipe, 
That first string of pipe is the one that  goes t o  the bottom, and in 
each formation you have so many fee t  of pay, which the record w i l l  show, 
may run anywhere from-in t h i s  old f ie ld ,  your sand, pay sand, would rwl 
anywhere h r n  five t o  eighty feet .  

Well, tha t ' s  what they called the o i l  sand. Therefd be that  mch formation, 
would be where your o i l  corn m m ,  see. 

Q. How does it mu?, fl.can top td bottom? 

A. Well, you start in at the top, you get down--just l ike  when they first 
dr i l led  th i s  old f ie ld ,  the first well they got was 950 feet  and it was 
ri&t here i n  town, so they ca-fled tha t  the Bridgeport Sand. Tnat was 
yowl f i i s t  pay. And the next well they dr i l led  was out here on the Buchanon, 
where Jhn-q~ En@;land. l ives now. Their first well was the Bridgeport, o r  
what they called the Bridgeport, then they dr i l led  out there and they got 
t h i s  other pay, at about 1200 feet ,  so they called it the Buchanon. Then 
they mved t o  different places and they got a Tracy and they got a Kirk- 
wood, jwt the peoples n a n ~  that  owned the fm a t  that  ttm. 

Q. "Payt' ,mans the first depth you h i t  oil, then? 

A. Yes, 

Q. Were those consid6;red deep wells at that  t i r e ?  

A. Well, yes, yes, because i n  Ohio and Pennsylvania, and W f e r e n t  puces 
where they had a i l  before they struck oil here-mast of the m n  that  work- 
ed in t h i s  old Meld. tha t  corn from these other ~ l a c e s .  the wav they 
explaned it, there wells run around s i x  hundred fee t ,  i i x  hund& an;d fifty. 

These wells here, like I say, the f i r s t  ones was at Bridgeport, which they 
got ri#it here i n  town. They called tha t  the Bridgeport pay. Then came 
the Buchanon and the Kirkwood and the upper Kirkwood and then below the 
Kirkwood a l i t t l e  piece they hit another pay, and they called it the upper 
and lower. Then on down below that a piece, around 1700 feet ,  they h i t  a 
pay on a Tracy farm. They called it the Tracy, and then on down about 1850 
feet they h i t  what they called the McCloskey. And that ' s  the way they 
named them then, but now they've renamed those sands too. Well, i n  this 
old f ie ld ,  they've still  got the Bridgeport and the Buchanon and the Tracy 
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and the Kirkwood but the same pay that  they h i t  i n  the boom at Noble and 
Salem, St.  James and a l l  those different places, they give them sands a l l  
d i f f e ~ n t  m s .  They c a l l  them, oh, St .  Louis L i m ,  Salem Lime, Allvoss, 
and Divonon. Those m s ,  how they got them, I don't how. But tha t ' s  
the way they got the Bridgeport and the Buchanon and the Kirkwood and the 
Tracy and the McCloskey here, they just n m d  it--what's called the sand 
o r  the pay--from the nam of the farm was where they--first struck t h a t  
PW* 

Now them deeper wells, at that  tim they called them deep wells, 1850 feet ,  
you took care of and pulled it and worked on it with what we called then 
an "Iron-King1' pulling machine, and done it with horses, see. And that  took 
a l o t  of the old tubing. The joints only run twenty o r  twenty-one feet long, 
and it took a l o t  of them t o  reach 1850 feet .  Where now you're standard 
size,  standard l e w h  tubing is 33 feet .  That's a joint now. But they 
called it a deep well because, well, it w a s  at that  tirne. Like I say, you 
run that  in over an old machine that  w a s  just operated by hand, and then 
when you pulled it out, you pulled it out with horses. And that made l o t  
of weight t o  handle with horses. 

Q. !?hat's how you to ld  me you got s tar ted wouldn't it, was pulling some 
of those wells with a team? 

A. Yes, well, the first teaming work 1 done w a s  helping move machines, 
them old cleaning out machines, and when I first star ted teaming, a f t e r  
I went t o  work, then, mustabouting, and even then l a t e r  on, when I started 
In doing som tool  dressing, they w a s  still  using steam. Using the boiler  
and steam. And then it wasn't too long a f t e r  that  they was s t i l l  f i r ing  
the boiler  with coal. 

Then they made a burner, t o  put in there that  you could fire yowl boiler  
on o i l  with, see. You'd have t o  t h m  your o i l  i n  by hand till you got 
up steam, and then you'd turn your o i l  on and turn a l l t t l e  b i t  of steam 
on and it made a blast--pressure, see what I mean? You put your s t e m  
with yowl 6 i l  as it went in to  the boiler.  Your bwner wasn't anything but 
just  a piece of inch pipe hooked up t o  your o i l  tank, struck i n  your boiler  
door, and then you had maybe f i f t een  o r  twenty l i t t l e  holes i n  it, just 
less  than the s ize  of a mtch,  see. And a f t e r  you got up e n o m  s t e m  
that  you had ~ i ~ l i t t l e  pressure, then you could turn a H t t l e  b i t  of steam 
In with yowl o i l  and it sprayed tha t  out i n  the sides of your boiler,  see, 
and boy, it mde a hot fire. 

We st i l l  had the old boiler  when I star ted teaming. When I first star ted 
it was just a boiler,  you had t o  put it on the wagon every time you moved. 
Then l a t e r  on, why, they got big i ron frasnes and im wheels and they put 
these boilers on what they called a boiler  wagon. It had a tongue i n  it, 
and then when you mved, you just hitched on t o  it. And i n  muddy weather 
why, there was l o t s  of times it would take f ive and s ix  teams, st- out 
i n  a s t r i n g  t o  mve it--even more. Why, I 've seen the tlme, the m d  was 
so deep where, you how, you was just  a dragging it, just a mat 
big ditch where you'd take it down across the f ie ld .  You mi&t have ten 
or  twelve t e r n  on there, st- out, see. 
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Q. Were those a l o t  b i m r  than, say, a thrashing mchfne? 

A. Well, it was on the same principle-about the same size, yes. Only, 
your thrashing machine had a great big  be l t  pulley up here, and your 
thrashing machine--had a great big platform on the back where you could 
carry enough coal t o  keep your fire .ping h r n  one m l s  farm t o  the next, 
see. Where your boiler,  you just pulled it lnko the location where you 
was  going t o  d r i l l  a well, and it just  set there. They hauled i n  the coal 
and just  t h m e d  it off i n  a pi le ,  w h e ~  you could just scoop it in. 

They dr i l led  som wells after I went t o  work with steam, where they worked 
twenty-four hours, see. And It would take one man and one team-a man 
and h i s  team would haul coal every day t o  this machine, you know, t o  keep 
plenty there for  them t o  use a twenty-four hour tower, continously. 

Q. Must have a t e  up a l o t  of coal. 

A. Yes, it took a lot-because your whole equipmnt was rmn with steam. 
Your generator that  youjhad for  your l ights  a t  ni&t, it w a s  run  with steam, 
too. Yowl forge that  you heated your b i t s  with, everything was rmn off 
that  steam. Course your d r i l l ing  r i g  m continously, &ng your tools 
up and down. You pulled your tools,  out, t o  mu? your baler and so forth, 
f t  took a l o t  of extra steam because you was pulling them tools so far, 
see. The old d r i l l e r  would always t e l l  you when he was getting about ready 
t o  pul l  out so you could throw i n  a l i t t l e  extra coal and have a l i t t l e  
extra steam. You usually carried about, oh, eighty pounds. You had a 
great big steam gauge set up on top of your boiler,  you know, and you'd 
usually carry about eighty pounds till you'd get ready t o  start out of the 
hole and you'd usually aim t o  have about a hundred when you'd start out. 
But, by the time you'd get your tools out of the hole, f t  would pul l  that  
back down t o  eighty. And then, of course, they'd run the baler three o r  
four times and go back In  and start; t o  work again, and your steam would 
level off again, see, but then you had t o  keep a fire at all  times. 

A s  far as the weathers concerned, the temperature didn't make any differ- 
ence. When you w a s  working, it just took so much steam t o  run your whole 
equiprent, you know. 

Q. I never realized that  steam w a s  so important. 

A. Oh, everything was done by steam, and even t h i s  old machine shop. 
The whole thing w a s  operated by steam, the railroad track came r i @ t  i n  
there and even a f t e r  I went t o  mustabouting, they-course they, at tha t  
tim, your lathes was hooked up with e lec t r ic i ty ,  but then they still  used 
the steam for  h e a  and an enomus  amount of steam for  that  foundry. 

The foundry, it w a s  just a great b ig  old metal building and had such huge 
pi les  of just wet sand that  you had t o  handle t o  rrake al l  those mlds 
with. And it was just about l ike  working inan old barn, you how. It 
took a l o t  of steam i n  there t o  have any heat a t  a l l .  But every so often 
they would get a carload of coal. We worked out i n  the d i s t r i c t ,  you know, 
l lke  oh, where I worked out there, they called it Tank City. Tnen, t h e ,  
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where Wes Saylor's toolhouse was and different farmbosses, when they'd 
get i n  a carload of coal, then each farmboss was supposed t o  send i n  a 
man and you got i n  that  car and thrawed her out by hand. 

Q. A whole railroad car fu l l ?  

A. Oh yes. Yes. They was plumb f'ull. You'd start i n  and you'd just 
have to--they'd get chunk coal, and you'd throw it out by hand un t i l  you 
got you a hole big enough--clear down t o  the bottom of the car, where you 
could start scooping, see. And that ' s  the way, tha t ' s  the way we unloaded 
it. I helped unload several of them. 

Q. I'll bet tha t  took you a while didn't i t ?  

A. Yes, but they didn't aim fo r  you t o  take too long, they wanted you 
t o  get it done and get back out on your regular job. 

Q. How mny guys would usually work on unloading one of those? 

A. Well, the famrbosses, they, som of them would send men pretty re- 
gular, some of them didn' t want t o  because it mde them short, see. Now 
a lo t  of times, m e  they' d be four, maybe there would be f ive a while, 
they'd come and get somebody and take them away, maybe when you'd wind up 
there would only be two o r  three, you know. 

And the szrme way with the i ron tha t  they m l t e d  in the foundry, t o  pow 
a l l  these patterns fo r  equipmnt. It was shipped i n  there by carloads and 
we went i n  and unloaded it the same way, just throwed her out. It had 
t o  be thrcrwed out by hand. Then it was loaded on--they had a l i t t le-or  
just a srmll gauge-just the sam thing as a railroad track. And they had 
cars Uke they have i n  mines, you h o w ,  you've seen pictures of them. And 
that  railroad track run from this p i l e  of i ron around t o  what they called 
a cupelo. That's the ou t f i t  they used t o  melt it with. But that  had t o  
be took up. That iron then was  loaded on platform and hoisted up, oh, 
I imgine what would be one s t m y  high or  somthlrg l ike  tha t ,  see, and 
stored up there, and then it was throwed down i n  this--what they called 
the cupelo, or what they heated tha t  iron with and then when it melted it 
would r u n  out t o  the bottom. But a l l  that  was done by hand. Tney had a 
regular faundry crew, see, But when t h i s  extra work corn i n  l ike  th&t , 
they'd do the same l ike  they did the coal, each faYmboss w a s  supposed t o  
send a man i n  t o  help catch up on that  extra work. And d l  t h e i r  pipe 
cane i n  the same way. It would come i n  on fBt c m ,  see, and be bound 
on there wfth, Eta1 s t r i p s  that would go clear mund and then it was 
riveted together to hold that pipe on there. But when you get i n  pipe, 
they always got in,  oh, a rimer of carloads. Tnen you'd have t o  go i n  
there and unload that .  

But then l a t e r  on then, they got trucks, and then they finally got smmt 
e n o w  t o  get trucks with a winch on them and then l a t e r  on they put on 
what they called a s e t  of jin-poles. 

Q. What's that? 
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A. Well, they c a l l  them jin-poles. You'd s e t  them up which would be, 
well, we' l l  say ten or  twelve fee t  high. And you'd put your pulley m 
top of that  and m your winch l ine  over the top of that ,  see, and then 
d m ,  and you could back up t o  one of those cam and put your winch line 
m u n d  f ive o r  s i x  joints of pipe, and pick it up off that  car and go 
around and back up and  la^ it down on your pipe skids, see. Where, l ike  
it was when we star ted,  there'd be two men on each end of your pipe, and 
they'd just have t o  get a hold of it and l i f t  it up there. Then we had 
skids l a i d  f r o m  the c e - s i d e  o r  the car-down t o  your pipe p i le ,  you know, 
and you j u s t  l a d  her up there and turned her loose and l e t  her roll. 
They1 d be two mn stand down there that  stacked it and collared, as they 
called it. They'd put a col lar  here, and then the next joint they'd put 
that  col lar  back behind this collar,  see. And t h i s  one out here. 

Q. Oh, I've seen it stacked up like that  . . . 
A. A man would stand there, one a t  each end of the pipe with a piece 
about three by three or  two by two or  something like that ,  they'd have one 
apiece, and as that  pipe rol led down off of that  car, they'd hold that  
wood against the joint laying on the skids, see, so it wouldn't burp-- 
bwnp the pipe, it would bwnp that  wood when you stopped your joint.  

Q.  Was that  those big twenty-one foot pieces, or  w a s  t h i s  sore other 
kind of pipe? 

A. Well, the last pipe that  I helped unload, they called it f ive inch 
casing. It was 33 feet  long, just the same as your tubing, too. Just 
the same as your tubing. Tnem trucks would haul, well, that  big Inter- 
national f loa t ,  I think it took s ix ty  o r  sixty-eight joints t o  top out 
a load. 

END OF TAPE 

A. This old pipe they l a i d  out on the ground that  we hauled in with the 
team, course, they called it 7 inch, 8 inch--8 U4, but the 8 inch pipe 
Uke they would get in new, we'd haul forty-six or  forty-eight joints:on 
those on those trucks, but the first t e a n g  I done, you would haul tqat 
i n  and it was only twenty feet  long-when we hauled that  i n  with t e r n  on 
a wagon, we t  d haul seven joints. 

Q. Instead of forty-eight. 

A. Yes (law) haul seven joints. Your bolsters on your wagon would 
hold four joints. You'd put ,on four joints,  put on three on top and that  
w a s  a load fo r  a team. You hauled seven joints. And then lo t s  and l o t s  
of times it would take two o r  three teams then, t o  . . . 
Q. To move seven joints? 

A. Yes, t o  get it pulled out on the road, you know, where one team could 
take it. 
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Q. Because of the mud? 

A. Yes, because it w a s  so muddy. Oh, a l o t  of tirnes, going across the 
f i e l d  before you'd get in to  the well, the mud would get so deep, a lot  of 
it you'd just have t o  r o l l  off and then just  hitch on t o  and then drag 
a couple joints in  a t  a time. 

But after they got th i s  equipmnt and then they got t o  making that  pipe 
in 33 foot joints,  course, they done away with the teams and began handling 
it !with trucks and winches and tractors ,  where they just  run one string i n  
a well. Most of that  w a s  f ive inch o r  four inch, but some times they ' d 
get in a few carloads of seven inch and they'd run it in a well where they 
wanted t o  produce two or three pays out of the sam hole, see. They'd 
have t o  have mre mom inside the pfpe, f o r  they'd run a string of two 
inch a l o t  of tims, and a s t r ing  of inch Anside t o  produce out of different 
PWS, see* 

Q. I' m not sure what that  mans, "produce out of different pays. 

A. Well, that  Is when they pump it from the bottom up t o  the top. They 
go out here and drill a well-they didn't keep that  up too long, it didn't 
prove too successf'ul--but, now a f t e r  they star ted t he i r  waterflood, re- 
pressure, they could run water i n  two different pays i n  the s m  hole 
very easy. And they done a l o t  of that .  They made that  work, rmde that  
work real good. 

These old wells, when they first star ted,  they'd just d r i l l  d m  t o  one 
pay. That ' s a l l  they knew, you how. 

Q. They wouldn't continue on beyond it? 

A. No, they'd just se t  the pipe there and produce it there. But now 
when they go out here t o  d r i l l  a well, they d r i l l  down t o  t he i r  Buchanon, 
or  t o  t he i r  Bridgeport, t h e i r  first pay, and they s e t  a joint of what they 
c a l l  "Securaloytl pipe that o i l  sand. Then they go riat on and d r i l l  
on down and they hit another pay. They can s e t  another joint,  they d.o 
the s a m  thing there, and then they get ready t o  produce that  well and 
they want t o  produce it out of two pays . . . 
Q. A t  the sam t i m ?  

A. Yes, You pmduce it out of two pays and they have two waps they can 
do it. See, t h i s  str@mx5f pipe they run i n  there is cemented. And t h i s  
Secmloy  pipe, they can completely eat up that  j o h t  with caustic soda. 

You've got t o  keep a very accurate record and measurement see, when they 
run tha t  pipe. That Securaloy joint has t o  be se t  i n  t h i s  pay sand. A 
joint o r  two joints,  whatever the depth of your pay sand is. And then 
when you get all done and you want t o  produce that  well out of two pays, 
you go f ight  below your joint--your first joint of Secwaloy pipe, or  
your last joint rather. You set one at your top pay and one at your 
bottom pay. You go d m  t o  tha t  bottom one and just below that ,  the . . . 
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oh, t h i s  tool  company at Olney, I can't think of the i r  name, but any 
they make what they c a l l  a "retrievable plugtt and you run that  down 
there with your cable tools and s e t  that  ri&t i n  the pipe, and it seals  
it off so nothing can go by it, see. Then Halliburton w i l l  corn out and 
they have this, what they c a l l  caustic soda, which is just l ike  liquid 
fire, worse than that,  and they. mix that .  They have a truck and they 
mLx that  and they put it inside of what they c a l l  balers, or'.. containers, 
and they mu? that  down there and they dump It right i n  tha t  Joint of 
Securaloy pipe. They run enough t o  f i l l  it fill, see, and i n  so many  
hours, that  caustic soda w i l l  completely eat  that  joint of pipe up. It 
w i l l  eat it up. And then, you i n  there with you--these Slurherjay o r  
Birdwell, i t ' s  a different type of service conpany is what it is, and 
they run what t h e y x a l l  a p e r f o r a t i z  gun down there and they ' l l  shoot 
that  cement f u l l  of holes, see, where your pipe was cemented, and that  . 

l e t s  your pay in. You go i n  there and break you plug loose, then, w i t h  
your cable tools and come on up the hole and do the same thing over a $ a h  
on yom next pay. And that  caustic soda, it l s  just  so hot that  it ju$t , 
it just actually--that's what it does, it eats  that  joint of pipe up. It 
just dissolves it, tha t ' s  a l l ,  it don't even-you can't even see it &en 
you--come it se t s  i n  there, i t ' s  e i ther  f ive o r  s i x  hours, seems t o  me 
Like it w a s  s i x  hours you l e t  that  se t ,  and then you could bale it out. 
We'd bale f t  out with our own tools  we used on the rig, see. 

Q. You man you'd bring the liquid back up? 

A. Wet d bring it back up t o ~ t h e  top and then dwnp it out i n  a hole. But 
even a f t e r  six hours, it was supposed t o  have spent itself, 5ee, it wouldn't 
eat no WE, but you'd handl& that  baler with a pa i r  of rubber gloves 
and s t i l l ,  a f t e r  s i x  hours, you'd take a hold of that  baler t o  hold to- 
you dzunped it in a barrel  and t h i s  b m l  had a piece of two inch i n  bottom 
and run way out there in a hole and i f  you held on t o  that  baler  very long 
without turning loose, it would Just sea l  your glove t o  it, it w a s  gtill 
tha t  hot. You can imagine about how hot it w a s  when they flrst m it i n  
there, see. 

Q. You say the baler was j u s t ~ w h a t  was it, just kind of a bucket or  
somthing, o r  what? 

A. It was a mtal tube. It's a tube, fits inside of your casing, and in 
the b o t t m  they have what they c a l l  a dart. It works on a taper, see. 
When it hangs down, Zt seals  it off .  You run that  down t o  the bottom of 
your hole, se t  that  down and when you s e t  it down, it pushes tha t  dart in- 
side your baler,  see, then that  lets &he f luid rmra. out. 

i 
But when they'd m that  caustic i n  the hole, Hallibwrhn would b r h g  
t he i r  clwn balers which was . . . 
4. Were they specially treated o r  something? 

4,. Yes, they was--they had somthing inside of them. And they'd hang 
them In the hole. Tney brought t he i r  own caustic with them, water and 
everything, and they mixed It. They had a thing on the truck just l ike  a 
great big cement mixer and they'd mix it and they'd dwnp it ri&t out-- 
ri@t in them balers and drop it r i @ t  dawn t o  the bottom of the hole, 
durmp It and pul l  t he i r  balers out and just as soon as they got them out of 
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the hole, they was standing there with hoses and had them hooked up t o  
fresh water and pwrrps and they'd wash them till they cooled them off ,  
see. 

But our old, regular balers that  we used wasn't nearly as heavy, they 
wouldnlt have stood it. And even a f t e r  it had been i n  there s i x  howls, 
when you pul l  them out, l ike  I say, i f  you fooled around and held on t o  
it too long, i t ' d  Just sea l  your glove ri@t fas t  t o  it, it was still  
that  hot. 

Q. Bad stuff. 

A. Yes. We had t o  weaY raln suits and ra in  hats, leather a l l  over, you 
know, and they had different things they kept there a t  the doghouse, o r  on 
the job for,  if you got any of it on you, i t ' d  really bum, you bow. 

And they done a l o t  of them thatmay, we done a l o t  of wells thataway, and 
it proved, it proved real successfm for  a long time. The only drawback 
t o  %t was there wasn!<t much repair or..mch work you could do working on 
them i f  t tey  ever went bad, see. If your pay sand, the pores i n  it, would 
plug up, the only thing you could do wodd be have a service company go 
in them and re-shoot it and Pack  it. 

Q. What s that   an? 

A. Well, Halliburton and Dowell ei ther  one has a process, they have what 
they ca l l  a f'fack sand, and i t 's  a--it's a l i t t l e  b i t t y  sharp g a i n ,  made 
kind of lUce the t i p  of an m w ,  and they have so much of that  and so 
much o i l ,  and they mix it all together. You go ri@t down below this pay 
l ike  we was talking about when we mul the caustic, and you'd s e t  that  same 
plug t o  hold your pressure so it wouldn't nothing go by it . . . 
Q. Nothing go down t o  the next pay? 

A. Right, and the i r  trucks work on the same principal as them big cement 
trucks tha t  run that  cement, they purrrped it f r o m  the top of the hole clear  
down t o  the bottom and then back up t o  the top, see. They'd mix tha t  sand 
and o i l  together and then they'd pump it i n  this well, through those per- 
forations, out into your pay with such presswe that  they forced tha t  sand 
out i n  there. And the reason they used that  three-come~d-what they 
called the frack sand-that,was supposed t o  lodge i n  your pay and then 
hold it open, see. Wouldnlt l e t  it collapse again. And it worked, real 
 success^. They done a l o t  of it, increased the production on a l o t  of 
wells, but every so often, i n  order t o  keep it i n  good shape, they've got 
t o  go back i n  and do the sanre thing. 

Q. Do they st i l l  use the soda and the frack method a lo t .  

A. Yes, they still  use it, only-come now, i t 3  been sixteen years, see, 
since I 've been on tools, and tha t ' s  w h a t  we was doing then. Now, what 
I've talked t o  the men, you know, in the last two o r  three years, they're 
just running regular pipe and then just shooting it flail of holes. Theyt= 
doing more perforating. Instead of Ywlning that  joint of Securaloy pipe 
and eating it up, they're just running regular pipe and, oh, I don't 
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~lemrrlber what they said, but then--they shoot a great nmher of holes i n  
it. 

Their perforathg guns just  operate wlth electr ici ty.  And they have, 
raybe--we'll say i t ' s  12 foot long and every so many inches, three inches 
o r  four inches o r  f ive o r  six,--whatever the engineers decide on, there 
w i l l  be so many holes i n  a certain depth, see. A service company w i l l  
come in and those bullets-they are just like a regular bullet, course 
they1 re a way bigger than you1 d shoot i n  a gun, regular hunting gun, but 
they're made on the sam princfple, shaped the same, and they have a r ea l  
shmp pointed jacket on them. And then tha t  guns got, l ike  I say, a hole 
i n  it every so many inches here. It's twelve feet  long, and every so many 
inches there would be a hole where they could put a bullet  U,. see,. They' d 
Load it and they m it d m  the hole, t o  the depth of where t h i s  pay 
is, and they can operate it, then, ri&t out the back of the truck. They 
can shoot the whole thing at one time oxthey can shoot one bullet  a t  a 
tim. And a f t e r  a l l  of them has gone off ,  they pul l  her back out. And, 
i t 's  been pretty successful-oh, w e  have went i n  then, after they've gone, 
and baled and cleaned a well up where we have baled som of them bullets  
out, where they didn't get where they was supposed to,  but then, they al- 
ways shoot enough holes i n  there t o  l e t  i n  the pay, see. 

Q. H m  fa r  back does tha t  mthod go, I man, is tha t  s m t h i n g  relatively 
new? 

A. Well, yes, we went f h r n  here t o  the Salem boom i n  1938 , 19 39. Nm 
in Texas and Oklahoma, where t h i s  Halliburton originated, they w a s  cernent- 
h g  wells. Tnen when t h i s  boom was i n  Salem, it was real ly a big boom, 
the only one I ever seen, tha t ' s  the first cementing rotaries that  ww 
moved in here and the first cemnt work that was done. And then, of 
course, it was here t o  s t ay  then, and it was used on the wells that  was 
dr i l led  over thisaway , afterwards. 

And then I don't haw exactly, but, oh, it was several years after that-- 
It was i n  the fo r t i e s  . . . before I ever seen any of those perforating 
machines ammd here, and then they wasn't very accurate, they was kipd 
of crude. But they inproved on them al l  the tlme you know. A t  first, t o  
start with, you would have t o  have your mach3.m at the well t o  hold the 
pulley up there t o  run their l ine  throw, for them t o  come out and operate 
and they had t o  have a generator and a motor and a l o t  of stuff on the i r  
trucks, where now, that's a l l  bu i l t  in, runs off  a battery, see, just l ike  
you'd like yould plug in your electm'city here Fn the house o r  
Theylve got a, oh, you've seen them on the road, I Smagine, 
  anger, electi3ctt o r  s m t h i n g ,  I forget just what it is, but i t ' s  a 
great big enclosed body on them, you know, and i n  the back there l s two 
great big doors and al l  t he i r  equipmnts in there . . . 
Q. It ' s just a portable generator? 

A. Yes. They have t he i r  spools with a l l  t h e i r  w i r e  line on it and the i r  
guns and everything and then gauges and stuff, maswIng lines that  shows 
you just  exactly where that  gun is--at what depth-and how many feet and 
they can shoot one bullet at the top and o w  i n  the middle and one i n  
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the bottom, one here and one there, just  by different buttons In the back 
of that  thing. 

But now in Texas and Oklahoma, course, they had big boom, you hm, 
moreL,than they did here, and that ' s  where them companies moved from, 
then. They mved in  here and then it was in 1950, 1951, when they star ted 
t h i s  repressure-water drilling wells, and then the idea of producing out 
of two different pays, of flooding two different pays i n  the s a r ~  hole--or 
even three. That's when these perforating companies and eemnt companies 
and a l l  them moved in to  tMk old f ie ld .  When they dr i l led  these new wells 
then, they dr i l led  them all  with rotaries  and one s t r ing  of pipe . . . 
Q. Instead of several. 

A. Yes, and tha t ' s  when Halliburton and Dowell and al l  these perforating 
cmpanies al l  moved i n  t o  t h i s  te r r i tory ,  because that  !s where the work 1 1  

was going on. 

Q. Halliburton's still  around, areli't they? 

A. Yea, Halliburbbn and k w e l l  and these perforating companies. I s e n  
a perforating truck go by here today. Because, Marathon, of course, 
they're still  a d r i l l ing  iqput wells for  this--they're still  water flood- 
iw.. They d r i l l  one producer here, (ppttws) and then they d r i l l  faw, 
water wells around it. They're s t i l l  doing a l o t  of d r i l l ing  and flooding. 
I just see about two of the m3.n perforating out f i t s  is left here, I think. 
Birdwell and Slmberjay is about the only two you see. They'll do that 
fo r  a long time, I suppose, and then they ' l l  COTE up with s m t h i n g  else, 
I reckon. 

For a long t*, everything was done with glycerine, see. All that  shoot- 
ing. A t  one time before w e  s tar ted,  the company did, before they s t m e d  
using these perforating guns and fracking, when you completed your well, 
got it &Llled down there, then the next thing they'd do I s  call a shootep- 
what they called a shoo te~- fmm Du Pont. He'd come out with a pick-up 
load of glycerine and they'd shoot a hole Fn the bottom with glyceriw, 
see. You'd s e t  your pipe on top of yo-what you c a l l  your pay instead 
of se t t ing  your pipe thm~..@~ It. They'd s e t  the pipe on top of it and 
you drill on down, oh, so lllany feet ,  and then they'd set that glycerine 
down there and then set it off ,  see. Theyt d have a great big reservoir, 
theyf d pmp out of that.  

Q. Has that got anything t o  do with that  explosion they had j wt  d a q ~  
the mad a piece--what they c a l l  glycerine creek--has that-got anytBing 
t o  do with that? 

A. Tes, it 's just d m  there by Jack Dunlap's, that brldge down there. 
Course t o  start with they hauled [glycerine] i n  a wagon with t e r n ,  and 
they didn't have a very good way t o  take c m  of it and that  man Nt that  
bridge m@, you how, the wagon ccm up and went on the bridge, h i t  her 
too hard and two cans h i t  togekher and went of f ,  and blawed up the whole 
load. 

Q. Md that happen before your time, or, when did tha t  happen? 



A. Well, course it happened before I was old enough t o  be a wo&,ing, but 
I can re&er when I heard parents t a lk  about it. For the fact  that  
I think, oh, the biggest part of that  m they ever found,, I think, was 
mybe, one finger, o r  so~ th in@;  like that. And then here at Crossroads 
School, see, itfs been a good while ago but then, i t ' s  not been that  long, 
that  kids at noon--running around out there-you know, where Crossmads is 
out here? 

Q. Yes. Down by A r t  Shuff's. 

A. Yes, used t o  be back of it, course it 's all cleared out and there' s 
houses i n  there now, but there used t o  be a creek rmn down t h r o w  there 
and a kind of a dunping y m ,  and the kids g ~ t  out i n  there and they was 
a looking fo r  a can t o  play shiny with. And they picked up a can and 
took it up there In the yard and hocked it m u n d  a while and finally it 
exploded, and they found out afterward, it was an old glycerine can that  
had been thrown away. 

Q. It was empty but it had that  much residue i n  i t ?  

A. Yes, it had that  much In it. It kil led,  oh, a nmber of children, a 
whole n~mS3er of--I forget exactly now, but it killed a lo t  oP them. 

Q. When was tha t  about, just  kind of i n  general? 

A. That was i n  the l a t e  twenties, i n  the l a t e  twenties. SOE shooter o r  
somebody had just thmwed a can away and there had been glycerine i n  it. 
It mL@t have been a l l  poured out but, course, it wouldr~~t  have took a 
half a teaspoorful, see? 

Now, ri@t out here on the Klan F m ,  back there in the wood, tha t  l i t t l e  
brick concrete building, well, tha t ' s  what they call-or did then--they 
called that  a mgazine. That's where the people tha t  made glycerine, 
they'd haul it i n  there and unload it. And then the man that  done the 
shooting of wells, i f  you wanted a 50 quart shot o r  a 100 quart shot, o r  
a 150 oz whatever you wanted, he'd go out there before he come out to 
the well and put tha t  i n  h i s  truck, see. But by then your pick-up 
trucks, they had a special bed made on the back of them and--that 
glycerine, it was real heavy, it Is heavier than water, but it w a s  put 
in to  two-gallon cans. And they'd take t h i s  pick-up bed and it was made 
with Mdividual. holes that would just  hold one of them cans, see, and 
that hole was lined with, oh, stuff that  looked like sheep-wool. And 
then there'd be just raws of them cans just se t t ing  i n  there, i n  a special 
covered bed that  was mde especially on the back of a pick-up, and it was 
rea l  safe. I never did hear of a driver h i t t ing  a hole o r  something 
enough t o  se t  off a load wlthin a pick-up, cause them cans was packe+-set 
fl&t down inside of a, oh, that  stuff was tha t  thick around them. But, 
where they had t o  be so cauleEul, w a s  when you l i f t e d  it out of there and 
camied it up t o  the well w h e ~  you w a s  going t o  pour it in your container 
t o  let i n  down in to  the hole. You didn't want t o  stub your toe and fall 
down o r  sorething! 

Q. Really! ( l a w t e r )  
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A. Those pick-up trucks had a l i t t l e  winch i n  the back of them that  
was run with hydraulics, o i l ,  you knm, and had levers there t o  operate 
it, and maswing l ine. If you wanted they had ten-foot containers whSch 
was, oh, mde fight down here. You r?ezrrember Bedford, run this t i n  shop? 

Q. Right down across Pan Abells? 

A. No, fight across fYomthe Christian CPnuroh. Bedford Tin Shop. Well, 
it was just--&, mde l ike  stove pipes, see, about that  b ig  m m d .  Some 
was that  big, some bigger, but they was made i n  ten-foot lengths and each 
one of then, according t o  the s ize,  whether it w a s  two, three, o r  fw 
inch, would hold so many quarts. S a y  you wanted 100 quarts, they would 
each one of them have a l i t t l e  bale i n  it. They'd hapg one of them in 
the hdle. And they'd pour it f'ull. ?hen they'd hook another one on tha t ,  
pit& it up, take the bar out, you had that  hanging on a bar, and pick it . men you'd l e t  tha t  other one down and stick a barr two@ your bale, 
then yould fill it, see. And do the saw thing on dawn. 

Q. You'd have a whole chain of them? 

A. You'd have a whole chain of them, till you had e n o m  of them s- 
out t o  hold your 100 quarts o r  seventy-five, o r  whatever it was. 

On the end of t h i s  measuring l ine  they had a special hook that  hooked in 
your l a s t  one tha t  you f i l l ed ,  see, and It was a p a t  big brass hook and 
it hooked like th i s ,  and inside of it' it had two other hooks. And you 
hooked that  up on one of these notches--course your other two hooks there 
was for  safety first i n  case anything did slip, it st i l l  had two chances 
t o  catch it, see, you wouldnl t drop it i n  the hole. Then the shooter 
would run that  down t o  the bottom of the hole un t i l  all these cans se t  
d m ,  see, and then that  hook was made so that  when he s e t  that  down and 
l e t  a l i t t l e  slack i n  his l ine ,  than he'd give it a jerk, like tha t ,  hook 
it up ti@;ht, then when the wei@t of that  hook pulled it back, i t ' d  corn 
unhooked. Then he Id pu l l  h is  line out. 

And he had what they called a time bonb . And he could s e t  tha t  for  wpll, 
any amount of hours, it didn't make any difference. If you wanted t o  go 
of f-which the company did-we l d run that in the afternoon and he ' d s t L 
that  so it would go off at seven o r  seven-thirty o r  eight o'clock the next 
mming, see. He'd se t  it and hook that  on his l ine  and run it down there 
and set It ri&t on top of that glycerine. And then held unhook f m m  it 
and pul l  out. Then you put in . . . oh, usually, about f i f teen  t o  twenty 
feet of pea gavel. You1 d pour it i n  the top d$ your well, in the casing, 
and it 'd go dawn and s e t  rimk ;on top- jus t  seal the top of it, see. , And 
yould put--well, you'd put it on there un t i l  you'd bring your gravel up 
in your pfpe, possibly, five foot, see. And then this Halliburton, tbfs  
s m  Hallibmbon outfib, would come out wlth what you called Calli-Seal, 
and the s a m  type of balers. They had a mat big thing l ike a concrete 
mixer and they'd mix that  Calli-Seal. The reason they used Calli-Seal 
w a s  because it set up just as hard as c e ~ n t  i n  just 90 minutes. Just 90 
rrhutes. Instead of having t o  l e t  cement s e t  fo r  eight o r  ten hours or  
so long, thls stuff would s e t  i n  90 minutes. You'd dump enough of that  
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Calli-Seal on top of that  gravel t o  f i l l  up inside of your pipe, pro- 
bably seventy-five o r  ei@y feet.  After it got se t ,  then, 90 uihutes 
l a t e r ,  you'd run water in there t o  f i l l  fmm there t o  the top of the hole, 
so yout d be sure and have plenty of weight, and sea l  that  shot i n  the 
bottom. And pea and Calli-Seal, protected the pipe too. 

The next mrntlng, a t  the  ti^ that  borh was supposed t o  go off ,  the shooter 
would corn out and he' d go out away f r o m  tha t  w e l l  about, well, probably 
six,.-seven hundred feet ,  and he had an i m t m n t  he s e t  down on the 
ground tha t  w a s  made in  a box and had a bunch of guages on it and he had 
a long m d  hefd  s t i ck  i n  the ground, then he'd hook wires t o  that.  A 
sound deirice w a s  what it w a s ,  see, and when that  bonk would go off, you'd 
see them gauges mve. 

Q. I wondered i f  you could fee l  it, o r  anything? 

A. Well, there was times that  you could feel a movement on the growld, 
but you couldn't hear anything, on account of the way you had it sealed 
off ,  see. Now, i f  you was just  kind of experimenting, and you just wanted 
a, oh, we ' 11 say a 10 o r  1 2  quart shot, o r  j ust one of them cans flill , 
theyld rhn ,it d m  t o  the bottom of the hole. They had a different kind 
of l ine  and a different kind of a hook fo r  this, a different Wnd of a 
deal. Then, you wouldn't unhook h m  it. Before you put your line on 
your can with your glycerine i n  it, they had a thing that  was--you've 
seen a window weight? Window wei&ts, out of a window that  holds your 
window, a piece of iron about that  hi& and about that  b ig  around? Had 
a hole clear  through the middle? 

Q. Oh, yes. I 've seen them. 

A. %eytd run that l ine  through there, and you'd stand there and hold 
that at the top of the hole till it got that  glycerhe on the bottom. 
They called it a squib shot. When you got that  glycerhe s e t  down on the 
bottom then he Id hold h i s  l ine  twt and you' d turn that  piece of iron 
loose and it would follow that.lLne down there, see, till it h i t  tha t  
glycerine and set it off.  Just f o r  a l ight  shot that  would work, it 
wouldn't hurt mything, it just give you an idea, you know, whether you 
was going t o  open your pay e n o m  t o  make-make enough t o  pay t o  produce. 
If it looked like it was--come when you first dr i l led  it you had a good 
idea--you put i n  a big shot, but i f  you didn't, you'd run that,  what they 
called a squib shot. And then you just  dropped that  iron on there and 
put her off ,  youfd get a boom thataway, you could t e l l  when that  went 
off. (laster) 

But then after they s t m e d  i n  on t h i s  w a t e ~ f l o o d  and decided t o  produce 
two and three pays out of the same well, why then they f inal ly just  quit 
using glycerine and just perforated and Packed al l  together, see. There 
was about four different glycerine companies here. There was one in  Law- 
rencevil lesh Po&, there was two i n  Mt. Carmel, and one i n  Salem. The 
companies used to, you bow, divide up the work, they'd c a l l  different 
ones-oh, at one t h ~  there they had thir teen cleaning out machines running. 
And they'd be shooting, mybe, three o r  four wells the same day. They'd 
had the different shooters out, but I don't t h b k  there's a one l e f t  now, 
they don't shoot a well now at all, everything is done with perforating 



guns and . . . f'racking and acid and so forth. Even i f  you got a s t r ing  
of pipe i n  the hole and you're trying t o  pul l  it and it ' s hung up, yau 
can't get it loose, they've got a sound device on these perforat* 
trucks, now, they can run d m  there and it th~nrrps inside that  pipe see, 
and you get t o  where tha t  pipe is fast-you get a a f f e r e n t  sound, a dif- 
ferent vibration. They got-it's run on a m t e r .  You got your exact 
footage. Pul l  tha t  out, and they got another ou t f i t ,  it works on the s m  
principle as elec t r ic ,  but it work just l ike  a burning torch and they m 
that  down that  hole and they've got t he i r  exact masurement, see, and 
they tm that  thing on and then turn it around and it w i l l  bum that  pipe 
off. That that  I s  hung up you can leave i n  the hole and what s on top, you 
can pul l  it out. Just absolutely cuts her apart, r j@t  down there i n  
the hole. Just l ike  burming it off with a torch on top of the ground. 

Now, a long t h  ago when they worked on cable tools, they had a th i rg  
that  would cut it off. It was a boo1 that  f'it just inside the pipe. It 
had knives i n  it l ike  you w a s  going t o  take a cutter  and cut off a piece 
of two-inch--you seen that .  It had knives fixed inside of it. And you 
run that  down there and set it where your pipe was fast, and then you 
had an out f i t  that  you put on your tubing that  had a--mayldrill on the end 
of it, -.-it was  called. You run  tha t  down there and tha t  run down inside 
of this--it was tapered, see, and it run down Inside t h i s  tool  and crowded 
them knPves right against that pipe. Then you started turning your tool.  
Then you tumed that  tubing and let it down a l i t t l e  b i t ,  you could tell 
by how hard your tubing w a s  turming, how much your knives w a s  cutting, see, 
and you'd keep l e t t ing  that down un t i l  yout d push them h i v e s  far enough 
that  they ld cut t h r o w  that  casing, see. Then you'd have t o  pul l  y m  
tubing out and go i n  and take your tools and go i n  and pick that  cut ter  
out of there. Tnen you s tar ted  and pulled your casing. 

Q. You tumed that  thing by hand, you man? 

A. Yes, you'd have t o  turn your tubing. You put your tubing tongs on 
and just  keep a turning, see. 

Q. Must have been sharp knives t o  cut that  stuff. 

A. Yes . . . yes, well, it was just  on the same principle as your--jwt 
yowl cut-offs, where you'd lay a joint of tubing down here, I've got a 
s e t  of them hanging d m  there at the barn, I can show you. It's got three 
knives i n  it. One se t s  out of here (gestures) and two down below, see, 
in the curve. You put it on there, twn yowl handle till you get your 
knives d l  se t  on there, and then turn it around your pipe, keep screwing 
it down, keep your knives cutting. And t h i s  was the sam principle, only 
it was a way d m  i n  this hole, we'll  say, f i f teen  o r  sixteen feet. And 
just worked on a taper, a mandrill went down inside of it, and those knTves 
was spring-loaded, what they call spring-loaded. When you pulled your man- 
drill up they c m  back up inside t h i s  tool, they didn't touch your plpe. 
You let  this d m ,  it forced them M v e s  out, and you just turn your t u b i n g  
up at the top of the hole, see, turn your t&ing mound. 

END OF SIDE ONE 
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A. Well, down there i n  the thicket, over there a t  Wests, there is 
still--the only one I know of t h a t f s  set t ing out i n  the meld l ike it 
w a s  used, there--is a gas engine, an old th i r ty  horse gas engine s e t t h g  
down there. 

Q. You man mtural gas? 

Q. Yes. Well, lLke they used i n  the--yes, l lke they used i n  the field-- 
you how, running i n  there. Setting on the block, l ike they se t  it, and 
I just thought-you've never seen one of them, have you? 

Q. No. What- do they use it for, just l ike a gasolhe enigne? 

A. Well, it was used for- that ' s  what they m the power for, t o  run the 
well. 

Q. Oh, they jus t  took it off the natural gas of the well? 

A. Yes, where you're running your well--your engine--just like this 
l i t t l e  unit down here. You engine ran off the gas that pun ofE the w e l l ,  
see. 

Q. Instead of gasoline. 

A. Yes, they didn't use gasoline. I just t h o w t  maybe you'd like t o  
see the engine, I forgot it today. 

Q. Yes. Is it bigger . . . 
A. Yes, It ' s  big! I could show you. 

Q. One thing I was gotrig t o  ask you, you t o l d  me that  when Roosevelt got 
elected, that was the start of sow different kind of conditions, like the 
N.R.A. I just wondered what you t h o m t  of Roosevelt and what kind of an 
effect he had? 

A. Well, it was just a whole reorganization of the whole thing, see. 
m a t t s  where all this--actually where all this give-a-way stuff started. 
And i ts  never stopped, it 's just snowballed ever since. The first thing 
he s tmted  was what they called the W. P .A*, which was--no age lirrilt of 
anything, everybody that  was out of work--&, l e t ' s  see, you only got--1 
never did work on it but then there was hundreds of people that did. The 
majority of them that lived i n  town that didnft  have a thing, see. Oh, 
I don't think they got but fifteen, twenty cents an how, mybe sometqing 
l ike that ,  you larow, Just something t o  buy some groceries with. 

Q. What did you think bf him personally, though? Did that make him real 
popular? 

A. Oh, land yes! He was elected every yeax till he died, see. 

Q. Because you hear now, a lo t  of people i f  you mention Rossevelt, they 
really Uke him o r  they really hated him, you know. 
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A. Well, of c o m e ,  l ike'  I say, that  w a s  the start of all this give-a- 
way stuff. The W.P.A. . . . and the N.R.A., course the N.R.A. wasn't a 
give-a-way that  w a s  the way you worked t o  cut down your hours in order to ,  
maybe, put a few mre rnen t o  work, see. But he had the W.P.S. and the - 
C.C.C. camps, I belleve they calledthem. 

Q. Oh, I've heard of those conservation. . . . 
A. Yes, and what was it, seemed t o  l ike  there was something else,  
But then it just went f r o m  that t o  different farm program and . . . oh, 
even up tfll I w a s  married. A t  that  age, see, twenty years old, and long 
a f t e r  tha t ,  i f  a person was d m  and out and didn't have anything, abso- 
lutely nothing, why he went t o  the supemisor and he [the supervisor] give 
them an order. They could go t o  the s tore and get a pai r  of shoes or  some- 
thing. t o  wear o r  a few gmceries, see, And then that  has went on mtll  
i t s  p w e d  in to  the re l i e f  and tha t  s tuf f  ncw, see. 

Q. So that  was kind of the beginning of welfare? 

A. (1-s) She r e d l y  got out of proportion. And nobody's ever stopped 
it. 

Q. What year did you get married? 
A. 1930 

Q. 1930. How did you m e t  Grandma? 

Q. Her dad and your dad, were they working together? 

A. Oh no, he worked for the Chio, Dad worked for  the Big Four. That 
was when Hoove~1:wa.s defeated i n  the Depression. 

Q. You to ld  IE one time that  it seemed l ike  people that  lived i n  the 
country didn't have it quite as tough as people that l ived in the ci ty .  

A. Well, it w a s  the fact that  you could go out and cut you some wood. 
You could keep w m .  You could put out a U t t l e  m e n  and you could 
have a few hens, which about everybody did, and a cow and stuff  l ike  that. 
You had something t o  eat .  If you lived i n  town, just i n  a house and l o t ,  
why, there was absolutely nothhg fo r  you t o  do. People didn't have a, 
dim. Different tm and counties would have what they called soup Unes. 
You'd just  l ine  up and w W  through a building . . . 
61. Did they have those here i n  t a m ?  

A. No, I don't think they ever had one here i n  Bridgeport. They had them 
in Lawrenceville. Well, they mi@t of had them here, I don't remrher 
exactly. But you ' d get a bowl of soup and maybe a s l i c e  of bread o r  
somthing l ike  tha t .  But i n  the c i t i e s ,  wly land . . . the l ines would be 
lined up fo r  blocks and blocks. Tnat ' s a l l  i n  the world they had, you 
how. Yes. Well, just t o  give you an idea, I know I've to ld  you before, 
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but W u r g e r  w a s  sold f o r  three pounds fo r  a quarter. 

Q. What would the price have been normally? 

A. Oh, w e l l ,  probably twenty-five o r  th i r ty  cents a pound. 

Q. For one pound? 

A. Yes. Yes. 

Q. How do you thinlc &pression compares with inflation? 

A. Well, there i s  no comparison. Tne Depression, there was nothing. Now 
there are people who get a years unemployment. They can draw 56 weeks 
ml't it? 

Q. Somthing l ike  that ,  yes. 

A. And then they get an extension and they get food stamps and they get 
so much, they get t o  where everything else runs out, I suppose they just- 
relief just  keeps them, don't they? Far as I know. 

Q. Boy, you got me! 

A. -%hey just go and get so much groceries. I don't hear of anybody 
starving. 

Q. L)ontt see them do you. ( l a m t e r )  

A. But tha t ' s  the difference between the Depression then and the infla- 
t ion  now. People gets out of a job ri&t now, they don't womy too mch, 
I don't think, right then, it 's just-like a piece %n the paper. Well, 
just  last week--the International Shoe Company is moving out of Flora, 
shutting, down. They put something l ike  three hundred-fifty out of work. 
Well, when i t 's  a l l  phased out and they mve. But it went ahead and s a d  
that  Flora and the people wouldn't fee l  any big impact or any trouble 
ri&t now because all them people would draw about a years unemploynaept. 
And thep is when it w i l l  h i t ,  see. 

Q. You mntioned one tim how things changed about 1945 when the d o n  
started. I ' d  lfke t o  know how that  a l l  came about. How did tha t  get 
s tar ted i n  Bridgeport? How were you involed i n  i t ?  

A. Well, now sombody, I donf t remember just  who, but somebody had t o  
contact the International representative, see. And they come i n  t h i s  
part of the country and they went t o  work on the refinery over here i n  
Lawrenceville and on a11 the production, see. Somebody-course when it 
be& t o  first start around, why a l o t  of people, well-everybody, was 
scared. And it had t o  kind of be done i n  secret, you h a w ,  your meetings 
and kind of get organized and get a sigped up, learn something 
about it, everybody was green. 

Q. When did that  s t a r t ?  
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A. Well, it s tar ted  i n  1943, see, and it takes a long t i m e .  We final ly 
had our election and had o w  first contract i n  1944. Yes. Up till that  
t b ~ ,  you had no benefits whatever. You didn't even have a vacation o r  a 
day off o r  nothing. They could just  c a l l  up--well, you was supposed t o  
have Sunday off, the roustabouts tha t  is. Now the pumpers worked every- 
day- 

Q. Could you explain the difference in jobs? Som people don ' t h o w  
the dLfference, l&e, in  a roustabout and punper, I don't think. 

A. Well, they probably don't. 

Q. What was the basic job? 

A. Well, a man called a pumper, at that  tim, just l ike  Raymnd and 
Pudge , they lived out here w e s t  of the overhead bAdge, lived back i n  
the f i e l d  where the company had furnished a house. mst all purrping jobs, 
there was a shack on there. And the pwrrper and h i s  family lived there, and 
the ccanpany would take five dollars a month out of your check for your 
rent.  And you had your p~anping job , which, your power and al l  your wells 
would be right there on that  farm where your house was. 

Q. So you could take care of them. 

A. And you was expected t o  keep that  running twenty-four hours a day, 
seven days a week. 

Q. So those guys never got any tW off? 

A. No. That was before you got a union, see. Yes. 

Q. What w a s  the roustabouts, what did they do? 

A. It w a s  just l ike  tha t  picture i n  there-course some of those guys 
was pmpers, too. That's the ent i re  distPict .  But, just  like I was. 
I ' d  go out here at Tank City of a morning and i f  they run--I've to ld  you 
about these Iron Kir-qp that pulled the wells, with a team, they'd have 
two or  three of them in each d i s t r i c t .  It took two men on one of them. 
They was called well-pullers. That's what you done every day, s a m  thing 
over and over. And then the roustabouts w a s  the m n  that--if a pumper 
had an engine d m  and he couldn't get it star ted,  why then herd  come t o  
the tool-house and tell  the farm boss he had some trouble that  he co dn't 
do himself, so the farm boss would send a man o r  two back t o  h i s  job i t h  ? him, t o  see what w a s  the m t t e r  with h i s  engine and repair it and g e t , i t  
n m r h g  again. Tnat was  musf abouts . Them old powers would b low w, 
you'd have t o  work on them, and your lead l ines,  your lfnes tha t  run h r n  
your well t o  your tanks, see, w e l l ,  they'd get a leak i n  them and that  was 
the roustabout work. The roustabouts, they done a l i t t l e  b i t  of every- 
thing. They done a l i t t le  b i t  of everything. Tnat w a s  all for  the same 
mmy,  see, nobow got any different wages. 

Q. A l l  jobs were the same wage. 



A. Till af%er we got the union, then they got a classification, see. 

Q. So you had t o  kind of keep underground while you w e r e  getting it 
started? 

A. Course the fawn bosses didn't want it, you know, company didn't want 
it. 

Q. Did they harass people? Did they ever find out about it, before it 
started? 

A. Oh yes, and the people in tm that  didn't work for  the company, the 
mrchants, was all concerned about it, you how, because the company would 
say, they'd put out a l l  kind of propaganda-if the boys signed up with 
the mlan they'd shut this old f i e l d  down and pul l  out everything and 
leave. Well, that worried the mrchants , see, and everybody i n  town, and 
the old people, they could just see Bridgeport a &ost town. But the old 
f i e l d  was making too much, there wasn't nobody, I don't think, really 
thought that there was any danger of them doing that, but at the same 
tim, there was a l o t  of them that ,  you know--you'd have a fear  tha t  they 
would just start canning and laying off ,  you know. But we f inal ly got 
brave enough ,to have s m  meetin@;s and talk t o  merchants and people, t o  
have meetings and invi te  everybody, see. 

Q. You invited townspeople, so they'd understand? 

A. Yes. Try t o  get it explained so.they would understand what the reason 
w a s  and why . . . 
Q. Kind of educate them? 

A. . . . and educate them. And Lawrenceville went i n  before Bridgeport 
did and that  helped. That helped us. Yes. 

A. About 1943, like I said a while ago, somebody had t o  contact the 
International for  t h e m  t o  send a representative i n  here. And they sqarted 
having metings with different men that  was more prominent, you know, , 

there's a difference in your labor force. There are men that  have mre 
influence and w e l l ,  how how t o  talk and explain things bet ter  than a l o t  
of other mn.  So they got them together and explained what the set-up was 
and how it would have t o  operate, and then they would-different ni&ts in 
the week, you'd have different meetings in different distrkts, get every- 
body out they could, see, sorrsplace, and explain t o  them. 
time, these m n  that was star ted,  why, they had there application at thgm fo 
from the International, and of course, you had t o  have a majority signed 
up before you could c a l l  fo r  an election, because there woUdnTt  be any 
use t o  go ahead and m a n g e  fo r  an election and go thm@ a l l  that  and 
ba t t l e  the company unless you had a pretty good idea that  you was going 
t o  make it-fdn-it  took a good deal of tim t o  convince enough of them 
t o  get e n o m  of them signed up . . . 
Q. I wondered i f  a l o t  of the people you w a s  working with, i f  they would 
be so scared tha t  they wouldn't even want t o  do ft  themselves, did that  
happen? 
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A. Oh yes, yes (la@s) there was a lo t  of them, and really, there 
are men working yet--stil l  got the union, s t i l l  i n  effect, and there 
are men working yet that  don't belong. 

Q. Oh really! 

A. Yes, they don't believe i n  it. Now, they take a l l  the benefits, but 
they dont t want t o  pay no dues. 

Q. I figured it w a s  a closed shop. 

A. No, we never-the company, tha t ' s  one thing they never would--we never 
could get negotiated. It's just--now i n  the factories,  refineries, you 
can do it, but see, the trouble with the production, trying t o  negotiate 
a closed shop, you're d i s t r i c t  would cover so  many mile square, see, you 
had so much ter r i tory ,  you couldn't enforce it. 

Q. Yes, i t 's  not like a l i t t l e  factory . . . 
A. Where everybody' s in a building, see. You Just had oh, you had too 
much terr i tory.  They could have men working. In the same way, i f  you 
called a s t r ike ,  see, there never was one here, and they figured we couldn't 
&force it because there wouldn't be no way t o  se t  up a picket line. Men 
lfved out in the country and worked out there, on tha t  particular job. 

Q. I see what you mean. 

A. Yes, see, the only lever we had was that  the production and the p i p e  
l ine  was signed up together, see. Well, the pipeline, i f  it would have 
ever cone t o  a time when we would have had t o  s t r ike ,  only thing could 
have happened, the pipeline would ref'use t o  run the o i l ,  see. That w a s  
the only way tha t  it could have actually bem enforced, because you couldn't 
put enough r r m  out t o  keep the E n  f'mm working. Like, theyv d just go i n  
and shut a refinery down, you W, you couldn't go out there and shut 
everything down because there wasn' t even enough men t d  do tha t .  

And we had t o  educate the peuple i n  town, the citizens and the mrchants . 
They was a l l  pretty scared t o  start w i t h ,  but we f i n a l l y  got our meetings 
scheduled where we had them ri&t down here a t  the park. And we'd invite  
everybody, see, and had a l o t  of good turnouts. But the company off ic ia ls  
was--they'd drive around and watch, then the next day o r  two you'd hear 
a l o t  of propaganda, what they was going t o  do, you know, but we just  kept 
it up till finally we had enough si@;ned up and got strong enough ;thatt we 
could pet i t ion the Ohio O i l  Coqany fo r  an election, see. And a f t e r  we 
did and got it signed up like it had t o  be, well, then they had t o  grant 
us, according t o  law, they had t o  grant us our election. And then, a f t e r  
we had the election--it carried a pretty good majority I forget just 
exactly but it w a s  way over our 50 per cent of 51 per cent which you would 
have t o  have, see. It went a way over that.  

And then the International representative-there was two of them, that  
was rea l ly  good. Now, later on, down throupj~ the years, we had represent- 
atives here mat Just  didn't amount t o  mch, you know, there is  a l o t  of 
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difference i n  those E n  just  l ike  the mn working in  the f ie ld .  But, 
t o  start with the whole contract had t o  be wrote and . . . 
Q. &om scratch? 

A. Yes, the whole contract, which governed the different kinds of work 
and types of work; the tearrsters and the roustabouts and the pumpers and 
the drf llers and the tool  Ctressers . Then where the biggest job was, was 
over here t o  the old machine shop, see. You had blacksmiths and helpers 
and yardmen and men that  run a l l  different kind of lathes, f r o m  l i t t l e  
b i t t y  ones t o  lathes up t o  almst as big as t h i s  kitchen, see. And 
these guys that  worked i n  the foundry, they had a a f f e r e n t  type of a 
Job, had t o  have a different classification, and they t r i ed  t o  work out 
a different pay scale. 

The way that  the union usually does that ,  in a refinery o r  a factory where 
you're s tar t ing  a new contract, your wages and classifications and dif- 
fellent jobs, would be In contrast with a neighboring refinery, see. It 
would give you a base t o  go on, where, when they corn i n  t o  this old pro- 
duction f l e l d  he=, there was no--the Ohio O i l  Company owned 99 per cent 
of the whole acreage and there was a few of the independent out f i t s  
scattered a l l  around t h r o w  here, but they didnl t amount t o  anything. 
There was no comparison with sorrrtbody e l se  t o  go by, it Sust had t o  be a 
new--it was a new thing all the way t h r o w .  They f inal ly got the m t  
contract wrote up t o  where the ~ & o r i t y  of the h e r s  agreed on it, and 
then you had t o  n o t i 0  the company and request negotjatlon m e e t i w ,  see. 
Then you had t o  start in and go through that  contract. Everything had t o  
be agreed on. Course a l o t  of it had t o  be changed, but anyway, finally 
we got our first contract and we had rented an old building down there i n  
town t o  meet in see, for  our meeting ha l l .  

A t  first we met just out in the woods or someplace, where there was a place 
where you could drive i n  and get together, and then we got t o  met ing  
down i n  the park. There was several bu i ld iqp  i n  town empty, but the 
owner woOMntt let us mset i n  them, see, he was scared. But, f ina l ly  one 
mn w e d  t o  rent us t h i s  building and we got some benchs put i n  there t o  
se t  on, and then, course we had t o  start in  and elect  a president and a 
vice-president and a recording secretary and trustees and your @, 
guide and everything that  went with it,, and everything had t o  be se t  up. 
We just  negotiated a years contract at a tim, and during that  ,year, 
there would be several d e m  of the local  here would contact--well, I 
went with them, different ones, would go t o  Princeton and over i n  Indiana 
and talk t o  coal rrdners that had been in the union fo r  a nwnber of 
see, and give you ideas of what you could ask fo r  and what you 
and what you cauldnTt &,and, course, w e  had ta work out our 
fications and wage-scale between a driller and a tooldresser 
pullers and the rod-wrenchem and all l ike  that .  

Now before I: was t e l l i ng  you about f i r ing  these old boilers on the 
mchines where they d r i l l  wells, and c lean iwout  machines. You were 
supposed t o  have that  ready t o  go t o  work at; seven o'clock, see. Well, 
the t o o l ~ s s e r  had t o  go out there an hour before that  time in order t o  
have his boilers fired up and have steam up, see, so you could acutally 
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start your machine running at seven of clock. Well, he never got nothing 
out of that. The company just--that was what they called a company 
policy, see. It was just  what they done fo r  years and it was pretty hard 
t o  rrake them change somthing l ike  that .  

Q. They had got away with it that long, yes . . . 
A. Yes, and then everybody went t o  work at the sam t ime .  You went out 
there at seven o'clock and thmwed your f Y r e  i n  your boiler  and, of course, 
got it f i red  up as soon as you could and started. 

But then it wasn't too long a f t e r  t h i s  tha t  they star ted motorizing these 
machines. Tney done away with the boilers and put b ig  Waukeshaw mtors, 
a l l  kind of different motors on the mchines. 

Q. Was that  the gas ones? 

A. Yes, that  was--well, they run on gasoline. Zhey was just ~ e g u l m  
gmoline mtors .  And then l a te r ,  i n  later years, well, that  wouldnl t 
have been up till around 1950, they done away with their old mchines, 
what they called the National mchiues and the Oil Stars ,  and then they 
begin t o  buy new spudders. Bucyrus and spudders of that nature. 

Q. What 's a spudder exactly? 

A. Where your whole machine was b u i l t  i n  one unit. 

Q. Your whole well? 

A. Everything you worked with was bu i l t  i n  one unit, see. And mounted 
where you could pul l  it around. Where the old type machines, like I've 
told you about, took twenty-three o r  four o r  f ive wagon-loads t o  move them 
from one location t o  another, now a l l  tha t  stuf'f w a s  b u i l t  inside thfs  
spudder, it a l l  worked i n  that one unit, see. 

Q. 1 see what you man. 

A. Yes, t o  do the whole well with. And a l l  you had t o  d*-when you 
moved that ,  you moved tha t  a l l  together. That elhrdnated, well, 99 per 
cent of y o u  moving, course, that  is another thing that  eliminated t h e i r  
t eam and all  that  stuff, see, because when they corn out with these cow 
plete units, why then it took trucks and winches and they began to-- f- 
ferent contractors-began t o   con^ i n  here with bulldozers. Like, y o 7  
remember Red W l i m ?  

A. Now he was one of the first ones that  ever worked a contract, a bull- 
dozer, out here for  the Ohio 011 Company. Well, you see, that hasn't been 
so  Long ago, it was iY1--well in,  s tar ted  in  probably, the ear ly  f i f t i e s ,  
i n  1950. And tha t ' s  when they went ahead then, and done away with a l l  
the team,  and then they b o w t  what they called these Cooper pulling 
units. You see them mu?ning around here---nd drove one at one time, 
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t o  pu l l  the wells with. That's when they e lh ina t ed  tha t .  

Well, then when they done tht, a l l  those men that awned t he i r  teams, 
a teamter ,  was--they had him l i s t ed  as an independent contractor, see, 
he wasn't an employee of the Ohio Oil Company, and when they ellmimated 
the team,  then we had t o  negotiate another separate contract for them, 
t o  get them made an employee and give them a right t o  have a roustabout 
job, see. Othemise, they would have just siqly have been out of a 
job and a l o t  of them had t e n d  fo r  the Ohio O i l  Compny for  twenty, 
twenty-five years, see. They finally agreed, we negotiated a separate 
con t~ac t  fo r  them, which gave them seniority back t o  where we first 
signed the contract back i n  1944, see. Which give al l  of them the same 
munt of seniority, but it give them an opportunity t o  go t o  work as 
roustabouts and it give them all,  six or  seven years seniority,  see, and 
it give them a chance. They was placed i n  diffemnt d i s t r i c t s  and then 
went t o  work, and then as different jobs was posted, they had the privi- 
lege of bidding on them just the same as anybody else. O f  course, it a l l  
went by your seniority but then there w a s  a l o t  of them, s tar t ing  i n  1950 
when t h i s  repressm started-they Erst s tar ted  tha t  with air, and hhen 
finally switched t o  water-there was a good many men hired during that 
t .  Then t h i s  give them old teamsters enough seniority that  they had 
a chance to ,  each one of them, stayed till he was old enough t o  ~t01-43, 
which a l o t  of them, w e l l ,  the majority of t h e m  was old men when they done 
away with the teams, l ike  I say, most of them had been a working quite a 
nmber of yeam. But it give them a chance t o  go ahead and work until 
they was retFremnt age, and they got some pension, see, some pension and 
som social  security. 

W i n g  t h i s  t b ~  when they first s tar ted  t he i r  water o r  air pressure and 
then switched t o  the i r  water-flood, they had been enoigh E n  hired that 
the old teamsters got t o  s t ay  and when they s tar ted  a l l  t h i s  new work then, 
why they had a l o t  mre job classifications that  had t o  be negotiated, 
for  they had a l o t  of different type work that  was involved i n  this pressure 
bminess that  wasn't o m l y  involved with just producing o i l  in th i s  
old f ie ld .  And it was all new t o  everybody here, nobody knew mything 
about it. They would ship in  t he i r  engineers and geolo@sts t o  get a l l  
this star ted and going, and they b o w t  rotaries,  which mde a separate 
p u p  of m n  and separate, o r  different kind of work. And then as they 
&il led these input wells, there had t o  be so  mch water-line laid.  They 
went up north of Applegate, you know where I  an there, went up there 
along the r iver and dr i l led  those water wells that produce so much water, 
you b m .  And then tha t  waters piped, and it s t i l l  is ,  from clear  up 
there the other side of Applegate, clear d m  here. 

Then as they got th i s ,  they'd Mil one o i l  well here, then they'd &$11 
four inputs around that.  Each one of them input wells was hooked up with 
a water mter. They wanted them t o  have so much, so mch water go thm& 
each one. Every w e l l  had a water roeter on it just l ike  your m t e r  here 
where you pay your water b i l l .  Well, after they got that  s tar ted,  there 
had t o  be a man go out there everyday and go around t o  evexyone of them 
meters and read them and keep a check on them, see. Tney had a pressure 
test and a vacuum t e s t  and read your meter. Well, that  made another 
classification and another job and it went on, you know, as that  pmgressed, 
and then they bu i l t  big pressure plants and f i l t e r  plants. 
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Now when they first started out with those, they had big pressure pwrrps 
that  forced that  water--that water cane f'rom them water wells down here 
through lines, then these big pwnps would pick that  water up and force 
it dawn i n  these injection wells, see. 

Q. Did the water just blow the o i l  out? 

A. Tne water was forced i n  these injection wells and the principle w a s  
t o  move that o i l  underneath, see? 

4. To mve it under the m a i n  well? 

A. To move it--just move it in the ground, see? What they figured t o  
start with, was tha t  i n  t h i s  old f ie ld ,  the gas was exhausted, You can 
drill a well, and get sore o i l .  Thee mL&t be an enormous w u n t  of 
o i l  down there, but, i f  there is no gas pressure, you can't pwrrp that  out 
of there. 

Q. I didn' t understand that .  

A. No, there has got t o  be s m t h i n g  t o  move it, see. mat gas pressure 
down underneath is  what moves that o i l .  If  you exhaust tha t  gas pressure 
o r  if--I worked in fields where there w a s  no gas p r e s s m ,  and you've got 
t o  have somthing t o  mve that  o i l .  It'll pmp fo r  a while and then it'll 
just quit ,  because, just like we talked about l a s t  night, they dr i l led  
that  well and then they went in there with tha t  glycerine and shot it and 
made what they called a reservoir, which w a s  just a p a t  b ig  hole, md the 
o i l  would drajyl i n  there and f i l l  up and you p q e d  out of tha t  hole, see? 

Q. Yes, I see what you mean. 

A. And then, gradually, tha t  would just quit running i n  there. There is 
so= pressure, what they c a l l  a bottomhole pressure, there is some pressure 
there, and then a f t e r  a period of time that  is  all gone. Now al l  t h i s  
water was for--there is a l o t  of e f f e r e n t  kinds of recovery, repressure, 
there axe places i n  Texas where they use fire. The whole underneath of 
the earth is  an fire and it makes tha t  o i l  hot and there is enough s t e m  
in to  it that  it forces it mmd places. And d m  where H a m y  was, my 
brother, they used butane. They pwnp that butane i n  there, and force it, 
then they reclaim a l o t  of that  butane and circulate i t ,  put it down in 
there a m n ,  see. But the whole idea of repressure is just moving that  
o i l ,  tha t ' s  the idea. Tney go i n  on a certain ammt of acreage and they 
go out here and they d r i l l  an o i l  w e l l  then they go around here with four 
water wells, then over here the sam way and over here and they do that  
till they st enough water in the ground--it takes, usually--they'll pump 
water i n  here f o r  s i x  months before you get enough pressure down there t o  
make that o i l  mve, t o  w h e r e  you1 11 get any recovery, any increase, i n  
your production, see. 

Q. Six mnths . 
A. Yes. Pbst of the wells it to& 81x months. But now, like, well right 



up here on the Fbbbins, is one lease that  had always been a pretty good 
lease and it was a making, this old production-course it ,gt away d m - -  
but then it was a rraking, we,11 say, 100 barrels a week. And when it got 
t o  the peak of the recovery period, a f t e r  they got a l l  these Fnjection 
wells dri l led,  and pwnped that  water in  there aftev a p r i o d  of time, 
it s t m e d  coming up, your pmduction, and it got up t o  1500 barrels a 
week. It got up there and it stayed there fo r  a long time, then, gradual- 
ly it goes back the other way, fo r  you Mnally get t o  where they've put 
so much water i n  there, you'll  begin t o  pmp mre water than you do o i l ,  
see. 

But t o  start with, they, instead of these 35 and 40 horse gas ellgines 
and o i l  enghes l ike  you run  these powers with fo r  years and years, they 
used 75 horse, on bhese big p q s  they set t o  pick t h i s  water up with, 
and then force it down i n  the ground. They run f r o m  six hundred t o  e i a t  
hundred pound of pressure, i n  mst places. Now there was places where 
the formation was more open, it didn't take so much pressure. 

Then that took mare negotiating. Different classification of jobs, see. 

Q. Created a l o t  of new different ones, didn't it? 

A. Yes, and then we corn on down t o  where they be@ t o  do away then, 
with these old gas engines and o i l  el-Tgines and i n  the meantlm, they had 
decided they would completely do away with t h i s  old rrachfne shop. 

END OF TAPE 

A. Course, they couldn't change it a l l  at one t i m e ,  it took a nLanbw of 
years, but they had a l o t  of t h i s  stuff made and stored down there, that 
it took fo r  engines and jacks and rod lines and all that  s tuff .  They 
star ted in then, e lec t r iming everything. 

They'd have maybe three complete crews wiring t h r o w  the f le ld ,  you how, 
setting poles and mnnlng l ines and hooking up e lec t r ic i ty ,  and then they 
started doing away with these gas engines, o i l  engines, and so forth. 1 - 
They'd just  do away with them, and in t h e i r  place, they would s e t  a great 
big e lec t r ic  motor, see, and hook it up where it would go ahead and run 
this power and run the wells, fo r  a period of tire. Then a s  they could 
get t o  it, they would completely do acq with the whole power, the whole 
thing, the rod l ines and the old pumping jacks and everything, and then 
they began t o  set these punping units with an e lec t r ic  motor on them. 
Then as this recovery increased they made so much mare production, that 
they had t o  s e t  bigger punping units is2 ,o-r t o  take care of tha t  pmduc- 
tion. 

Them old powers and them pwrrping jacks like they had then, wasn't built 
and made t o  handle that  kind of--you couldn't run them fast enough, see, 
there w a s  a Zimit t o  how fast you could run them because you had a rod 
line rwmhg here on top of the ground--you how what I man, you seen 
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them, that  goes out here t o  t h i s  old pumping jack that  goes up and down 
t h i s  a way. Well, you can only run that  back and forth so fast, see, 
i f  you run it too fas t ,  it would go out and corn back before your well 
could drop and cow up, see. When that  well would get half-way down 
it would grab it and jerk it back up a m .  I t ' d  just t ea r  up stuff a l l  
the tim, but, now you s e t  these pwnping units i n  a conctete base and 
they just set there. You can just mul them up and d m  any speed you 
w a n t  to ,  see. Oh, for  a rider of years, that  made fo r  an enomous amount 
of work, trucking and hauling all  them old powers and rod lines. Course, 
they had t o  be parted and picked up. 

Q. Just  transformed the whole thing, didn't it? 

A. Yes. Come every pwnping job still  had a boiler. You had t o  steam 
your o i l  in the winter time. Then along with this e lec t r ic  changeover and 
everything, they'd put i n  e lec t r ic  heaters, see. You' d run your oil- 
they had a big ~ t a l  tank, and built ri&t i n  t h i s  tank would be a bunch 
of coi ls ,  that  was heated wlth electrcicity, and your o i l  run i n  there and 
w a s  heated t o  a certain degree and went f k o m  there over into your stock 
tank. Then the gauger woiild turn it on and run it through the pipeline. 

Q. Just so It would flow better? 

A. Yes, and take the water out of it in the w i n t e r t h ,  Water won't 
s e t t l e  out of o i l  In  r e a l  cold weather. Cold water and cold o i l ,  it won't 
separate that  good. 

And tha t ' s  where, during the period f'rom, we' 11 say from 1950 till 1970 
there was a--it mde a l o t  of work here because everything was completely 
changed. A l l  the pumping jobs was a l l  old wooden tanks, and all them was 
took out and new m t a l  s t e e l  tanks w a s  set. It w a s  a whole new hook-up, 
t o  the whole thing, you know. The older roustabouts, working here every 
day, they had done the sam thing over and over fo r  years. Tney just 
had t o  learn--it was al l  new, it w a s  just  l ike  star t ing in again. The 
whole hook-up, your connection work and your tanks and your flow lines 
and your receivers and e lec t r ic  heaters and everything was-a rrm just 
had t o  start i n  and re-learn. 

But after we had the contract, then, i f  a man didn't want to,  he had the 
p~ivilege--course there had to be a job posted on the board for  you t o  
bid on-but i f  you ctidn't l ike  your job, you didn' t have to stay. You 
had t o  s tay till the opportunity come along of somthing you could b id  
on, but you could change jobs. Where, fo r  years and years you couldnf t 
do it. 

Now 1938 they discovered oil-that 's when that Noble and Salem boom 
started, see. Which was one of the biggest boom i n  I l l inois .  One of 
the b i g e s t .  The Ohio had quite a b i t  of acreage over there and the 
E n  here working on tools o r  cleaning out tools well, they [the company] 
would just care out where you was working and said, 'Tommow rnormlng 
at seven o'clock, o r  tmm evening at four olclock o r  five o'clock, 
you be at Salem ready t o  go out there on a complete different machine 
and go t o  work,"-eee. And you e i ther  went,,or you quit ,  which nobody 
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quit .  You didn' t like it, but you went. You had t o  get over there, you 
had t o  find you a place t o  board and a place t o  room. 

Q. Did you stay over there all week? 

A. Yes, yes. So they had a superintendent here that  was--he just didn't 
cam fo r  a man at a l l .  He was a big shot and he was boss and boy, he was 
going t o  l e t  you how he w a s  boss, so when the machines went over there 
and went t o  work, they r u n  the machines twenty-four hoursc, see. And at 
that  tw, well, here in  t h i s  old field, you worked a ten-hour day.  What- 
ever time, you know, i f  somthing broke and they wanted you back out, you 
had t o  go out when ever they called you. 

But we went over there and went t o  work, and Salem seventy-seven miles 
from here, and at that  tim, that  was quite a l i t t le  distance. 

Q. S t i l l  is! 

A. You didn't have the kind of cars t o  drive you do now. 

Q. Hm long it take you t o  get over there? 

A. Well, it took it seem t o  me l ike  three or  four hours, anyway. And 
there was t i ~ s  in the wintertim it took a l o t  l o w r  than that.  

Q. I'll bet.  

A. But anyway, this old boy that was boss . . . 
Q. What was his  nam, remenrrber? 

A. Reglin. John Reglin. 

Q. oh! 

A. He had so much trouble with Fhymnd, you know. 

Q. Thatls not the Reglinls that  s t i l l  l ive  out by the new school is  it, 
Margaret Reglin? 

A. Yes, well, Margaret Reglin was May.gay.et Middaugb. She m i e d  t h i s  
old man's son. Tnatls where that connection come in.  And then that's 
where Dayton mddaugh, her brother, got his start. He  w a s  just a famner. 
And then the marriage deal and her  husband's father w a s  superintendent, 
see. And then--course the history of the m i o  O i l  Company had always been 
thataway. The boss, he just  put anybody to work--any of his relation, he 
wanted to, see. 

Q. Were mst of the bosses local guys o r  did they come i n  from somewhere 
else? 

A. They was m n  that  had worked here, under another boss fo r  years and 
then, over here i n  t h i s  d i s t r i c t ,  there would be a boss they' d get so 
old he couldn't work, o r  retire or  something, why, the boss that-straw 



boss-farm f o r e m ,  that  had the most pul l  with your superintendent, 
just l ike  t h i s  old Reglin, he would--well, each fm boss usually had a 
man that  he was trying t o  push in to  the farm foremans Job, see. hlhieh- 
ever one of them had the mst persuasion o r  @fts or  s m t h i n g ,  why, h is  
man got the job. (laughter) 

But when we went over there and went t o  work on that  r ig ,  that  old man 
mde us work s i x  hours a day, seven days a week. He put four crews on 
each machine, and we'd work s i x  hours. You'd work six hours and was off 
efghteen. This was the,,&, I forget, it--his idea was you didn't w a n t  
a ran out there worldng that  would stop. He figured you would go out 
there and work s i x  hours, you didnl t have t o  stop and eat  or  r es t  o r  any- 
thing, see, he wanted s i x  hours work. 

Q. So he took out your lunch hour t o  make it. 

A. He took out your lunch hour. You was supposed t o  go out there and 
just work s ix  h o w .  So he put on four crews on each machine. And that- 
way, the d r i l l e r  that  I w a s  working with, we went t o  work a t  rrddni@t 
and worked till s i x  i n  the mrning. That w a s  seven days a week. And 
once a week, why, you1 d have t o  come home a f t e r  you got yowl check--bring 
your check home, but you had t o  have different clothes and s tuff .  Ncrw 
we'd go out a t  midni&it and work till s ix  Fn the mming, then we would 
leave the job and drive t o  Bridgeport, which was seventy-seven miles, and 
we had t o  be back i n  Salem that  n igj~t  at midnight t o  go t o  work. 

9. It would take alrmst your whole e i a t e e n  hours, wouldn't it, just t o  
make the t r i p?  

A. You wouldn't be home very long. We had t o  be back there. !There was 
a man by the name of Small. I w a s  a tooldresser and he was a tooldresser, 
but he corn out at s i x  i n  the mrning and worked till twelve noon. Now 
h i s  wife was a worran that  cane from, w e l l ,  about Louisville, Kentucky, 
around in there, and they got word, we l l l  say i n  the afternoon sometime 
that  her mother had died. And they wanted t o  go t o  Louisville just the 
day of the fbieral, see. There was no such a thing as getting off and 
going and spending a couple of days. Tney just  wanted t o  go the day of 
the funeral. So he cone down t o  where we was boarding and roorriing and he 
said, "Now i f  you'll  go out at twelve midnight and work till twelve noon 
the next day--for him, see-they'd go t o  Louisville t o  the i r  funeral, and 
then the next nl&t he'd go out fo r  me a t  twelve and work till twelve the 
next day. "by," I said, "Sure, it suits m, I dont t care, anyway so 
you can get t o  go." So he went and seen the toolpusher and he [the t 01 
pusher] said, "Well, wel l lhave  t o  cal lMr.  Reglin and see what he s s." a$ 
And he [Reglin] said, "No you can't go, there can't no m go out t h e  
and work twelve hours without stopping t o  eat and rest and, he said, 'We 
don1 t pay nobody fo r  eating and resting. " He said, "You1 11 be there your 
s i x  howls o r  you can quit .  '! And then they wondered why you wanted t o  
organize and have a anion, that  I s  just  one of the things that  happened. 
( l a w  ) 

Q. You to ld  me about something that  seems pretty amazing now, I think it 
was called the ltslidbg scale." It sounded l ike  the reverse of over-time. 

A. That 's just exactly what it was.  Now we worked here, i n  that  Salem 
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pool un t i l  the day before Thanksgiving i n  1939. That night we had finjshed 
up every w e l l  there was t o  tall  in.  Well, we was--all the toolmen-which 
was, would have been eight of us--no, eight on a machine, sixteen, tlmt ' s 
the way it was. Anyway, they had to ld  I& t o  report t o  the toolhouse the 
next m o r n k g  at seven of  clock. Well, we a l l  f e l t  Like they would t e l l  us 
t o  come back t o  Bddgeport, give us Thanksgiving off ,  see. We went out 
t o  the toolhouse next morming at seven o'clock and t h i s  old man Reglin, 
he w a s  there. Come f r o m  Bridgeport over there and he was there, seven 
o' clock. And he just s p l i t  us up al l  over the dad-blmd country. Some 
of them went out t o  St .  Louis, some of them went t o  (interruption) different 
places. Anyway, we went t o  a place called St.  James. ' They s p l i t  up every- 
body and they went i n  different directions, i n  two's and fours, and there 
w a s  four of us they sent from Salem t o  a l i t t l e  town they called the St .  
Jams Pool. That was by St .  Elmo. 

A. Yes. Now t h i s  was Thanksgiving day, and we had orders t o  be up there 
and ready t o  go t o  work at four o'clock that  evening. That was our !lhmks- 
giving present. 

Q. And you were in Salem a t  the time. 

A. Well, they c a l l  it the Salem Field, the Salem Boom. We was south 
of Sakm, oh, about f ive mile. That's where the f i e l d  actually w a s .  

Q. So you would have had t o  go t o  Bridgeport; seventy-seven miles, then 
Effinghm . . . 
A. No--yes, but we didn't even get t o  come horn because we had t o  get up 
the=, we had t o  find us a place t o  stay and--you had t o  go out In the 
country, you had t o  find your machlne where you was supposed t o  go t o  
work. Because you had t o  be there at that  t h ~ ,  see. 

they have lined up f o r  you or  anything? 

A. Oh no. No. It was just  a very smll place, oh, probably less  tban 
three hundred populatf on. So w e  f inal ly found a man and his wife, h a  
one l i t t le  boy, and they had a two story house and they had a bedroom 
upstairs. We finally rented that  where wehad a place t o  sleep. This 
tuwn didn't even have a restaurant in it. 

Q. What ' d you do, did that lady cook fo r  you? 

A. No, you j mt had to-they had a tavern and i n  that  tavern, he . [the m e r ]  
made som beef sandwiches and, well, that 's all he did mke . He had beef 
sandwiches and of course, you could go t o  the grocery store and buy lunch 
mat and cheese and crackers and pies and cakes and s tuff  of that  nature. 

But then a f t e r  we w a s  there-now th is  sam day we w a s  supposed t o  be out 
on this job a t  four o1 clock i n  the evening, which we w a s ,  and the c m  
that  was supposed t o  be there a t  midni@S?t, see, they never did show L.@. 
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So, w e  had t o  stay. 

Q. The whole crew, didn't make it? 

A. No, nobody ever showed up. And nobody ever showed up till seven 
o'clock the next mrning, see. We went out there at four o'clock i n  the 
evening and worked through till seven o'clock the next ~ r n i n g .  And then 
a f t e r  we went up there, we was under a different boss, and he was worse 
than the one we had at Salem. (laughter) 

It w a s  about s i x  o r  seven mile off the paved road back in to  the f ield,  and 
just an old dirt road. This w a s  i n  a part of the country where the peoGle 
was-I man it w a s  poor. It was poor. They s t i l l  had rall fences and 
stuff  like that ,  see. Buildings w a s  old and run down. It was just  a part 
of the country where the land. w a s  poor and these people was i n  pretty 
hard c i rcmtances  . 
We finally got acquainted with a Lutheran German family. He was a farmer. 
A lllan and his  wife, and t h e i r  children was  raised and gone. They had a 
great big old farm house. Oh, had nine o r  ten rooms i n  it. And h i s  wife-- 
they was i n  pretty good health and Ms wife said she'd cook supper fo r  us, 
you how, when we got off of wo~k a t  four o f  clock i n  the evening. They 
lived oht on the highway and as we' d c e  home f r o m  work, going in to  our 
room, we'd stop there and eat supper. But, tha t ' s  all she would do, and 
we sure appreciated that .  I think it cost us, oh, probably thirty-five 
o r  forty cents a piece. And you just  eat family style.  She'd j u s t  cook 
a great big m e a l  and set it on the table. 

Well, as we went ahead and worked, getting these wells t a i l ed  in, why 
theretd be more m n  cow I n  and they finally-I think they had four o r  
five roans, upstairs, I forget which, they finally f'urnished a l l  of t h e m  
and rented all of them. The men just stayed there and boarded. She hired 
a couple wcanen around there t o  help her. We still  stopped and a t e  sypper, 
but we kept our roan i n  that l i t t l e  town. And then they finally put us a 
l i t t l e  gas hot-plate up there i n  our room so we'd be able t o  make us some 
coffee and fry--took a sk i l l e t  and s tuff  from home and, c o m e ,  when we 
went, we'd take a good deal of stuff with us, but it lacked a good deal 
of being l ike  staying at hone, I'll te l l  you. And it was a cold bad 
winter. Boy, it was a dandy. 

Q. Md they have good heat in there? 

A. It never did get over 65 upstairs where we stayed, and 1'11 t e l l  you 
there was a l o t  of tims that  w a s  pretty do&;gone chilly. They didn't 
f'urnish too much heat. But, as we went on and more men--as we got the 
wells ta i led  in, and they was pretty good wells, then what they called 
the power pg, the foreman and the E n  that bui l t  t h i s  complete power, 
see, why, they mved i n  and went t o  work. Then they had a gang that  mu? 

these rod-lines and them was quite a few nren worked up there for a good 
1 .  And i n  this period of tlm is  when they got the bright idea of 
putting us on that  sliding scale. 

Q. Oh, I thought maybe tha t  had always been wound. 
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A. No, tha t ' s  when--they didn't have enough tooldressers and dr i l l e r s  
qualimed t o  work i n  order t o  have enough crews. They was working- 
well, we f ina l ly  got t o  working twelve hours. We'd go out at s i x  i n  
the morning and work till s i x  i n  the evening. The other crew would corn 
out a t  s i x  i n  the evening and work till s i x  i n  the morning. 

Q. You did that  s e m  days a week? 

A. Yes, we waa a getting I think ninety cents an hour, for  your straight 
t i n e ,  see. The crew that  w a s  working againstws ldved in, oh, what i s  
that town out by St .  Louis? Anyway, I can't think, but they was driving 
a long way. And there would be tires that  they wouldn' t get there. And 
you'd just  have t o  stay and go on and work. Or you might have a job 
where both crews would have t o  stay. And you'd double over. You had work 
that took four men. And that 's  when they got the bright idea of the slid- 
ing scale. I don't know where it corn from o r  who figured it out, but 
then there wasn't nothing you could do about it. And there w a s  times that  
we  worked so many hours that  we would get down t o  where we actually was 
making twenty-nine cents an hour. And the longer you worked, the less  
you made. That's the way it worked. 

We worked i n  there, then, till, I believe we cam back t o  Bridgeport In 
the Spring of 1941. We had all the wells d r i l l ed  and ta i led  i n  and all 
that  work done. And the power gang, those men a l l  came back, They was 
a l l  f r o m  i n  Bridgeport, see, they sent them from here over there. They 
sent about enough men over there--there was a l o t  of them had stayed i n  
some l i t t le  old house t r a i l e r s  and there w a s  sevwal of them bought -these 
l i t t l e  old quomet huts. Now, we'll get the same thing and use it for a 
hog house, you know. That's a l l  it w a s ,  and they'd just set them up and 
Uve i n  them. 

Q. You were over there what, two o r  three years? 

A. Well, we went on Thanksgiving day i n  1939 arid it was about i n  the 
Spring of 1941 when w e  cam back t o  Bridgeport, got t o  corn back and stay. 

But there w a s  enough of those mn, see, that  had been over there and went 
t h r o w  a l l  th is ,  that  when they got a chance t o  join the union and si@ 
up, there w a s  a l o t  of them s imed up pretty quick. It helped a whole 
l o t  t o  get s tar ted.  

Q. Did that  sliding scale go on till the union contract care about? 

A. It did over there in that  work, because, they didn't w a n t  t o  pay no 
wages and they wouldn't pay no wages, and they wouldn't give you no t k  
off.  Before, thee' w a s  some bosses that ,  af'ter you worked so mmy hours 
o v e r t h ,  then they'd want you t o  take so much time off where you wouldn't 
work, you wouldn't get nothing fo r  it, see. Then a f t e r  they put us on 
that  s l iding scale, then they just loved t o  work you otherwise. They just 
loved t o  work you overtime. 

Well, we  finally got that  a l l  finished. We moved back t o  Bridgeport and 
when we moved back here, they had been doubling up on t h i s  old f ie ld  
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while we was pm, and we all had t o  go t o  different toolhouses and 
different places. We couldntt go back t o  where we worked when we went 
over there. I went down south of La.wrenceville, what they ca l l  down 
there on the Vandennark H i l l .  I went down there t o  that  toolhouse, and 
just worked a short t h e  as a roustabout and then they put 11-e back on 
tools i n  th is  old f ield.  

But there was one thing tha t  happened up there. Now, most of them wells 
was about s i x  miles off the paverrent, and it was just  an old mud mad 
there w m t t  even any gravel, it was just  XI old mud road. And pa r t  of 
it was different klnd of dirt. There was part of it you could drive a 
piece, maybe find a place t o  park your car and walk the rest of the way. 
Course they had bulldozers in there and there was a dozen different com- 
panies had leases, mming rigs In and out, and you never knew what you 
was going t o  run h t o .  

You might stmt out of there some night at midnight, trying t o  get horn, 
and you'd get hung up and couldn't get out. You might mu? on t o  a Cat 
hung up r ight  on the road with a r ig ,  you couldn't get by it, you just 
had t o  wait. 

I had a Dodge twodoor and the doors was real lwge. When you opened one 
of them it just looked like you opened the whole side out of the cm,  
you how. We had drove mrning in  pretty gmod shape. But during the 
day, they had moved a rig in, somebody had, through this part of the 
mad, then took her out through the f i e l d  someplace there. But they had 
dug a hole in the road, oh, deep as t h i s  table. And we was a coming 
along, coming 3n mat night, doing pretty good, and just drove ri&W s q m  
off i n  that  mudhole, you haw, and there you was .  Well, I f ina l ly  pushed 
the door out i n  the mud far enough that  I could squeeze out, and fooled 
around there a while, and I could hem a Cat rmmhg, so f b a , l l y  it come 
out of the f i e l d  and come down the road. Course, them Cats was new things 
and most of them guys a driving them didn't know nothing, but anyway, I 
asked him i f  he' d pul l  me backwards out of there. We got hooked on and I 
said, "Now, don't you move till I get in tha t  car," I sald, "and s e  if 
I can ~t that  door shut fo r  it 's stiddng out there i n  that  mud." Why, 
there was that  much of that  door out in  that old sof t  mud, you know. And 
about the time I got half-way in there, why, he took of5 with E, and 
just folded tha t  door up l ike  an accordian. (laughter) He pulled me out 
of the mdhole alriet! 

lkn working i n  jobs like they got today, they have no idea what you mow, 
what you went through with in  a case of that  kind. I 
Now we'd get up of a morning,and we'd have t o  f l x  our own pai ls  and get 
out there on the job, see. When you was working from s i x  in the morn9ng 
till s ix  i n  the evening, why, we had t o  dHve,'it was about three or  four 
mile of the pavemnt out there, and then s i x  mile off the pavement and, 
by grab, they expected fo r  you t o  be there too. They didn't accept very 
many excuses. You had t o  be there and have that machine running. And a 
l o t  of t h s ,  now, we wouldn't be running very long till that  old supep 
intendent, he 'd core a driving out there t o  see if you was d n g ,  too. 
Carlyle, that 's  what I w a s  trying t o  think of a while ago. That Is  where 
the boss Uved and these two m n  that  worked agitjnst us lived i n  Carlyle 
and they drove back and forth a l l  the tlm, see. Well, they'd run in to  



James N. Price 56 

an ice  storm, s l i ck  or too much snow or somthing, and they couldn't 
get up there until the mads w a s  c lem.  And we had t o  get out there 
and keep that  thing running un t i l  they got there, that 's all.  Wouldn' t 
rrake any difference t o  them bosses if you stayed twenty-four hours and 
than another twenty-four hours. And they didn't go get you nothing t o  
eat, ei ther .  

About the a d d l e  of this old fiead where we went t o  work, there was an 
old m and worn who had an old country stirre, and I man it was an old 
country store, when we first went up there and went t o  work. It had two 
or three fce-boxes, they didn't have any elec t r ic i ty  out there, see-where 
he kept a l i t t l e  lunch m a t  and a few bott les  of pop. But that  store was 
f i l l e d  with old horse collars and harness and old wooden barrels of stuff 
and coal o i l  lamps and l an t e rn .  Just  a l l  of that  old stuff l ike  that ,  
that  you could think of ,  they had it there i n  that  s tore and it had been 
han@;ing there for  years and years. That was i n  1940, see. We went up 
there on !thanksgiving day i n  1939. Ilhey: omed s m  pound there and got 
a couple of pretty good wells. In the l a t e  part of 1940, then they done 
away with that  old store, t h i s  old man and woman, they quit muvling it. 

mere was one farm family, a man and h i s  wife, and they had a son that 
was, well., he was thirty-two years old and wasn't m i e d ,  had never been 
away f"rcan home, and they gat three o r  four pretty nice wells where t h y  
was  get t ing at that  t ime ,  &, f ive o r  six,hundred dollars a month. And 
none of them had seen that  much i n  a l i f e t b .  So t h i s  boy, he dgcided 
he'd f i x  up the old house a l i t t l e .  The father and mother was a getting 
old, and he got some carpenters and got it repaired and he put i n  a bath- 
room. And then his dag the old man--their name was Swarm . . . 

A. That's right.  He come down there t o  the doghouse, you know, t o  visit 
with us and we' d get t o  Iddding him about it, having so much mney and 
how he was getting so fancy, you know, had a inside t o i l e t  and a l l  thak 
stuff. Boy, now that  old man never did use that .  (laughter) No, he 
wouldn!t use it. 

Down there a t  Salem, those were enormaus wells down there. l'Q land, them 
f m r s  got, oh, for that time, got an enormous amount of money. And when 
youfd finish up a well, the farmer would usual ly  corn d m  and he'd bring 
you sorething. Phybe held gfve you $10 or  hef d buy you a new hat o r  a 
new pants and s h i r t  OY somthing, you know. You1 d get a well t a i l ed  In 
and your machine ready t o  move and so  forth and them old farmers up there, 
well, t h i s  one i n  particular, t h i s  old rrlan S w m ,  he come down there. The 
man I w a s  working with, old Leonard Gray, he looked forward t o  them gifts 
pretty much, you how. So he seen along just before dark, here com the 
old man d m  across the fleitd, and he had two big paper sacks. Boy, now 
I'll t e l l  you, old Leonard he was al l  whooped up, now he said, '!hat old 
man, he's real ly golng t o  give us something." So the old man come down 
there..  . . He had one sack fbll of apples and the other fill of popcorn. 
(laughter) ?hat's a l l  w e  ever got too, I'll t e l l  you. (lau@S?ter) The 
apples was apples they'd raised. But tha t  was sure a different part of 
the world up there i n  that  part of the world, for,  l ike  I said, It was 
still  old rail fences. It was i n  wintertime, and l i ke  I say--a do&ouse, 
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you how what I man. A l i t t l e  building on wheels. Just a l i t t l e  one- 
mom building on wheels where you changed clothes and ate.  You had a 
stove in there but they wouldn't get us nothing t o  b m ,  see. So I ' d  get 
out there of a night o r  a day, whenever you w a s  a working, and get mils 
off bf them men' s fence and chop them up in to  stove wood, that  ' s a l l  . . . 
Q. You mean picket fence? 

A. No, rail fence. 

Q. Ch, s p l i t  rail, l ike  Abe Lincoln style.  

A. Yes, that's rigjnt. That's why I say it was really just a different 
class of people and a l o t  of different conditLons, now. 

Now those people, they was just poor, tha t ' s  a l l .  They was poor. They 
didn't have nothing t o  do nothing with. ?hey was al l  farmers, but that 
land was awf'ul poor up there, they didn ' t have any crops. Oh, some corn 
that  hadn't been shucked by tha t  t h .  You could t e l l  that  it was, you 
know, a w f u l  poor. A l o t  of it wasn't over three o r  four feet  hi@ and a 
nubbjn on her about that  long. It w a s  just  a poor country. And like I 
say, this old man and worn  that  had t h i s  store, :*, they mL@t have 
so= pork and beans or  sonuething i n  a can but not mch of anything else 
and that old store was f 'u l l  of old washing machines, where the handle 
went back and forth l ike  th i s ,  and horse col lars  and harness and stuff 
of tha t  nature that emn then, a l o t  of them men up there working had 
never seen much of that  s tuf f ,  you how. 

Q. Sounds l ike  the Beverly Hi l lb i l l ies .  

A. Well tha t ' s  just  exactly--I've t h o w t  about it afterwards and it 
w a s  on that order, see. But those faridlies that  got t h i s  o i l ,  that  was 
so poor-- and w e  talked about it a l o t  of tims and watched them that 
ever really splurged and spent a l o t  of mney foolishly, like the majority 
of the landowners done i n  pools where they got . . . 
There at Salem there was a rn by the name of Young, and he had quite 
a b i t  of acreage and the @;round there was awrul poor too. Where most; of 
that  field was in Salem, there was a l o t  of that country i n  orchard. A 
l o t  of it i n  o r c h a ~ d ~  A l o t  of it was in pear orchard. I never seen, 
before or  since how, a l o t  of people have a pear t ree  or  two, you haw, 
but they had just pear orchards. This old ran Young had one, I expeat 
there was ten  acres of it. 

Q. Just pears? 

A. Just pear t rees,  and they had the biggest crop that  year, oh ny, I 
never seen the like of pears. Great big yellow nice pears, you know. 

Q. I love good pears. 

A. Yes, and they-never gathered them. They begin t o  get t h i s  mney, 
why good ni&t,  them p e w  f e l l  of them trees on the &;round till they 
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was that  deep. We would go over there and gather them t o  eat .  It was 
i n  Noverrber, and it was cold and they w a s  cold and good, and just  as ripe, 
just as sof t  and mellow, land, the pears-and t h i s  old man Young, he 
had, I believe three boys, and they just went wild. They just had a fit. 
And I forget the man's name-the father,  anywqy I heard--while we w a s  up 
at St .  Jams, i n  a years time, t h i s  man completely los t  h i s  mind and went 
crazy, worrying over the amount of money that  he had and the way these 
boys was spending it, see. He completely went crazy, died in the insane 
asylum. 

Now, they had deep wells there tha t  made an enormous amount of o i l  there, 
but then, o i l  wasn't very much a ba r r e l .  But then t h e k  checks was large 
fo r  that time. And especially f o r  people that  had never seen any money 
in the i r  l i f e t i m .  

But now these people up there at St. James, S t .  Elmo, they just didn't 
do that. A s  time went on and they began t o  real ize that  th i s  money would 
be there every rmsnth. To start with, t h i s  w a s  hard fo r  them t o  understand. 
They got a l i t t l e  money now, but that  would probably be the end of it, 
there wouldn't be no mre. But a f t e r  about a years tlm, they begin t o  
f i x  t he i r  horns and get them a car and stuff of that nature. I was back 
up there a couple different tims a f t e r  I ' d  come back here t o  work. Nde 
some p ~ t t y  good fi?iends up there, went up and visi ted once i n  a while, 
well, I t h W  twice was a l l ,  and they had made them, just  comfortable 
homes, you how. 

END OF SIDE ONE; 

The following discussfon took place after a tour of the narrators 
old childhood commity. 

A. Everybody would help each other. If anyone was sick, bedfast especial- 
ly, why the women woud go, some woman, would probably go and stay milng 
the day. They'd take twn abouts, and help out, and the men then, sane- 
body, wauld go and set up at niat. Cause you didn't pick somebody up 
and msh them t o  the hospital. 

You'd go t o  t h i s  nei@bor and help butcher o r  go over t o  the other om 
and they'd come t o  your house. You worked around thataway and the whole 
neigfiborhood, you how, i n  that  particular two-mile square and thrash, 
and i f  a mm had a s i ck  horse, he &at corn over and borrow a horse and 
a s e t  of harness, you know, in order t o  keep h i s  work going. You usually 
had a extra one. But, go on over west, well on the  west side of where 
Franklin School was, and another two av thme mile west, where them 
people lived and it was--they done everything different,  most everything, 
than what we did i n  the community where we lived, see. And l ike  you say, 
your history up there around Spri@i'$&d would be, l o t  of it, far as the 
famhgs concerned, a l o t  of it would be practically the same, the work, 
but then you have different people and they have different ways of doing 
the sarne work. 
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We would work-you work a team, two horses, o r  you work three horses o r  
you worked four horses. Or you'd work five o r  s i x  horses, see, In the 
neighborhood *here where we lived. And over three miles west o r  south, 
why, you'd see sane of those people once i n  a whfle, when you'd go in to  
anather neighborhood t o  a sa le  o r  sonaething, see, and tha t ' s  about the 
only time you dld go. But t he i r  hitches, the way  they'd hitch up there 
horses, and the way they'd work them and t h e i r  harness and stuff ,  there 
was always a difference i n  it you know. 

And there'd be different c o d t i e s  where there would ju s t  be three or 
four families tha t  would associate with each other. The rest of the t;wo 
or  three mile square wouldn't have nothing t o  do with them. See, where 
i n  the cornunity i n  that  particular nei&borhood-that's l ike  I was t e l l -  
ing you today about how everybody called Grandma and Grandpa "Uncle Charley 
and Aunt Eh." In  the whole ter r i tory  around there we would help thrash 
and butcher and help back and forth-cut wood. And i n  the spring if it 
was t h  t o  put out a crop, i f  a man w a s  sick o r  behind o r  s o ~ t h h g ,  
you'd go help him out a l i t t l e  b i t .  Where other commnLties, like I say, 
thereld be maybe three o r  four families go together and work, the rest of 
the neighborhood they didn't  pa^ no attention to.  

It's just  a different--1 talk about, well, l ike  Dean S i m ,  They lived 
on west of Franklin. He went t o  Franklin but they liwed in another town- 
ship, another--just a different cormunity you know. And the way we'd 
hitch our horses and worked wasn't l ike  the way h e ' l l  t e l l  about it. If 
you-were going t o  work two horses o r  two teams, you had a doubletree, 
what you called a double-tree, and a single t r e e  on each end of it then, 
for  each horse. And you had two l ines,  a l ine  fo r  each horse. 

Well, i f  you was going t o  work three horses you had a longer double-tree 
and then over here on t h i s  end, t h i s  long double-tree, what they called 
a three-horse hitch, you had a double-tree i n  the end of that ,  where you 
had your two horses hitched. ?hen over on t h i s  end, you just  had one 
single-tree, see. But you'd s t i l l  just  have the two l ines and drive the 
two horses. %he th i rd  home, you hitched him up out here and used what 
you called then, a jockey st ick.  The two horses you drive, then you 
hitch your th i rd  one up out here. And you had a st ick,  fo r  whatever 
distance you worked your horses apart, see. You had a r ing and snap, 
just a small pole is what it was, wooden pole. You had a small snap i n  
each end of that  pole. You'd snap one end in to  your th i rd  horses bridle 
and--like you had your Une where you guide them t o  turn them right and 
l e f t ,  see. You'd snap one end i n  h i s  b i t ,  put the other end on the other 
horses h& and so he had t o  walk even with your other horse. He  couldn't 
get out one way, or  in.  You s t i l l  just drove two horses, see? 

And i f  you was going t o  work a four horse team, your two horses you drove, 
you put i n  the middle. You have your long four horse hitch double-tree 
and i n  each end of that ,  you'd have a double-tree with two single t rees 
on it. You put the team you drove i n  yow middle on your two a d d l e  single 
trees.  Then you had a horse-each horse on the outside you just hitched 
them up and hooked 'd~is jockey s t ick  on them, see. And wherever you drove 
your horse, they had t o  go. There wasn't no way they could do anything 
e lse  because you had the i r  b i t  fastened t o  the other horseshaim# see? 



Q. What w a s  the haim? 

A. Well, you put a collar  on, the haim was part  of y o w t h e  harness 
that fit around the col lar  and you buckled it up t ight .  Then your 
tugs fit i n  your halm and went back here where you hooked on t o  your 
singleitree. Granddad had one riding plow that  had two plows on it. 
Where you would work f ive o r  s i x  horses. And thataway then, when you 
done tha t ,  you worked f ive horses on there, you had your three horse 
hitch, ri&t next t o  your plow. Then out here i n  fmnt  of these three 
horses, you mu? a chain fmm your plow between your first team here out 
i n  front, see, and you' d hitch another team >out i n  front.  But thataway , 
you had t o  drive four horses, you had four lines, two l ines on each horse. 
You was Mving five horses, but you had t o  dr ive four of them, just had 
one on a jockey st ick.  

But i n  the different c o m d t i e s  people had different ways you could hitch 
them up. People had different s i ze  horses, Granddad always kept--we had 
bigger horses than just  the ordinary, most of the o~dinary  farmers had. 
He was a lover of horses, and he l ike  a l i t t l e  bigger horse. 

Q. What breed of horse did you have? 

A. Well, mostly, mostly Belgian and then, oh, mixed breed of, just  
horses. In the l a t e  twenties they got t o  shipping quite a nmber of 
western horses tin. A man would go-stock-buyer l ike  they used t o  have-- 
a t  Sumner there was a man by the name of B r i a n .  He'd go out i n  the west 
where they'd round these horses up i n  large bunches and buy them for  l i t t l e  
or  nothing and ship them into, ah, a place l ike  Swrmer. He had a regular 
stocky& anyway, you know, where he'd unload them. Then you'd go i n  
there and pick you out s m  of them and buy them. Then you had t o  break 
them. But they was, they was range animls.  Had run out where they hadn't 
had any care, you know. They had t o  hunt there own feed and shifted for  
the i rse l f ,  and they w a s  to&. They wasn't as big as the most of the 
horses that  was here, but i n  hot weathep-they could do mre work. They 
was just  a tougher breed. 

Q. Not as h w e  though? 

A. Nd, they wasn't as big, but i f  you could get one broke where you 
could work It, and work it fight-now, Dad went up there and bought three, 
one t i r e  ayld there was two of them that  broke out real good, and the 
other one, yould have t o  break it every time you hitched it up. It just-- 
well, they was wild and there was som of t h e m  you just  never tamed. They 
had a wild streak i n  them that ,  you know, they just never got over it. 
But when you got them harnessed and hitched up, they just naturally could 
stand mre work and mare hot weather than the horses we had here. And 
the only thing that  I could know, or  the reason why was, because they had 
just run wild, just  l ike  a wild pack of dogs o r  something, that go out 
here and sh i f t  for themelves and l ive,  where an anlrnal that-any anlrnal 

* tha t  had been took care of real good, i f  you turned it loose, it woul.dnlt 
be long till it would stamre t o  death o r  die. They w a s  a l o t  of good 
ones and there was a l o t  tha t  you never could do nothing with. Tney was 
just broncos, tha t ' s  what they w a s ,  they was just  broncos. 



But we just  happened that  tlm, Dad got those three, then another tFme, 
he got two. He got two grqys and they w a s  a l i t t l e  b i t  b i e e r .  It was 
just ,  you h m ,  mde a nice looking team. And Hamy, ~ Q T  oldest brother- 
they w a s  shipped in to  S m e r  on just old ca t t l e  cars, you know, and he 
got on a horse tha t  we had there a t  home and rode in to  Sumner and they 
put ropes on them and he t i ed  them t o  h is  saddle horn and brought them 
horn. had them with the horse he w a s  a riding. 

Q. How much would one of them cost you? 

A. m, f'rorn ten t o  th i r ty  dollars. It would depend on how wild and the 
s i ze  they was, you know. Course I never did know for  sure, but I imagine 
t h i s  old boy bought them maybe for ,  oh, f i f t y  cents o r  one dollar  a piece 
down there where they rounded them up. Whole bunches of them, I i-ne, 
they'd just round them up and just m them i n  these ca t t l e  cars. Course 
they kept it up till, well, they just  exhausted it. 

Q. Just ran out. 

A. Yes, the whole thing. They shipped a l o t  of them into t h i s  pa r t  or  
the country. But t h a t l s  all they was f i t  for.  CPI, smtinr; you would 
get one broke out t o  where you.could make a riding horse out of it. If 
you did, it mde a real good riding horse, it made a rea l  good rid.ing 
horse because they was to& and they could do a l o t  of running. 

Q. I guess they'd be a bet ter  riding horse than the big Belgians. 

A. Oh, yes. Course they wasn't any good-oh, you could get on one and 
walk it around, but as far as getting out and rmnning, they couldn't stand 
that .  

And a l o t  of our horses here w a s  used i n  the oi l f ie ld .  But there was a 
l o t  of them westerns, shipped i n  here f o r  a period of time. People f ina l ly  
got tired of breaking them and . . . 
Q. I bet tha t  was a l o t  of work t o  break one. 

A. Yes, it was a l o t  of work, but then everybow then would have at 
leas t  two mares, you'd have a colt  every year, and you' d have a couple of 
col ts  t o  break and wt s tar ted  t o  work. Which ordinarily wasnl t too much 
trouble. Your horses here, they just  wasn't that wild. And then tha t ' s  
just hwn~ln nature. Different fanners, a f f e r e n t  t;n that  had worked horses 
a l l  t he i r  l i fe and broke col ts  and worked them, they wouldn't admit tha t  
they had got a hold of one that  they couldn't break and work, you know. 
(laughs ) You know hcw that would be. 

You'd go up t o  S m e r  on Saturday afternoon. Theretd be a bunch stand- 
ing m w l d  t a l l h g ,  o r  at church on Sunday. That's when they got to- 
gether and done t he i r  visiting, you know. Talk about the different ones 
they got and hm they broke out and how they was working. Well, you 
wouldn't get somebody t o  say he'd got ahold of one he couldn't break. 
( l a w  ) 
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That went on till, l ike  I say, till they kind of exhausted them. But 
they got a l o t  of them in  the country and a l o t  of them w a s  bred t o  
native horses here and you got a bigger animal, but you still  would 
get an animal that  was a l i t t le  t o w e r  and could get a l o t  more work 
done i n  hot weather than the horse, you know that  you breed i n  here. And 
of course, it was a few years a f t e r  that ,  that  t ractors  began t o  corn@ i n  
and horses w a s  a l l  done awa,y with. I donf t know just what would have 
happened i f  they would have been shipped in here, well say, twenty years 
before they w a s .  There w a s  a l o t  of them that  was tough and done a l o t  
of work. 

Q. When did you start getting those kind? 

A. Well, that  w a s  i n  the twenties, that  was i n  the twenties. Because 
i n  the ea r l i e r  twenties, long about 1923 o r  so, W r y  went t o  work for  
the B i g  Four out there where Dad worked too. And then i n  1924 he got 
rr&rried and i n  1925 he l e f t  here and went t o  Texas. 

Q. He's been down there tha t  long? 

A. Yes. He l e f t  here, him and Cleo, in 1925, the same year I started 
t o  hi@ school. They l e f t  here and went t o  Texas, and he never did come 
back here t o  l ive  a f t e r  that ,  they stqyed down there . . . 
Q. What d r e w  him down there t o  Texas? 

A. He had a brothewcin-law. The rm.n tha t  m i e d - - h i s  name was Dedson ,  
he married Cleats s i s t e r .  And he had worked i n  the o i l  f i e ld  here. He 
was a driller. And he had worked and had som mney and he got some back- 
ing. He went down Fn Texas i n  a place called Cisco. It's a way down i n  
a pretty rougtn part,  o r  was at that  time. And a f t e r  he got down the=, he 
went t o  work on tools and they was a d r i l l ing  down i n  there and he f ina l ly  
got him a s t r ing  of tools of his own, see, and he--or h i s  s i s t e r  did, 
course she was a wanting some of her people down there too, she wrot~t and 
to ld  Cleo that  i f  they would come down there, her husband would give 'EIamy 
a job. He was out here at the B i g  F'our, he w a s  making, oh, I suppose 
seventy dollars a mnth, sixty-five or seventy, sowwhere like that. And 
i f  he come down there and went t o  work fo r  his  brother-in-law, why he'd 
make just about twice that  much. Working on tools, see. That sounded 
pretty big, so he quit here. He had just b o u t  a brand new b d e l  T 
Touring car. He hadn't had it too long when they l e f t  here and went down 
there. He worked fo r  h i s  brothe~in-law, then, on tools and they just 
moved all  over Texas. They w a s  out the majority of the t h e .  mere  a r e  
pictures here sorreplace, if I could find them. 

They had a big tent .  They had a platform, just wood platform for  a f loor 
and that  was boarded up f r o m ,  say, that  high, then Just a tent  over that .  
Well, they'd go out on these plains and Wll these wells. 'Ihem m n  put 
down those platform and those sides on them, put your tent up and that's 
where they lived.. They just  lived there while they stault;ed that  well, 
till they finished it. And he kept that  up till 1932. And he got a 
chance then, t o  go t o  work fo r  the Hui-rble O i l  Comapny. 
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A t  that  time, for  the Hmle Pipeline, they had what they call,  camp, 
What they called a camp, where the company owned--like it was here i n  a 
p w p r  house, i n  a shack, you lived on the job. They had, out on the 
edge of a town, they'd have f ive acres o r  ten  acres and they' d just  
build that  f'ull of shacks, and tha t  where t he i r  E n  laved. So Cleo and 
Harry, they'd been down there that  long, and I think tha t ' s  the first 
tlm;, you know, they'd moved i n  a regular house and had a home. He went 
t o  work fo r  the H m l e  Pipeline and he worked fo r  them from 1932 till 1960 
when he had h i s  heart attack and died. 

Q. He s tar ted there the same time you . . . 
A. S m  time I star ted with the Ohio, yes. In 1932. I went d m  there 
when he died in  1960, went down there when he died, and I' d just been 
h m  two weeks when I had w accident, and tha t  was the last of w work 
for the o i l  company. But we both went t o  work in 1932 and we both quit 
In  1960. 

Q. So they we= kind of ahead of us up here on mion.and s tuff?  

A. C& yes. They had the union down there, w e l l ,  I think his  thrjf't- 
plan started i n  19 33. Now they had the thrift-plan, but you had t o  have 
a year or  mre, a certajn amount of seniority before you'd get t o  start 
your thrift-plan, see. 

Now here, where ours was star ted i n  1953 I guess it was, when we negatiated 
the first plan, you had t o  have ten  years seniority t o  get s i x  per cent 
and it went on down t o  two per cent I think. Then you had t o  have twenty 
yeam seniority before you could get the fill ten per cent. But of course, 
ncw , I think that ' s changed. Just like the annuity plan and everything. 
It was a start, but it was pretty crude when you f i r s t  organized it and 
negotiated it. Tnen as the y e m  went along, course it got be t ter  all 
the time, where everybody could take out six per cent and you didn't have 
t o  have so mny ye- of seniority. Ten per cent was all they would allow 
you, and fo r  every dollar you put in ,  they put f i f t y  cents with it and 
i f  you would leave that  there f o r  f ive yeam and not touch it, why then, 
If you wanted t o  draw it out, you could draw out what you put in ,  plus 
what they put in .  O r  you could just  go ahead and just l e t  it build up, 
clear  up till you re t i red  o r  quit  o r  whatever happened. 

Well now, Jess Angle. Tnere was an example of it. He, Jess, probably 
had twenty-seven o r  twenty-ei&t yeam seniority. 

Q. Was he ret i red? 

A. Yes, he was ret i red.  He was the one that  got k i l led  i n  that hunting 
accident. Well, Patsy was just t e l l i ng  me the other day that his  wife 
told her, she had received h i s  . . . plan, mney see, what he had put i n  
plus what they had put with it. She got a check fo r  $30,000. She got a 
check fo r  $30,000. That's just one example that  I know of. So it r e a l l y  
amounted t o  somthing after--the sam way with your pension plan and your 
vacation and everything, as you come on down through the years. 

Now t o  start with, we got a weeks vacation a yew. Paid vacation. 
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Then the next contract we got two weeks and as it come on down through 
the years, now, a m, eve- with twenty-five y e m  seniority, gets 
f ive weeks. Paid vacation. You get . . . flve weeks paid vacation. You 
get twenty-nine weeks sick leave a year. You get twenty-nine weeks f u l l  
Pay- 

Q. Does that  build up i f  you don't use it? 

A. NO. There is no build up t o  it. It's not l ike  the government plan, 
you know. You don't have accumulated days. 

Q. It's st i l l  a heck of a deal. 

A. Why yes. Now I got hurt the 13th day of Deceber, in 1960. They just 
re t i red  me. But I got f u l l  pay un t i l  the first of August in 1961, see. 
Then I was put on the pension. But I had tha t  much sick-leave coming. 
Ban the 13th of December in  1960 till the last day of July in 1961. We 
had come along that  far i n  negotiations with new contracts and new bene- 
fits. And now I think, course I 've los t  contact with what they've done-- 
especially with what they've negotiated in the last f ive years, but I 
think a man nm, with fifteen y e m ,  gets four weeks vacation and a rnan 
with twenty years gets five weeks, instead of twenty-five yeam. I don't 
know if they've ever changed the s ick tirne o r  not. The sick t h e  was a 
pretty good deal. 

Now the Texaco over here. They had so mch full  time and so much half-tire.  
But the men here decided they'd rather have more fu l l  tim and have all 
f'ull t-. The last I had contact with it OF bowed anything about it 
they w a s  still  getting t he i r  twenty-nine weeks. I don't think tha t ' s  been 
changed. But the nurher of yews you had t o  work t o  get your four and 
f ive  wee&, why your nunher of years of seniority in  order t o  get tha t ,  
has been cut back a l l  the tim, you know. 

A l l  the time you're negotiating, you're trying t o  rrake improvemnts i n  
your benefits you're going t o  get. Well, that's really about a l l  you're 
going t o  cane out with, a r t e r  you've worked quite a number of years, is 
what benefits you get on your side. Your pension and your social  security 
and your insurance, vacation, savings plan and so forth. If you could 
get the rrajority of the E n  t o  real ize it, it amounts t o  a l o t  more than 
a few cents ralse on your wages a l l  the time, you know. 

Q. A l l  of those benefits, l ike  the thrift-plan and stuff  like tha t ,  tha t  
was put in  at the insistence of the union, wasn't it. It wasn't anything 
thak . . . 
A. Well, any company that  I ever heard te l l  of o r  worked for,  they don't 
volunteer t o  give you nothing. Now then, the C&io O i l  Company, they even 
went as far as t o  t e l l  you so. They'd t e l l  you, and I've heard the b ig  
shots say it a rimy a time, 'The Ohio Oil Company is not a going t o  give 
you nothing." C o m e  now i t ' s  different,  there is  unions a l l  over the 
country. 'Practically any place you'd work. But when we organized you 
knm, the rrajority of the people, they couldnt t understand why you wanted 
to--well, they called it "working hardships ," on a carpany that  was going 
t o  rase your wages, and expect the company t o  help pay them benefits and 
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and stuff or  give you two weeks vacation pay. Boy, I'll t e l l  you, that  
w a s  an unheard of thing. They was just sure the Ohio O i l  Company was 
going t o  go broke, you know, i n  a years t b ~ .  They just couldn't do that .  

But as the years went by, you got more benefits and every report the 
company sent out, every quarter, they was making more money. They didn't 
none of them go broke. 

But now I do think--come I belong t o  the union-the working man has 
got t o  have a protection. You've got t o  have a protection. You've got 
t o  have seniority rights. You've got t o  have som kind of a ri@t t o  de- 
mand a Uving wage and working conditions. But I think, t h r o w  the 
years, some of the unions has got a l i t t l e  too stong, i n  places. I think 
they've got a l i t t l e  too strong. Where, when we was first organizing 
and starting, if you could get 60 per cent of your members, 
60 per cent of the men workeng signed up, why, you had a pretty good p e p  
centage. Where, now, mst of these places, they got 100 per cent you know. 
And there is a l o t  of t m s  that  the things they demand is, i t ' s  getting 
t o  where -the unions, they're just  a gettiing pretty strong, see. They're 
a getting pretty strong. 

But in  the last negotiations, now, with Ford Motor Company, the wage ques- 
t ion w a s  the f i r s t  question that  was set t led.  Then it c o ~ s  on down t o  
the benefits, which I've always argued tha t ' s  what it should be, was your 
beneflts f o r  your retirement time. And this l a s t  negotiations, that 's  more 
what they're a doing now. Tley didn't have say trouble agree* on a p e p  
centage raise,  what they w a s  going t o  get, but what t he i r  benefits was 
going t o  m u n t  to.  Now, most of them are negotiating a three year con- 
t r ac t .  With cost of l iving clause i n  there as what govems,their rajse. 

Well, they give a three year  contract with, oh, say a seven cent raise 
th i s  year and a s i x  or  seven o r  a nickel raise next year, plus the cost 
of living. Plus your cost of l iving raise,  which is based on every six 
months. 

But the big question now, o r  most of the i r  trouble in n e g o t i a t h  the 
benefits. The working man is demnding and tha t ' s  one place that-I think, 
that the unions is a getting a l i t t l e  b i t  m a s o n a b l e ,  about the munt 
of holidays and vacation. Now there is sane of these places, unions i n  
these big c i t i e s ,  and steelmills and factories and place of that  kind, 
where t he i r  vacation and sick leave and holidqys take i n  half of the year, 
see. 

Q. When I was living i n  h f aye t t e ,  the Alcoa Aluminum Company, every 
fouz?th or f i f th year, they'd get like 90 day vacation. 

A. Yes, you see, now l lke  the--well, now even here with the Mwathon 
Oil Company, you'd get f ive weeks vacatim and you get eight or r h e  paid 
holidays, and twenty-nfne weeh sick leave. That would take up quite a 
l i t t l e  b i t  of the year. 

And then they're demanding more time off with f u l l  pay. That's one of' 
the things, seems t o  me, that  they're getting a l i t t l e  unreasonable about. 
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You had t o  work hard and too mny hours, but now, a l o t  of these places 
are getting t o  where they don't want t o  work any hours, o r  very few hours, 
which, I like t o  work a U t t l e  b i t  fo r  what I get. (laughs) 

But I think, as t h e  goes on, I think now that  the wages w i l l  be govemd 
a whole l o t  by the cost of living. But the benefits are--there's going 
t o  have t o  be a kind of leveling off place t o  them, somewhere, too. You've 
got t o  work a l i t t l e  b i t  fo r  what you get, yes. (laughs) 

END OF TAPE 

A. That was taken, probab'ly 1920, 1921 before my mther  died, because 
she always had a l o t  of flowers, and see a l l  that  vine and s tuff  that  's 
@?owed up there? She done a l l  that ,  so that  w a s  taken, probably in 1920 
o r  1921. For she passed away i n  1922. 

Q. Who is that  with you? 

A. Lenabelle. That's Dad and Lenabelle and E. Yes, tha t ' s  probably 
about the time that  was taken. 

This was probably, oh, taken about in  the same time, i n  the early twenties, 
because--I can t e l l  by the s ize  of Dad. That's when he was . . . 
Q. He looks pretty stout there. 

A. Yes. And by the way Bra& and Herbert and them dressed, and Clyde 
Young there. Clyde was older you knm, and he's still, oh, not too old 
there. Yes, and you can tell  k l o e .  I don't W n e  Chloe and Brack 
had been-let's see, Chloe and Brack w a s  Inamfed right a f t e r  nly mother 
passed away. So they was  married in  1923. 1923 o r  1924. So that  ' s prc- 
bably taken along about that  t i m e .  

Q. Didn't you t e l l  me one t i m e ,  Bra& helped you wire your house and was 
real good with radios and stuff? 

A. Yes. He was a mechanic, but he was also--he understood e lec t r ic i ty  
and the wiring of cars, and when the R.E.A., rural electr if icat ion went 
through, he wired the old house down there which was--it had t o  be dm@ 
according t o  t h e i r  specifications, but nothing l ike  l k  is now, you Imow, 
you just m a rraln wire L ~ S  through the a t t i c  and the old zrpstairs and 
put i n  sane boxes and receptacles. - Dropped a wire down and had a lmt 
bulb in it, meetly was all you had, you h o w .  

Q. B u t  you had t o  do it yourself, they didn't come around and do it? 

A. No, they didn't come around and do it. You had t o  do it or  get sow- 
body t o  do it. There wasn't very mmy in the country tha t  could do that .  

Q. I'll bet not. 
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A. Cause it w a s  a l l  new. Course they'd had electricity in town and 
water supply and bathrooms and stuff in  the m a i n  part  of town, sewers. 
But then even, oh, in-up in the 1940t s and even i n  that house we mved 
Dad and Grandma into. It dimt t have a bathroom i n  it until  after they 
moved in  there. Had to  put one i n  and I dug the ditch and put i n  the 
sewer. Well, y.au h o w  where the house was? 

Q. Yes, that was i n  town. 

A. It was i n  town, but that whole part of Bridgeport and even the westside 
and the eastside, and there where Pudge and Raymond lives, when Wes and 
Ida b o w t  that place. They mved i n  there i n  1934, 1935 and lived there 
till probably 1936, 1937 before we latd that sewer and put a bathroom i n  
there. There w a s  no bathroom i n  that house. There was no bathroom in  the 
house. We put it i n  long after they moved in there. I dug the ditch and 
put it fn* 

Even way  up jnto the 1940ts, we w a s  still  pulling wells with horses around 
there. There was a lot of wells on them town lots, in town. Even there 
on Washington Street and them there. And when we was s t i l l  pulling them 
with horses and the old Imn King, why the alleys was all lined with outside 
toilets, you how. 

West of Washington Street where we had the store and lived, there wasn't 
very mny inside toi le ts  i n  that p& of the tam, even UQ until 1943 or 
1944, up in there. Yes, there wasnl t too many in there. 

This picture, that 's had to  be back i n  the early twenties too. You ckul 
t e l l  by what you can see of that old - car. And the w ~ m m  dresses. You 
can see how they w a s  made. And that picket fence there, that w a s  made and 
put up there when r q ~  mother was still alive. Then, course, i n  la ter  years 
it was took d m ,  but you can see, thatt s a good picture of the house. And 
here's the smkehouse. You can see part of it, or the mathouse it was 
called, where you kept all your mat .  Then in the back of that was the 
room where they done the smolcing. Then this was out here is one of the 
chicken houses. You can see pa& of it out there. Tnis is facing south, 
then north was where the new barn--the big barn that ts  out there ye t ,  
that 's where it wen&. 

Now the picture of the old log barn, iti$ facing south. Tnatts the south 
part  of' it. Ws is the stockwell. But it set  east of the house, oh, not 
too far, out there i n  the barn lot .  On the north side of the house ww 
the kitchen and you c o ~  out east of the house, out of the kitchen and 
corn riQjlt out towards that old barn, see. That's the way it would be a 
setting. ?hen the other barn, where we kept the horses, I don't think 
there's any picture here of it a t  a l l ,  but it set back nolrth here, see. 
The horses would come down here and drink and they'd go back past this barn, 
out he= t o  the other one. 

Q. And this was the dairy barn? 

A. This w a s  the old cow bam, yes. Tnis was the old cow barn. 

Q. YOU had quite a few out buildings there, smokehouse . . . 
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A. Yes, and there was two chickenhomes. There was a big one here, and 
then west of the house there was a big chickenhouse there, C& yes, there 
w a s  two big chickenhouses because Grandma kept a l o t  of chickens and then 
she'd raise a few turkeys and a few ducks and a few geese and there was 
guinea's mwling around there. 

Q. Tnose are 'strmge looking animals. Guineas. 

A. Yes. (la&s ) We had the different fowls, t o  have the different kind 
of mat t o  eat. And every so often she'd dress a big old goose and cook 
it. 

Q. That picture there looks l ike  maybe, everybody just  cam home f h m  
church. 

A. Well, it probably is. Now usually, there was Aunt Becky and h c l e  John, 
they always come t o  M t  . Zion and they i n  their l a t e r  years, they lived i n  
St.  Francisville, but they s t i l l  came t o  Mt. Zion t o  church. And they'd 
always c m  here f o r  dinner on Sunday. And Chloe and Brack, after they 
was m i e d ,  they'd corn out there for  dinner on Sunday, and course Herbert 
and Ivy, i f  they went anyplace, why, they1 d be out there. And Granddads 
two brothers, John and B e d ,  t h m a  the s m r  months-come you didn' t 
go much through the wintertime, but i n  the s m e r  months, there' d be 
several Sundays, they'd be the= too. Yes, they were probably just coming 
h m  f r o m  chwch because everybody went t o  church on Sunday a l l  ri@t. 

And there is mother picture here, another picture, I don't know i f  we got 
it here o r  not, a picture of G r a n d m a  and Grandpa. Grandmi, she's got a 
basket i n  her hand. Which is the basket she alwqys fixed the communion 
for  the church in. Yes, she always did tha t .  You'd see her every Sunday, 
she ' d f i x  that .  This table i n  here i n  the front mom, that  ' s the cormunion 
table out of M t  . Zion Church. 

Q. I never knew that .  

A. Yes. It set right UQ a&mt the pulpit and it w a s  square on one 
side, see. 

Q. You man the one that  b ig  Biible is se t t ing  on? 

A. Yes. That's the old commmion table. Yes, Grandma done that  as long 
as I can re-er, un t i l  finally, there was nobody l e f t  t o  go t o  chu~ch. 
She done that every Sunday. Well, now west of the houses, where that  
chicken house was, then on west of it was a big grape arbor. It was a big  
grape arbor. And she always fixed tha t  grape juice. 

Q. Ch, she made it kmCelf. 

A. Oh yes. She always f ixed tha t  grape Juice t o  have and baked her bread 
every Saturday, regardless of what w a s  going on o r  how she f e l t  o r  any- 
thing. She done that ,  as long as we went t o  M. Zion. We'll look thm& 
them pictures again, I think I s t i l l  got that  basket here, someplace. I 
think so. But she had it every Sunday. Tnat w a s  a have-to case. Yes. 
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Q. Took it real serious. 

A. Yes, yes I'll say she did. And she taught. She taught a class i n  
that  church for,  oh, I suppose . . . I donf t know how mny years, mre 
than f 'lfty years, anyway. She t a w t  every Sunday. She tawt the class 
that  was-would be e i a t h  grade or  high school age. ?hen Flossie was t e l l -  
ing me the other day she's been going down here t o  the Methodist church. 

Q. Who has? 

A. Flossie. She's been ping down there t o  Sunday School and he has his 
prayer meeting on Wednesday nights. H e r  and Wes been a going, and they 
l ike  that  man awful well and she was t e l l ing  me the other day that tonight 
he's going t o  stm a series  of classes and talks on "Tne True kaning 
of Christmas." Well, Grandma done the same thing d m  there for  years and 
years, she done the sam thing down there for  ye-. 

Now we had big Thanksgivln@;s, big TnanksgLving. Everybody core and had 
l o t s  t o  eat and a big tim, but then, now, fo r  Christms, she would stark 
talking of the t rue  meaning of ChrLstm, through Christm, see, and 
that ' s  the way she liked Chfistm she didn't care fo r  gifts and decora- 
t ions and al l  tha t  stuff that  they done. 

Now rry mother, and Dad-course Ihd he was p e a t  t o  have a big Christmas. 
He wanted t o  get something for everybody. And mother, she was that- 
away and then Chloe was thataway. land, Chloe, she just wanted t o  do 
everything at Christmas. But nm, Grandma liked Christmas, but she didnl t 
fee l  like doing a l l  that  was the true Christms, see. 

Course Dad, he understood, and Chloe too. They w a s  both good Blble 
students and they knew what she w a s  a preaching and talking about, but 
they still  like t o  have somthing. G i f t s  and a dinner. 

Course the house, the old house. They' d string crepe paper and make 
spirals  out of it, and they'd have a dozen of them big red bel ls  and 
you'd have colored popcorn hung wound and just stuff--candles--just stuff 
you'd make t o  put on the t ree.  And Grandma, she didn't object t o  it, but 
she talked mre about the true meaning of Christmas than about going t o  
town and buy* presents. (laughs) 

Q. You w a s  t e l l ing  r r ~  the other day what a scholar she was. 

A. Qh yes. I@ land yes. They t a l k  about Byron Lewis, a l l  he hew, you 
h o w .  And he did. There's no question about it. That old house of h is ,  
you lanow where his . . . 
Q. Is he still living? 

A. No. But he hadn't been dead very long either.  

Q. That 's  what I tho@t. 

A. He corn up there a t  Granchna's and put in,  why half a day o r  a day at 
a time talking t o  her. She @ve him a l o t  of that  history that he passed 
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on t o  these gniversities and books and so forth. She fbrnished a l o t  
of that ,  just a l o t  of it. Not only Byron but, oh qy land, there was 
people that  had you how, left here and come back th i r ty  or  forty y e w  
a f t e r  that that  wanted t o  know about thin@;s that  had happened i n  that  
t h ~ ,  wanted t o  run down som of t he i r  family history, you know, back 
f i f t y ,  sixty, seventy yeam ago. Why she remembered people, remubered 
t he i r  m s  and where they lived, when they died, where they was buried, 
just such stuff as that.  

Q. She'd been there the whole time. 

A. Yes. She spent her whole 99 years within four miles of Bridgeport. 
Within four mile of Bridgeport. And of course Dad, he had a wonderful 
memory, too. From the time he w a s  old e n o m  t o  remember, he knew the 
same people. He r e m e r e d  where they lived and when they died and so  
forth. But there was a l o t  of people that  moved away that  come back 
hunting such kind of i n f o m t i o n .  

Well, a f t e r  her hip give away, then she w a s  i n  bed, and then got where 
she could walk again, and so forth and do her work. But Fahnestock doc- 
tored her. He went there t o  see her. And he'd go there, oh, once every 
two weeks or  so. That's the way he said he relaxed. He'd just  go there, 
just go in ,  s e t  down, take his coat off and just ,  you how, just  start 
talking. And Roy Rucker did too. Royrd go and talk t o  her. 

But now Granddad, he was ,  well, he had a harder tirne i n  h is  younger age. 
H s  father  died when he [Granddad] was young, and back at tha t  time, the 
oldest son w a s  mre or  less--in a case of tha t  kind, he took over, see. 
And he had yourges s i s t e r s  and brothers that  had t o  be took care of, and 
h i s  mther .  

Q. So he must have been born about the same time as G r a n d m ?  

A. He w a s  two years older. She was born i n  1860 and he w a s  born i n  
1858. There was just  that  much difference between them. 

Now Granddad was just the type of a person that ,  well, he had worked hard 
and had t o  save i n  order t o  help take cme of h is  brothers and s i s t e r s  
till they got up, and un t i l  he was 1llarx3ed m d  gone, see. And he never 
got over that. He never got over that  working and saving. 

Now Gran&als f a t h e ~ h e r  mother died yowg--and her father lived t o  be 
pretty old, well, we seen h i s  ton-bstone. Pkrshall Stivers, you know, But 
he w a s  the type of a m--now, she sald, that  was the only trouble that  
Granddad and her father  ever had. He was an invalid fo r  years. 

Q. Her father was? 

A. Yes. And Grandma took care of hlm, and she said that was the only 
trouble that Granddad and her  father ever had, the only words they ever 
had. Nm he [her father] l ike  t o  read. He wanted t o  read every book 
that  he could get a hold of .  He never stopped reading and studying, and 
i f  they'd get a l i t t l e  money saved up--and at that  tim the w a y  G r a n d m a  



to ld  it, book s a l e s ~ n  would cone thm@ the country. 

Q. Com to your door? 

A. Yes. They'd corn t o  the door and--weAl, even when I was small. I 
can remaher when your McNess man and Raleigtrl, the man would come t o  your 
house in  a buggy and, of course, i f  he corn around noon, you unhitlahed 
h i s  horse and watered it and fed it and he'd corn i n  and eat h i s  dinner. 
Well anyway, i f  a book salesman would happen t o  cow along, which only 
happened about once a year, they would, thmugh the s m r  mnths, they 
would W e  rounds i n  the country, you know, why, he'd buy a book o r  two, 
and Gmddad he just  didn't see no use i n  spending tha t  mney thataway 
you know, it c o ~  too hard. But he just  never-that's the reason I say, 
I think Dad's memory h is  ab i l i ty  t o  remmber and learn l ike  he did, it 
corn f 'mm the Stivers side all right.  There is no question about it. 
Course Granddad, he read the paper and went t o  school what he could, but 
he believed you bet ter  get out and work instead of se t t ing  around reading 
af'ter you got old enough. t o  work. (laughs) That was the difference, 

Now Granddad had one s i s t e r  that m i e d  a man i n  Olney by the name of 
Jhrt. You heard me talk of Charles M. You rernenber when you went over 
there t o  college I to ld  him t o  . . . 
Q. To take care of me. 

A. Yes. Well, tha t ' s  the connection. She married a man by the name of 
H a r t  and they lived i n  Olney. Now he was a smart man i n  h i s  way. Now 
he didn't believe-and he didn't ei ther ,  he didn't go out and work 10 t o  
1 2  hours a day on the fm or i n  the factory o r  fo r  somebody else,  He 
could make a living without that .  Now Granddad ( l a m s )  he didn't l ike  
him and he called him lazy and all, because he didn't do that.  But the 
rran had the ab i l i ty  t o  see ahead. I've went t o  Olney with Grandpa and 
G r a n d m a  in a horse and bugg,  back tha t  far, see. Then afternards , When 
I got big e n o m  that  I could drive, I took them over there In the b d e l  
T. But, even at that th-e, that  man was grafting two kind of apples i n  
the sam t r ee  and peach and apples i n  the same t ree  and grapevines and 
stuff like that .  He could do tha t .  

Well, at that  ti^, there was a good many wealthy people in  Olney . The 
Webers, the shoe factory. 'Ihere was always some business in Olney. Now 
he ' d take his lawmmwer i n  the s m r t b ~ ,  his wheel barrow and his W e  
and he took care of these peoples yards. And he mde garden for  them and 
he'd graft M t  t rees  for  them and work on t he i r  grape arbors and a l l  
that kind of stuff. Actually, i n  a days t h ,  why he 'd make a couple 
dollars o r  so. A t  the end of the week, why, he Id have mare mney that  
Granddad would working on the farm, the way he was a working a l l  the time. 
He was rraking somz cash a l l  the time, see. 

He had a boy and a girl. And of course, the boy--Charles H a r t ' s  father-- 
that  was h i s  son. Tnen he had a girl that  m i e d  a rn by the nam of 
Birner. That's the way wetre relat ion t o  William "Billt t  B l r n e r ,  see, there 
i n  Olney. Tney're ancestors of Granddad's sister, 



Naw he was just  the f inest  old man that  you ever seen i n  your l i f e .  H e  
could make a good l iving thakaway, see. It was just the difference between 
the two mn. Why Granddad wouldn't no more of took a lawnmower and a wheel- 
b a r r o w  aYld went down a s t ree t  t o  somebody1 s house and worked, see? He1 d 
get out i n  the..field and drive horses and work thataway. Where, that old 
man there in  Olney, he seen where he could make a good l iving that  way. 
That's what he done. And he done it as long as he was able t o  work. Oh, 
he had a l i t t l e  shop, course, then w e  just had push nmwers, and he'd shar- 
pen peoples lawnmclwers and knives and shears and scissors.  He was just 
tha t  kind of a man. But he had the abi l i ty ,  he made a good living, and 
wasn t out, you how, ltike we w a s  a doing (laughs ) workfng 10 t o  12 hours 
a day i n  the dust and the dirt, putting up hay and al l  that  s tuff .  But, 
i n  Grandpats esth-ation, he w a s  a lazy no-good. (la@s ) Because that  
was the way  Granddad was raised and tawt and the way he had t o  do and, 
of course, tha t ' s  the way we done as long as we was a t  horn and working. 
Even up the ,  l a s t  spring he If ved, he [Granddad] put out a crop. 

Q. He w a s  i n  Ms e i@ties  wasn't he? 

A. 86. He worked at it. Now I los t  it somewhere, but I f m  going t o  write 
t o  the Prair ie  F m r  and see i f  I can get one. In the spring tha t  he was 
putting out h i s  crop, Prairie F m r  [magazine] come down there and took 
his picture. He w a s  plowing ri&t down there along the lane. He was 86 
and he had one home 24 and one 26. He was a farming! And they cane down 
there and took h i s  picture and it was f n  the Prairie Farmer and told about 
what he was doing and how old he was and how long he'd farrrrtd. But I los t  
it someplace, but I see people writes in to  B a i r i e  Farmer fo r  i n f o m t i o n  
in different papers, you know. 

Q. I 1 m  sure you could get it. 

A. I think I can. If I can get it, why, I ' m  go* t o  send and get rae 
one. 

Q. That would be a nice one t o  have. 

A. Yes. Keep that. 

Q. Had a horse 26 . . . 
A. One 24 and one 26 and he was  86. But, l ike  I say, he wouldnl t q@t 
and set down. men he got, along l a t e r  in the spring, I helped finish 
the crop. If d go down of an evening after work and on Saturday. 

But I went down there one evening, went right h m  work. I didn't cane 
horn. We had mved in town then, but I was still  working down there, help- 
-with the f m  and the crops. So I just went f'rom work right down there. 
I went in to  the house and Grandma said, "I 'rn worried about, " she alwap 
called h i m ,  "Charley. I' And he was a walking with a cane and he j u s t  
couldn't hardly get around at all. But west of the house where the woods 
was, w a s  the hog pens and individual hog houses where the sows had p i p ,  
and he knew it was time for a sow to have pigs, and he took his cane and 
he'd got down there t o  the woods. The sow had had pigs i n  the hog house. 
It w a s  low, see, and just a door f o r  the sow t o  go i n  and out, you bow 
what I man. 
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Q. I seen those low roofed hog houses. 

A. Yes. Well he'd got down there and looked i n  there and he seen the 
pigs and he wanted t o  count them and he crawled i n  the hog house, and I 

while he was i n  there the sow carne back! When I got down there the only 
thing tha t  saved him from the sm eating him up, he had his c a .  And 
she'd s t i ck  he r  head in there and he' d whop her on the nose and she'd 
get back. But when I got down there, she wouldn't l e t  him out of the hog 
house and he wouldn't let her in, of c o m e .  ( l a w t e r )  And that  I s  the 
way he was .  So I at a club and dmve her off and he crawled out and I 
got him back up t o  the house, but tha t  was h i s  l a s t  t r i p .  But that  was 
just what w a s  going on. He' d got down-and he knowed bet ter  than t o  do 
that--but he just wanted t o  get i n  there and count them p i p ,  you h a w .  

Q. Those sows get pretty ornery. 

A. We didn't keep them up and take care of them and handle them like we 
do now. They was a whole l o t  mre on the w3ld side. They wasn't the 
breed of h o e  l ike  you have today, you how. Dpecially when they had pigs. 
Now, it didn't pay you t o  fool mlmd i n  there without something i n  your 
hand. 

Q. But he kept her warded off. 

A. He had his cane. And when she'd start i n  the hog house, he'd whack 
her over the nose, you know. That's what you do--the way you stop 
old scrw o r  any hog. She'd back up and stand about so long and then she'd 
try it again, you see. But she wouldnl t get back far enough fo r  him t o  
get out. But I got him out of there then and he got back up t o  the house, 
but he didn't try that  no more ei ther .  

But tha t ' s  just  the difference i n  the . . . well, the way they seen things 
o r  the wa;y they was raised. Like I say about this old M r .  Hart. He could 
see a f'uture i n  fruit, vegetables, and graf t ing these different f'ruits on 
the same vine or  the s m  t ree .  Which, it was a long time a f t e r  that ,  of 
c o m e ,  when they corn up with dwarf f r u i t  t rees,  and they've got two or  
three different kind of apples growing on the s a ~  tree. Well, he had 
that  back i n  1919 and the early 1920's. That old man w a s  doing that  then, 
right them in  Olney. He  had the ab i l i ty  t o  do that ,  he knew how t o  do 
it, j ust fooUrrg around and found out how t o  do it. And that  s j ust the 
difference between, oh you know, the way they looked at the f'uture, o r  
the ab i l i ty  they had. I 've .heard Dad t e l l  about, Grandma's father  was 
the sam way.  

Q. He was U e  C. W.? 

A. No, he was mre l ike  Hart. He was different tho*, i n  that  he read 
everything he could and learned and he predicted d i f f e ~ n t  th- that  
would happen in the fllCm by what he read, and what the Bible said. And 
h d  said he could well remefier he would t a lk  about--course , he didnl t 
call it airplanes, but they would be a th-e c o ~  when people would be 
traveling around i n  the air. And of course, at that  tine, elec t r ic i ty  
and different t h i n g  that  he talked about, a l o t  of people then thought 
he w a s  crazy, you know. But it all did come true. 
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But if you know where t o  find it i n  the Bible-like th i s  b i g  old Bible 
I 've got i n  here with references and dictionary and a l l  that  stuff, it ' 11 
t e l l  you i n  there, too. It don't say it i n  them cer ta in  words, but then 
i t 's  t o  that  effect .  

Q. Yes, I 've seen t ~ a c t s  before, where it had certain prophecy and shows 
you what page you can look it up, regarding airplanes . . . 
A. Fli@t, and such stuff. It's in there and that  man read it and he 
had the ab i l i ty  t o  read it and understand it and of course, G r a n d m a ,  she 
inhepiked it and Dad did too. Yes, it was just a difference i n  the people. 
Like it i s  now, course they got so much different e lec t r ica l  stuff t o  go 
by, sc ient is t  do and so forth. But then, tha t  w a s  just what he read and 
interpreted and took f'rom different scripture readiw out of the Bible, 
you know. 

Q. Didn't you t e l l  me one t h ~  k a v i t t  took yau t o  a fa i th  healer, here 
in  town that  cured your foot? 

A. That.r?ras an old man he lived way out i n  the country, he lived i n  a 
log house. Yes, h i s  nam was Earmst, Abe Earnst. Him and h i s  wife lived 
i n  a log house out i n  the country, even had a dirt floor,  had a dirt f loor 
and a fireplace. One room and a lean-to kitchen. 

That was i n  the early twenties and I had aryisyplus i n  r r ~ y  foot. And it 
went on for  a week, and it didn't get any better ,  jus t  got worse. The 
doctors here i n  Bridgeport j u s t  wasn' t doing it any good. Course, the 
folks knew about t h i s  man, but they--at the same tire, they didn't believe 
i n  that  s tu f f ,  see. But m a y  I hadn't had any rest or  any sleep fo r  so 
long and Dad hadn't ei ther .  He'd been up evexy ni&t with m and working 
i n  the d a y t l m ,  till everybody w a s  wore out. So he loaded me i n  the old 
Model T and took m over there one ni@t,  about, oh, I guess it was nine, 
ten ol@lock. And s e t  me down i n  a chair, and that  old mn Just s e t  down 
on the ground, on the f loor you know, i n  front of me, and he just  s tar ted 
workkg h i s  hand over that  foot and talking you know, and of course, I 
don't rernerrJ3er how long it w a s ,  it wasn't very long, but Ihd said pretty 
soon he noticed I was asleep, see. And picked me up and put m i n  the 
car and took I-E home. Then, I forget how many hours, it was quite a while 
though. began t o  kind of get worried, I slept  so long, see. And 
that  was the end of the pain, and from then on it got well. 

Q. You just woke up and it was over? 

A. It got well. Yes, tha t  actually happened. Yes, It acutally happened, 
the old man man could really do that ,  but at the saw time, of course, 
Grandma and Dad and them, they didn't believe i n  tha t  faith-healing. Course, 
we didn't make a practice of--never did go back there again--&, I went 
back and visi ted hfm, yes. The old man was an old t h e  fiddler, and I ' d  
go over there and l l s t en  t o  him fiddle. 

E s  wife was named Phoebe. She'd put an old iron pot on the fireplace and 
pop som corn you knm, parch it o r  pop it, somthing like that.  But that's 
actual truth. That actually happened. I never did how when Dad took IIE 
home o r  anything . . . 
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Q. You w e r e  just  out. 

A. . . . I didn't how nothing for  well, I guess it was all the rest of 
that  ni@t and all the next day and the next ni@t. 

q.  You w e r e  asleep all that  tim . 
A. Yes. Just exhausted. Yes. But it acutally happened. The old man 
could actually do it too! 

Q. Did people go t o  him a lo t?  

A. Well, no. Now, you see, the people i n  that cornunity went t o  the 
Mr.  Zion Church and they &dnft believe i n  that  and he didn't say anything 
about it, that  he could do it o r  couldn't do it or  bragged about it o r  
asked people t o  corn. The old man didn't do that .  But i f  you went there 
and wanted him to, why, he would. He sure did. 

But they was originally f'rom Kentu-. Course they had lived here a nm- 
ber of years, but when they was younger they had come here f m m  Kmtuce ,  
and they was real old Kentuckians and hadn't changed. Now you know where 
B i l l  Heaths house is? 

Q. I ' m  not sure i f  I do. 

A. Well, as we come . . . Well, you how where Em1 and Marge lived? 
If you went on down south and then t o  the first road that  tums l e f t .  Come 
east up there on the h i l l ?  

A. Yes, I knaw what you're talking about now. 

Q. Well ri&t there. Well, tha t  house wasn't there then. Just on east 
of there, about where tha t  old house se t s  there now, course tha t ' s  not 
the one, that  old house was moved i n  there. But ri@t about i n  there is 
where tha t  old log house set at tha t  the .  

Q. You'll have t o  show me that  one of these days. 

A. A l l  r i@t .  Rigfit i n  there is where the old log house se t .  That's 
where they lived. Held work a day or two naw f o r  different fammr's. He 
didn't do any farming. He hunted, tmpped and i n  the s m r t i m e  he Id come 
and help you put up hay or  shock wheat, help thrash and s tuff  l ike  that. 
That ' s the only work--and they'd have a big garden and bury s tuf f  and put 
it away fo r  winter. 

But, they never had a car. He had a horse and buggy. But most of the 
time i f  they wanted t o  go someplace, they j u s t  walked. A l l  sumner long, 
and actually in bad weather, him and her both went barefooted, yes, -they 
went barefooted. You'd see them going somplace in the smertim down 
the road, why they were both barefooted. And they both chewed tobacao. 
Course he raised h i s  tobacco, you know, put it up, dried it, and twisted 
it and made him twists out of it. 
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Q. You told me one time you f e l t  like you had lived i n  two worlds. 
Would you expla3.n exactly what you ~ a n t  by that.  

A. I think what we was talking about then w a s  the change i n  the farming 
and the o i l f i e l d  work. Both of them, see. Tne work and the working con- 
ditions. The farmfng work especially. Now they, you know, ta lk  about 
what a drast ic  change there could be i n  the f'uture with different kinds 
of energy and power, but t o  me, it seem l ike  our big change, what mde 
a diifference in the agriculture work, has been in the last t h i r t y  years. 

We seen that  picture of tha t  old t rac tor  se t t ing  at the gas pwnp? Which, 
that  had t o  be in, well, 1942 or  1943. And i n  t h i s  part  of the country 
that  w a s  a l l  the kind of t ractors  there was and there wasn't mch iwpmve- 
mnt on them for  a good while. You pulled two twelve inch plows with it, 
o r  two fourteens, that  l s a l l  you plowed, and that  was ,  oh, a t  probably 
two rrdles an hour. Them old t rac tors  that's a l l  they'd travel.  Then, 
when we begin t o  take the lugs off  and put on rubber tires, you could move 
a l i t t l e  faster ,  especially going f r o m  one f i e l d  t o  another, where you was 
a mving on the mad. Up t o  now, where the majority of the t ractors  
everybody uses now, nobody uses a t rac tor  much under five plows and f m m  
that  up t o  ei@t. ?hem old tractors ,  most of them was l i s t ed  a t  25, 26 
horsepower and now there 175, 180 and so  forth, and that's-and the type 
of work they do. 

Your picking, shelling, farming so many acres, and the kind of planters. 
Course then we done a l l  of our planting with just  the two-row planter 
with horses. Tne first f o u ~ r o w  planters tha t  I ever seen wed i n  t h i s  
country was people just  took two two-rows put them together with a frame. 
And now, why I see a l o t  of people got 8 and 12 r ow  planters and I see i n  
the new Prairie F m r  there is even 24 r o w  planters. 

People talks about the big change that  may be in the fbture but I always 
f e l t  l lke  we've lived t h r o w ,  I think, a big changertoo. And I don't 
think t h e r e t l l b e  that  drast ic  a change i n  the next-don't see how there 
could be, you how, stuff get much bigger in the proportion of t i m e  and 
the way it has i n  the last  th i r ty  y e w ,  I guess, o r  somthing l ike  that .  
We've gone f r o m  two plows t o  twelve, eight, l o t  of peoples using seven, 
eight, twelve. And they're using discs that's a l l  the way f r o m  e i a t e e n  
t o  twenty foot wide. The first disc we ever had, t o  pu l l  w i t h  our horses 
was six foot wide. And it ' s went h m  s i x  t o  twenty-four (laughs ) and 
such stuff as that .  

And it 's the sam way working i n  the o i l  f ie ld .  The same r i gs  that  we  
moved, l ike  I say, it took 25 wagonloads with horses, not i t 's  all corrbined 
i n  one unit. You do the s m  work with an ou t f i t  that one truck w i l l  
move, i n  probably t h e  o r  four howls, where before, it took l ike  I say, 
there was 25 wagonloads and 1 t took three days, i f  you was just  moving a 
short distance. To take the mchine down and move it and s e t  it up again, 
it would take three o r  f o w  days at the least .  Where now, they have the 
spudders hooked up where you just  back In  a truck and hitch on t o  them 
and drive off, o r  a Cat. And when you get it mved t o  the next location 
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and set, why, tha t ' s  all there is  t o  it. You're ready t o  go t o  work, 
see. You can raise and lower the mast and--itls a l l  bu i l t  together, 
where these other old machines, when you took them down and roved them, 
they had t o  be a l l  took ap&. Move so mch on wagon and then all put 
back together agaln. That ' s what took a l l  the tire. Even your m t  
had t o  be took apw, It was old wooden mast, bolted together i n  the 
rdddle. Nclw they telescope, see. When you l d d  it down it reached clear 
acmss the field you lmm. You had t o  take it apart and put one part  on 
top of the other In  order fo r  the teams t o  get it on the wagon and haul it. 

So it seems t o  m like-I feel l ike,  I 've lived through both t h ~ s ,  the 
early farming and the farming now, and course I seen haw they worked i n  
the o i l  field b e f m  I aver s%arked but 1 been connected with it s w e  
1925, 1926, and theres been a l o t  of changes took place since then. And 
of course, probably there1 11 be  so^ more. 

In the last 20 yeaus, this repressure i n  the different o i l  fields 
recovery, rather, that's been going on has made an enomus  change 
what went on i n  the o i l  field. The way you produce it, compared 
you used to .  Tne repressure and the e lec t r ic i ty ,  that Is what made 
big change. 

Q. You to ld  me an interesting story once about Gmlhna .  You sa id  hat  
YOU went to Spring Mill1 t o  see some of the old stuff, like the dl!, and 
you s a d  that she to ld  you that  she'd seen enom of the old thin@? 

A. I tho@t it would be 
was t e l l i ng  her about it 
we can, I want t o  take 
not a taldng m over 
used it that I ever w a n t ,  
She had lived with that  stuff quite a nLnrJ3er of years, you Imow. 

I 

Q. Do you ever f e e l  tha t  way about the old days, I man things a p  so 
mechanized now, do you ever kind of miss the old way of doing thiw? 

I 

A. C b  yes. Course 1 don't think I ' d  want t o  do it every day, 
think I 'd  l ike  t o  just take a pa i r  of horses and a 
out and, you know, and work at it a l i t t l e  while. 
then course, I wouldn't want t o  go out there l ike  we did, 
morning, stay tlll s ix  i n  the evening s i x  days a week, c o m e ,  nob 
does now, but I 1 d  like t o  go back down there in them old f le lds  w i  
horses and the plow, you know, just  go a f e w  rounds, maybe ! ( lavajrls ) 

1 A  so r t  of "living much l ike  Clayville , located 5x1 
Indiana. 


